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.Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'SREPORT

To the Membersof Smartlink Holdings limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Smartlink Holdings limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit
andLoss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changesin Equity and Statement
of CashFlowsfor the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including
a summaryof significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the CompaniesAct,
2013 ("the Act') inthe manner so required and give a true and fair'view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133'Of the Act read with Companies(Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and profit (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standardson Auditing (SAs)specified under section
143(10)of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standardsare further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Standalone Fir.ancial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (lCAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basisfor our epinion. "

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (current
period). These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Valuation of Investments in Bonds and Mutual Funds

Refer Note 10 to the standalone Financial Statements.

As at March 2023, the Company has investments of Rs. 10,743.30 Lakhs in mutual funds and bonds
which constitutes about 51.63% of the total assets of the company. During the year, the Company
has recognised Rs. 317,78 Lakhs as fair value gain in the statement of Profit and Lossas per the
requirements of Ind AS109 "Financial Instruments".

Due to significance of amount involved, we haveconsidered this as Key Audit Matter.
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Our audit procedures to assess the ValuatIon of Investment In Bonds and I.iutual Funds Included the
following: •

• ObtaIned an understanding and assessed the desIgn, ImplementaUon and testing of the
operating effectiveness of internal controls over the existence, valuation and classIficatIon, In
mutual funds and bonds.

• Verified the de-mat account and statement of holdIngs to confirm the existence and accuracy
of Bonds as at March 31, 2023.

• VerifIed the confirmatIons from Fund Houses and statements of holdIngs td confIrm exIstence
and accuracy of investments in Mutual Funds as on March 31, 2023.

• In respect of investments in mutual funds whIch are fair valued throl)gh profIt or loss,
performed independent price checks based on confirmatIon and statement' of Net Asset Value
(NAV)from mutual funds houses.

• In respect of Investments in bonds whIch are valued at amorttsed cost, verified the deal sheets
and computation of interest accrued.

• Evaluated the basts of classificatIon of investments into the varIous categories of financial
instruments.

• Verified the completeness and accuracy of the dtsctoseres, which are included In note. 10 of
the Standalone financial statements.

2. Impairment cf Investment in substdlaries

Refer Note 10 in standalone financial statements.

The Company has investments in subsidiaries at a gross value of Rs. 7,031.n lakhs as on March 31,
2023. These investments are valued at cost less provision for impaIrment.

During the year, the Company has reversed the provisfon fo" impair:ment of Rs. 143.95 lakhs on
investments In subsidiaries. .

Due to signIficance of the above matter and Involvement of the management judgement, we have
considered this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of tnvestment In subsidiaries Included the
following:

• Obtained an understanding and assessed the design, Implementation and tested the operating
effectiveness of internal controls over the valuation and impairment of investments in
subsidiary companies.

• Obtained and reviewed the valuation report of the sub~d~:y to understand the fair value of
the company in respect of which the provision for impairment was reversed during the period.
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• Reviewed the financial statements of the subsidiaries and the future business plans/

projections furnished by the management.

• Made corroborative Inquiries with appropriate level of the management personnel about future
business plans/projections of the subsIdiaries.

• Evaluated the evidence supporting the judgement of the management about estfmated future
cash flow and the reasonableness of the estimates which Included specific risk factors by
comparing the actual results of the current year to previous estimates.

• Assessed the appropriateness of Impairment provlslon recognized by the management as at
March 31, 2023.

• Verified the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures, which are Included In note 10 of
the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Flnancfal Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the other Information. The other Information
comprises the Information Included In the Director's Report but does not Include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility Is to read the
other Information and, In doing so, consider whether the other Information Is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes In equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, Including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also Indudes
maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.
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The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's flnandal reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with SA, will always
detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, Individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic dectslons of users taken on the basis of these standalone financIal
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment, and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assessthe risks of material misstatement of the standalone flhanclal statements,
Whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that Is sufflcfent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material mIsstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1)of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressingour opinion on whether the company has Internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements In place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pollctes usedand the reasonablenessof accounting
estimates and related disclosuresmade by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or condItIons that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertaInty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related dlsctosur,esIn the standalone financial
statements or, If such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, IncludIng the disclosures, and whether the standalone financIal statements
represent the underlying transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those chargedwith governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scopeand tIming of the audit and significant audit fIndings, Including any sIgnificant deflclencfes In
internal control that we Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complIed with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance In the audit of the standalone financial statements of current period
and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters In our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated In our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public Interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), Issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained aU the Information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as It appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss (Including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes In Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with ccmpentes (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appclnted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financlal statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B".

(S) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, In our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position which
requires disclosure in the standalone finandal statements as at March 31, 2023.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and ProtectIon Fund.

Shridhar & Associates, 101, }'1 Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madbusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai·400052
Hend Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028/2604 4363/67411399 Ema.il: Info@Shridharandassoclates.com
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tv.
(1) The Management has represented that, to the best 1~ It's knowledge and belief, no

funds have been advanced or loaned or Invested (elther from borrowed funds or share
premIum or any other sourcesor kInd of funds) by tnt: Company to or In any other
person(s) or entfty(fes), IneludIng foreign entIties ,-1Intermedlarles"), wIth the
understanding, whether recorded In wrIting or otherwise, that the IntermedIary shall,
directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons fir entIties Identified In any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("uttfmate BeneficIaries") or
provide any guarantee, securIty or the like on behalf of the UltImate Beneficiaries.

(2) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company(rom any person(s) br entlty(les), Ineludlng
foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the understandIng, whether recorded In
writing or otherwtse, as on the date of this audit report, that t"e Company shall,
directly or Indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entltle~ ~dentlfled In any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the FundIngParty ("Ultlmate BeneficIaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Basedon the audit procedures performed that have been consIdered r-asonebte and
appropriate In the circumstances, and according to the Information and explanations
provIded to us by the ManagementIn this regard nothing has come to oU"notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (I) and (II) of Rule
11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contaIn any material mis-statement.

v. The Companyhas neither declared nor paid any dIvidend during the year.

3. In ouroplnlon, according to information, explanations given to us, the r'muneratlon for the
year ended March 31, 2023 paId by the Company to Its dIrectors is withIn the limIts laid
prescribed under Section 197 of the Act read with ScheduleV to the Act~

,
4. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companieswhIch

use accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting
software which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginnIngon
April 1, 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule11(g) of Companies(Audit and Auditors)
Rules,2014 (as amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No. 134427W

AbhishekPachlangia
Partner
MembershipNo. 120593
UDIN:23120593BGWJMM2193

Place: Mumbai
Date: May17, 2023

Shridhar & Associates, 101, I" Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-4000S2
Head Ofl1ceTel: +91 (22) 26043028/26044363/67411399 Email: info@sbridharandassoclates.com
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report 011 Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
Independent Auditors' Report on even date to Member of Smartlink Holding Limited on the Standalone
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023]

i.
(a) A. The company has maintained propel' records showing full particulars including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE") and relevant details of right to use
~~. .

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size of the
Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where
the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and its intangible assets.
Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the
~~~. " ;

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii.
(a) The Company is an investment company, and consequently, does not hold any inventory.

Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(ii) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Shridhar & Associates, 101, 1st Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-400052
Head Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028/2604 4363/67411399 Email: info@shridharandassociates.com
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(a)

,
\

I I

cording to the information. and explanations given to us and on the basts of our examination of the
ords of the Company, tbe Company has not provided aw security 0 . grantedany loans or advances

e nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, lim ted liability partnership or any
er parties during the year. The Company has provided guarantee tc the companies. The Company
not made any investments in or granted any loans, secured ori nsecured, to firms and limited
ility partnership.

I

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the info rmation and explanations given
to us, the Company has provided guarantee to other entity as belov :

(Amount in R~. yk11S):I

Partlcul~rs I Guarantees
Aggregate amounT granted/provided during the year f

- Subsidiaries 6570.00
Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cars

- Subsidiaries' , 6570.00

iii. Ac
rec
in th
oth
has
liab

,4

I I· .. .'

(b) According to the iQfo$tion and explanations givento us and,based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions in relation to guarantees
provided are not prejudi~i41tQ the interest of the Company. .

I \'.'

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature f loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, e requirement to report 0

clause 3(tii)(c). of the Order is nbt applicable to the Company. l

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report 0

clause 3(iii) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liabilit
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii) (e) of th
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company bas not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable 0

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limite
, Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report. on clause 3(iii) (
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company bas no
either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its 'directors or to any other person in who
the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and th
Company has not made investments· through more than two layers of investment companies .
accordance with the provisions ofsectio.n 186 of the Act. Accordingly.provisions stated in paragrap
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

"\

, "
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v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of sections 73, 74, 7S and 76 of the Act, and
the rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vi. The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products
of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

vii.
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the Company

has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund,
professional tax, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues as applicable, with the appropriate authorities though there has been delays in few
cases with regards to professional tax. According to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no arrears of outstanding undisputed statutory dues as at March 31" 2023 for a period of
more than six months from ~e date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. -

VUl. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been
now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

ix, .
(a) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings and repayment to lenders during the year.

Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix) (a) of the Order-is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or fmancial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money was raised by
way of term loans. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion, according to the information explanation provided to us, there are no funds raised on
short term basis. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)( d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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(e) According to the information explanation given to us and 011 un overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken my funds from an any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries.

x. .
(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including

debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully, partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of tIle Order are not applicable to the Company. .

xi.
(a) During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during
the course of audit of the standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023,
accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us. by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the course of audit. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)( c) of the
Order is not applicable to company. .

xii.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a

Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Xlll. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, "Related Party
Disclosure" specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

xiv.
(a) In our opmion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business.



Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(b) We have considered internal audit reports issued by iuternal auditors during our audit.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year tho
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to company. Accordingly,
the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are 110tapplicable to the Company.

xvi.
(a) The Company is registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as NOIl-

banking financial institution without accepting deposits vide Registration number N-13.02236 dated
May 02, 2018.

(b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the
reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Hence, the .reporting under paragraph clause. 3 (xvi)( c) of the Order are not applicable
to the.Company. .

. .
(d) The Company does not have more than one CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated in

paragraph clause 3 (xvi)( d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii. According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not incurred cash losses in
the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph clause 3 (xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial
ratios, ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of audit report. and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of onc year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability oft e company. We further state
that our reporting is. based on the facts up to the date of the audit re ort and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due

xx.
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are

applicable to the Company. The company has made the required contnbutions during the year and
there are no unspent amounts which are required to be transferred to the special account as on the date
of audit report. Accordingly the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable
to tbe Company.

Shridhar & Associates, 101, pIFloor, Vaibbav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-400052
Head Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028 / 2604 4363 / 6741 1399 Email: info@sbridharandassociates.com
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xxi. There are no Qualifications/adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order (CARO) Reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration No. 134427W

Abhishek Pachlaugia
Partner
Membership No. 120593
lnD~: 23120593BGYVJNVA2193

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17. 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSOF SMARTUNK HOLDINGSLIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Smartlfnk Holdings limited on the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2023]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Smartlink Holdings limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of inter nal controlstated In the GUidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) (the "Guidance Note").

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establfshing and maintaining Internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to standalo.ne financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
These responsibilities include the design, Implementation and maintenance of Internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company's poltcies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financi.ll statements bused on our audit. We conducted OUI' audit In accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Shrldhar & Associates, 101, 1st Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-400052
Head Office Tel: +9] (22) 2604 3028/2604 4363 16741 1399 Email: info@sbridharandassociates.com
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Shridhar & Associates
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evldence about the internal ftilancial controls
with reference to standalone flnanctal statements and t"ei~. operating effecttveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone fint.l~cial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone tmancta, statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design a id operating
effectiveness of internal control based on tile assessed ";5:<. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. .

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
flnanctal statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of tne company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and direc.tors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of cotluston or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Shrldhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
!CAlFirm Registration No. 134427W

Abhishek Pachlangta
Partner
Membership No. 120593
UDIN:23120593BGWJMM2193
Place: Mumbaf
Date: May 17, 2023 .



'Smart IIn~Holdings Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(Arnountfn INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Noto No.
Aut As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSErS
f'lnandal Assets
Cosh a nd cash equivalents 5 35.51 31.10
Bonk balance other than cash and cash equivalents 6 803.58 1,082.56
Receivables

(I) Other Receivables 7 55.36 75.38
Investments 10 17,522.12 15,0117.52
Other financial assets 8 9.38 25.23

Non-fl nanclal assets
Tax assets (net) 9 147.21 56.75
Investment property , 11 1,280.03 1,467.85
Property, plant and equipment 12 875.44 840.39
Capita l work-In-progress 43 215.70
Other intangible assets 13 -
Other non·flnanclal assets 14 77.61 64.65

Total Assets . 20,806.24 18,907.35

LIABILItIES AND EQUITY

LlABllIlIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 15

(I) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(11)total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 115.64 44.44

Borr.Qwings (Other than debt securities) 16 147.31 180.22
Other financial liabilities 17 77.27 52.77

Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 18 5.07 5.35
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 31 365.70 311.26
Other non-financial Ifabflltles 19 10.48 3.80

EQUITY
Equity share capital 20 199.50 199.50
Other equity 21 19,885.27 18,110.01

Total LIabilities and Equity 20,806.24 18,907.3~
See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements '-62
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements .:

As per my report of even date
For Shrldhar a: Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No.: 134427W

For and on behalf of the Board' of Directors of
Srnartllnk Holdings LImited
CIN: L67100GA1993PlC001341

~
K.R. Nalk

,7
K.G.Prabhu

, Chief Financial Officer
Urjita Damle
-Cornpany Secretary
IC'SIMembership NO.246S4

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2023



Smartllnk t-foldlngs LImited
Statomont of Standalone Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount I" INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Hoto For the Year Endad For the Yoar Ended
Ho. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Incomo
Revenuo from operations
Interest Income 22 1\27.97 I\66.H
Rentat lncome )6(0) 196.50 90.53
Fees and commission Income 23 12.21\ 9.62
Net gaIn on fair value changes 21\ 317.78 34MB
Total rovonut from operations 954.049 909.37
Other Income 25 150.69 2,819.64
Total Income 1,105.18 3,729.01

Expensos
Finance costs 26 16.69 16.70
Impairment on flnandallnstruments 27 0.26 04.78
Employee beneflts expenses 28 285.91 276.48
Oepreclatlon and amortisation expense 29 102.22 108.31
Other expenses 30 679.13 385.18
Totaloxponses 1,08-4.21 791.-45

Profit I (Loss) before exceptional Items and tax 20.97. 2,937.~6

Exceptional Items l1(e) 2,091.57

Profit I (Loss) bofore tax :",-,12.5-4 2,937.56

Tax Expense:
· Current Tax 3304.89 108,42
• Deferred Tax 53.29 (73.11)
• Taxes adjustment for earlier year (49.7~) 6.90
Total tax expense 31(F) )38.46 42.21

Profit I (Loss) for the year 1,77-4.08 2,895.35

Other Comprehensive Income
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re·measurement gains I (1055) on defined benefit plan 4.1'1 (3.10)
Income tax relating to above (1.16) 0.78

Subtotal (A) 3,45 (2.32)

O. Items that will be rectasslfled to profft or loss
Net fair value galnl (loss) on nnandallnstruments
Income tax relating to above

Subtotal (0)
Other Comprehensive Income (A.. 8) 3....5 (2.32)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,777.53 2,893.03

Oaslcand diluted Earnings per share 32 17.79 27.59
(Nominal value per share INR2)

See accompanying notes forming part of the Anandal Statements 1-62
The accompanying notes are an Intearal part of the financial statements

As per my report or even date
For Shrldhar IiAssocIates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No.: t34427W

~~~
A{3she~
Partner
Membership No. 120593

for Ind on behalf of the BOlrd of DIrectors of
Smartllnk Holdings Limited I!!\

OL67100GA1993PLCOOI341 , ~

("'<.R. Nalk Nalk
Executive Chairman Executive Director
D~N:~201) \ DI~: 0696e85

"'\J'j/ ~
K.G.prab~ • . UrJlt1 Damle
Chief Financial Ofncer Company Secretary

ICSIMembership No.24654
Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 2023

ptace: Numbal
Date: May 17, 2023
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Smnrtllnk Holdlnss Limited
Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

PArticulars

Cash flow from operatIng activities
Net Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Deprectatlon and amortIsation expense
Interest on Income tax refund
Loss / (Profit) on Property, plant and equipment sold / wrItten off (net)
Net gain on fair value changes
Reversal of Impairment on Investment
Impairment on flnanclallnstruments
EIR Impact of security deposits and rent amortization
EIRImpact of Interest Income on bonds
Bad Debts Written off
UnreaUsed foreign exchange difference (net)
Finance costs
Guarantee commission
Gain on derecognltlon of financial Instrument measured at amortised cost
Operating (loss) before workIng CApital changes

Changes In working capItal
(Increase) / Decrease In Investments
(lncrease) / Decrellse In Fixed deposits with Banks
(Increase) / OecreaseIn Other Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease In Other financial assets
(Increase) / Decrease In Other non-financial assets
Increase / (Decrease) In trade payables
Increase / (Decrease) In Other flnanclallfabllltles
Increase / (Decrease) In Other non-flnanclallfabllllles
Increase / (Decrease) In provisions
Cash generated from/(used In) operatIons
Net Income tax paid
Net cash flows from/(used In) operating actlvilles (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Investment property
Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Net cash flows from/(used In) Investing activities (B)

Cash flow from FInancing activitIes
Buyback of Company'sequity shares
Tax on Buyback of Company's equity shares
Interest payments
CashPayment for the principal portion of lease payments
Net cash flows from/(used In) flnanctng activities (C)

Net Increase / (Oecrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency Cash and bank
balance
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For th. Year End.d For th. Year Endod
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2,112,54 2,937.56

102.22 108.31
(0.44)

(2,095.14) (0,46)
(317.78) (342.48)
(143.95) (2,818.32)

0 5
(0.24) (0.60)
6.94 6,84

58.16
(0.01) (0,01)
16.69 16.70

(12.24) (9.62)
(2.72)

(275.71) (97.30)

(1,999.86) 4,816.72
279.01 (621.39)
(38.14) 13.63
16.94 (0.02)

(12.76) (1.01)
71.20 (38.51)
12.46 (49.75)
6.67 1.24
4.32 (2.93)

(1,935,8,7) 4,020.68
(375,19) (129.50)

(2,311.06) 3,891.18

(121.B3) (5.32)
2t459.~2 0.46

2,337.39 (4.86)

- (3,156.75)
(704.57)

(2.29) (0.75)
(19.64) (31.46)
(21. 93) (3,895.53)

4.40 (9.21)
31.10 40.30

0.01 0.01

35.51 31.10

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balanceswith banks
On current accounts
Cashon hand
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

33.50
2.01

28.68
2.22

35.51 31.10
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Smllrtllnk Holdings LImited
Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(Il) Non Cash Movement In Financing Activity

(I) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out In Ind AS 7 " Statement of Cnsh Flows"

Partlcutars For the Year Endod For the Yoar Endad
March 31,2023 March 31, l022

Lease LIabilIties (13.27) 15.04

See accompanying notes forming part of the FInancial Statements
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements

As per my report of even date
For Shrldhar a Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 134427W

&~
Abhlshek Pachlangla
Partner
Membership No. 120593

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17,2023

1·62

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Smartllnk Holdings LImited

CIN : L67100GAI993PLCOOI3~'

~ «t:
'"K.R. Nalk Arat! Nalk
Executive Chairman

'~0;
K.G.Prabhu
Ch!ef Financial Offtcer

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17,2023

Executive Director

D~

UrJlta Dam1e
Company Secretary
leSI Membership No.24654
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Smart link HoldIngs LImited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate Information
Smnrtllnk Holdings LImited (formerly known as Smartltnk Network Systems Limited) ("Company"), Incorporated In Goa Is II Non·Banklng
FInancIal Institution (NBFI) (non·deposlt taking) as defined under Reserve Bank of Indln Act, 1934. The Company Is public limited company
Incorporated and domiciled In India and has Its registered office at Vema Industrial Estate, Goa, India, The company has Its IIstlnQ on OSE
LImited and NSElimited.
The Company operates as an Investment Company and earns majorly from Investlnllllctlvity.
The f"lnanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved for Issue by company's Board of Directors on May 17,2023.

2 Significant accounting policies
Significant accounting polIcIes adopted by the Company are as under:

2.1 Dasls of Preparation of Financial Statements
(a) Statemant of Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared In accordance v'lth Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

Accounting potlctes have been consistently applied to all the years rrcsented except where a newly Issued accounting standard Is
Initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change In tho accounting policy hitherto In use.

The rlnanclal statements have been prepared on a historIcal cost baSiS,except for certain financial assets and flnanclalltabtlttles that
are measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented In Indian Rupees (INR) In lakhs, which Is also the functional currency of the company and all
amounts disclosed In financial statements and notes have been rounded of( to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise Indicated.

(b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimate and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the
year and disclosures of contingent lIab1lttles as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used In the accompanying
financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of tlie
financial statements. Actual results could differ from these ostlmates. Esll...,"tes and underlying essumpttcns are revIewed on a
periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, If any, are recognized 1'1 the year In which the estimates are revised and In any
future years affected. Refer Note 3 for detailed dtscusslcn on estimates lind judgments.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and
Impairment losses, If any. Cost of property, plant and equipment ccmonses Its purchase price net of any discounts and rebates, any
Import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recovered from the tax euthcnnes), any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready for Its Intended use, other IncIdental exoenses, decommissioning costs, If any, and Interest on
borrowings attributable to It up to the date It Is ready for Its Intended use. Cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet
ready for their Intended use at the balance sheet date are shown under capItal work-ln-progress.

Subsequent costs are Included In the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as approprtate, only when It Is
probable that future economic benefits associate<.!with the Item will flow to the Company and the cost of the Item can be measured
reliably. The carryIng amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset Is derecognlzed when replaced. AUother repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Lossdunng the year In whIch they are Incurred.

Property, plant and equipment's residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and changes, If any, are
treated as changes In accounting estimate.

Depredation methods, estimated useful lives
The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as under:

Property, plant and equipment Useful LIves (In years)
Fumiture and Fixtures
Motor Vehicle
Office Equlpments
Electrical Installations
Air Condit loners
Computers

B
5
5
10
10
3



Smartllnk Holdings LImited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AmountIn INR,unless otherwise stated)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the str'llght·lfne method as per the useful life prescribed In
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except In respect of certain categorfes of assets, II' whose case the Ufe of the assets has been
assessed as under based on technical advice, ta!dng Into account the natu"e of the asset, the esnmated usage Of the asset, tho
operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance support, etc

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment Is provided on oro-rata basis from the date of acquisition.

Property plant and equipment Is derecogntsed on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from Its use.
Depredation on derecognitlon of an asset from property plant and equlprnent Is provided up to the date preceding the date of
derecognltlon.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the dlff~rence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) Is recognised In other Income I expense In the statement of profit and loss In the year the asset Is derecognlsed.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed perfodlcally at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
as approprfate.

2.3 Investment properties
Property that Is held for long· term rental yield or for capital approprfatlon or both, and that Is not used In the production of goods
and services or for administrative purposes Is classltted as Investment property.
Investment properties are measured Initially at cost. Subsequent to Initial recognition, Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment loss, If any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects If the recognition criterIa are
met. When significant parts of the Investment property are required to be replaced at Intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized In profit or loss as Incurred.

Investment properties are derecognlzed either when they have been disposed of or wh.enthey are permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefit Is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset is recognized In profit or loss In the perfod of derecognltlon.

Investment properties Include properties leased out and measured under Ind AS116 as right of use assets.

2.4 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carrfed at cost less accumulated amortisatIon and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortfsation is recognised on a straight line basis basis over their estimated useful lives so as to
reflect the pattern In which the assets economiC benefits are consumed. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting perfod, with the effect of any changes In estimate being accounted (or on a prospective basis.
The amortisation of intangible asset Is Included In Depreciation and amortisation expense In statement of Profit ft loss account.

The Company amortized Intangible assets using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as under:
Intangible assets Usefull:fe (In years)
Computer Software (ERP) 3
Computer Software (other software) 4"
• Subject to license period

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

2.5 foreign Currency Transactions
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items Included In the financial statements are measured uslng the currency of the primary economic environment In which the entity
operates ('the functional currency'). The finandal statements are presented In Indian rupee (INR),which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

-»...
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(b) Transactions and balances
On Initial recognition, all foreign currency transactlons are recorded by applying to the foreIgn currency amount the exchange rato
between the functIonal currency and the foreign currency at the date of the trensactton. GaIns/Losses IIrlslngout of fluctuatIon In
foreign exchange rate between the transactIon date and settlement date are recognised In the Statement of ProfIt and loss.

All monetary assets and liabilitIes In foreIgn currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate prevailIng at the yellr end
and the exchange differences are recognIsed In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Hon-monetary Items that are measured In terms of historIcal cost In a foreign currency are translated usIng the exchange rates at tho
dates of the InitIal transactIons.

2.6 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financIal Instruments at faIr value at each balance sheet date.

FaIr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to trrnsfE'r a lIal>llltyIn an orderly transactIon between market
partIcipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement Is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the tiabnity takes place either:
,.. In the prIncIpal market for the asset or lfabfllty, or
,.. In the absence of a principal market, In the ITV.)stadvantageous market for the asset or lfablllty accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation technIques that are appropriate In the circumstances and for whiCh sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable Inputs and mInImizIngthe use of unobservable Inputs.

All assets and lfabltltles for which faIr value Is measured or disclosed In the financIal statements lire clltegorlzed within the faIr value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that Is sIgnifIcant to the faIr value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for Identical assets or Uabltltles
- Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices Included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or tlablUty, either

directly (i.e. as prices) or IndIrectly (I.e. derived from prices) .
. Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable Inputs).

2.7 Revenue Recoanltlon

(a) Interest tnccrne - the effectIve Interest rate method
Interest Income Is recorded using the effective Interest rate (fiR) method for illl fInancial Instruments measured at amortised cost and
debt Instrument measured at MOCI. The fiR is the rate that elCactlydIscounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
(lfe of the ffnandal Instrument or, when approprfate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the flnandal asset.

The EIR(and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition,
fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.The Company recognises jnterest Income using a rate of return that represents the
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected Ufe of the loan. Hence, It recognises the effect of potentially different
interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the prcxJuct life cycle (Including prepayments, penalty Interest
and charges).

If expectations regarding the ca.sh flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment Is booked
as a positIve or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset In the balance sheet with an Increase or reductIon in Interest
income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Revenue from lease rentals
Lease Income Is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight llne basis over the lease term, unless there Is another
systematic basis which Is more representative of the time pattern of the lease.

(c) DivIdend Income
Dividend Income (Including from MOCllnvestments) Is recognised when the Company's right to receIve the payment is established, It
Is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend wilt flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably. This is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

(d) Tradinglncome
Trading income Includes all gains and losses from changes In faIr value and the related Interest income or expense and dlv1dends, for
financial assets and finandat liabilitIes held for trading.

s».. ..
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2.8 Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, ere l:lch::fed In the determination of the not profit or loss for the
year.

(a) Current Income tax
Current tax Is the amount of tax payable on the taxable Income for the year as determined In accordance with the provIsions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and tax liabilitIes are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
Intends either to settle on a net basts, or to realize the esset and settle the lldbillty simultaneously.

(b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary differences, being dlHerences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and
corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax Is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantIvely enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilitIes are recognised for all temporary dlfrerences,
except:
(I) Where the deferred tax liability arIses from the Initial recognitIon of g(.'odwlllor of an asset or liability In a transactIon that Is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(II) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with Investments In subsidIaries, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and It Is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary dlffer.,nces to the extent that It Is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary dl(fere:lce~ can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and lIabllltles are
offset If such Items relate to taxes on Income levied by the same governing tax laws lind the Company has a legally enforceable right
for such set off.

Deferred tax assets are revIewed at each balance sheet date for theIr rp.atfsabllity.

Current and deferred tax are recognIsed In profit or loss, except when they relate to Items that are recognIsed In Other Comprehensive
Income or directly In eqUity, In whIch case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised In Other Comprehensive Income or
dIrectly In equity respectively.

2.9 Leases
The Company's lease asset classes prlmarfly conslst of leases for office and factory premises. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at InceptIon of a contract. A contract Is, or contains, II lease If the contract conveys the rIght to control the use of an
IdentifIed asset for a perIod of time In exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an Identlffed asset, the Company assesses whether:
(I) the contract Involves the use of an identified asset
(II) the Company has substantially all of the economtc benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(Iff) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease tfabllIty for
all lease arrangements IIIVlhlch It Is a lessee, except for leases with II term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
teases, For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
tfne basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented In the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying values of assets I cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for Impairment. If any Indication of
Impairment extsts, the recoverable amount of such assets Is estimated and Impairment Is recognised, If the carrying amount of these
assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the higher of an assets fair value less cost of disposal and their
value In use. Value In use Is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to theIr present value based on an appropriate pre-tax
discount rate to determine whether there is any Indication that those assets have suffered any ImpaIrment loss. When there is an
Indication that an Impairment loss recognised for an asset In earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such
reversal of Impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss, except In case of revalued assets.
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2.11 ProvIsIons and contingent liabilitIes
ProvIsIons are recognlsed when the Company has a .present obligatIon (lellat or constructIve) as a result of a past event, It Is probable
that the Companywill be required to. settle the obligation, arid' a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obllgatlon.

The amount recognised as a provisIon Is the best estimate of the constderanon required to settle the present obllgatton at the end of
the reportIng period, taklnll Into account the rtsks and uncertalnttes surroundIng the obllgatlon. In the event the ttme value of money
Is material, provisIon Is carried at the present value of the cash flows required to settle tho obligation.
If the effect of the time value' of money Is materIal, provisIons are dIscounted using 'n current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specIfIc to the liability. When dlscountlrTg Is used, the Incrense In the provision due to the passago of time Is
recognIzed as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilitIes are disclosed when there Is a posslb!e obligation arisIng from past events, the existence of which will be
confIrmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertajn future events not wholly wIthin the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events, ,Where It Is either not probable that an outflOWof resources wIll be
requIred to settle the obligatIon or a reliable estimate of th~ amount cannot be made. When there Is a possIble obligation or a present
obligation In respect of which the llkellhood of outflow of resources Is remote, no provtston or dlsctosute Is made.• I,.

2.12 Cash ~nd cash equivalents . J l
Cash and cash equivalent In the batance .sheet comprise cash lit banks and oq haJ1~.an~ short-term deposits net of bank overdraft wIth
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subjeG:tto an Insignificant rls~ Glfchpnlle' In value.
For the purpose of cash-flow statement, cash and.ca_shequivalents Inclade cash, on"hatid,.cashll~ bank and short-term deposits net of
bank overdraft. ." (

I.

2.13 Financial Instruments
A financIal Instrument Is' any contract that gives rise to a fInancial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity Instrument of
another entity,

(a) Investment In subsidiaries
Interest in subsidiarIes are recognised at cost and not adjusted to faIr v~lue at the end of each reporting period. Cost represents
amount paid for acquisition of the said Investments.
The Company assesses at the end of each reportIng perIod, If there are any Indications th t the said Investments may be Impaired. If
so, the Company estimates the recoverable value/amount of the Investment and provides f r Impairment, If any I.e . .the deficit In the
recoverable value over cost.

(b) Other InvestmentS and financial assets
(I) Initial recognition and measurement

At Initial recognItion, financial asset Is measured at Its faIr value plus, In the case of a finanCial asset not at faIr value through profIt or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisItion of the flnancla£ sset. Transaction costs of financIal assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed In profit or loss.

(Ii) Subsequent measurement ,
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified In followIng categor es:
a) at amortized cost; or .
b) at fair value through other comprehensive mcorne: or '1
c) at fair value through profit or loss.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets . d the contractual terms of the cash
flows, I
Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost, Interest Income from these financial assets Is Included In interest Income using
the effective Interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCl):Assets that are held for collectIon of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the. assets' cash flows represent solely payments of princlpall and Interest, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensIve Income (FYTOCI),Movements In the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive Income
(OCI), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset Is derecogntsed, the cu ulative gain or loss previously recognized
In DCIIs reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss and recognized In other alns/ (losses). Interest Income from these
financial assets is included in Interest Income using the effective interest rate method.

~
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illvalue through profit Q( loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost .or FVTOCIare measured at fair value through
profit cr loss. Interest Income from these financial assets Is Included In interest Income.

Equity instruments: All equity Investments In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity Instruments which are held (or
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acqulr" In a business combination to which rnd ASI03 applies are classified as
at fair value through profit and loss (MPL). For all other equity Instruments, the Company may make an Irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive Income subsequent changes In the fair value. Th!! Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
Instrument basis. The classification Is made on Intlal recognition and Is Irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity InstrlJlllent as at MDCI, then all fair value changes 0'.1 the Instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized In the OCi. There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCi to prom and loss, (; :en on sate of Investment.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or toss within equity.

Equity instruments Included within the MPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized In the profit and loss.

(til) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)model for measurement and
recognition of Impairment loss on finanCial assets.

For recognition of Impairment loss on fI:lanclal assets and risk exposure, t~e Company determines that whether there has been II

significant Increase In the credit risk since Initial recognition. If credit- risk has not Increased significantly, tz-month ECLis used to
provide for impairment loss. However, tr credIt rIsk has Increased slgnlflcC!r.tly,lifetime ECLIs used. If In subsequent years, credit
quality of the Instrument Improves such that there Is no longer a slgnlf1r;ant Increase In credit risk since Initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing Impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECl.

LIfe time ECLsare the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial Instrument.
The 12 month ECLis a portion of the lifetime ECLwhich results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the year
end.

ECLIs the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company In accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (I.e. all shortfalls), dlscoonted at the original effective Interest rate (EIR). When estimating
the cash flows, an entity Is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial Instrument (Including prepayment, extension
etc.) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, In rare cases when the expected life of the financial Instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity Is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial Instrument.

In general, It is presumed that credit risk has significantly Increased since initial recognition If the payment Is more than 30 days past
due.

ECLimpairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year Is recognized as Income/expense in the statement of profit and
loss. In balance sheet ECLfor financial assets measured at amortized cost Is presented as an allowance, t.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets In the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset ts derecognlzed only when
a) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset Is transferred or
b) retains the contractual rights to receive the CdSi! flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
Howsto one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset is transferred then In that case financial asset Is derecognized only If subs\antlally aU risks and rewards of
ownership of the finanCial asset Is transferred. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

(c) Financlaillabllities
(I) Initial recognition and measurement

Financlaillabiltties are classified, at initial recognition, as flnandalliabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortized cost,
as appropriate.

transaction costs.
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(11) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilItIes depends on their .classIfIcation, as descrIbed below:

Flnanclalllabll1tfes at faIr value through profit or loss
FInancIal lIabll1tles at fair value through prom or loss Include fInancIal lIabllttles held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon Initial recognitIon as at faIr value through profit or loss. Separated embj!dded derIvatives are also classIfIed as helel for tradlnB
unless they are designated as effectIve hedgIng Instruments. Gains or losses on liabilIties held for tradIng are recognized In the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings
After Initial recognition, Interest·bearlng loans and borrowlng~ are sub~e.ql'~ntly measured at amortized cost usIng the EIRmethod.
GaIns and losses are recognized In Statement of :>roflt and Loss when tM lIabllitfes are derecogntzed as well as through the EIR
amortizatIon process. Amortized cost Is calculated by takIng Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR.The EIRamortization Is Included as ftnance costs In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(III) Derecognition
A flnanclal liability Is derecognlzed when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or cancelled or expires. 'Nhen an exIstIng
fInancial liab1tfty is replaced by another from the same lender on substClntlllllydIfferent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognltlon of the origInal liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference In the respectlve carrying amounts Is recognized I" the Stat~ment of Profit and Loss as ffnance costs.

(d) Financial Guarantee Contracts
Financial guarantees are Initially recognised In the financial statements (within 'other lfabilitles') at fair value. Subsequently, the
lIabil1ty Is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per Impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 end the
amount recognised less cumulatfve amortisation.
Any increase in the liability relating to financial gll'lrantees Is recorded in the statement of profit and loss In credit los$ expense. The
premium received Is recognIsed In the statement of profft and loss In net fl!es and commIssion Income on a straIght lfne basts over the
life of the guarantee.

(e) OffsettIng financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the ne+ =rnount Is roported In the-balance sheet wnere there Is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognized amounts and there Is an Intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. TIle legally enforceable right must not be contingent on fU'l're events and must be enforc.eable In the normal course of
business and In the event of default, Insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.14 Employee Benefits
(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, IncludIng non·monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end ot the year in which the employees render the related service are recognized In respect of employees' services up to the end of
the year and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations In the balance sheet.

(b) long-term employee benefit obligations
(I) Defined contributIon plan

Provident Fund: The Company's contributions to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provtsions Act, 1952 which is a defined contribution plan, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss In the period
of accrual. The Company has no obligatIon, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state Insurance scheme Is made to the regulatory authorities,
where the Company has no further obtigattons. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution plan as the Company does not carry
any further obligations, apart (rom the contributions made on a monthly basis whIch are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

~)P ..
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(II) Defined benefit plans
Gratuity:
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined bcnent plan (tho 'Gplltulty PIOII") covering eligible oll1ployees In Ilccordance with tho
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The Gratuity Plan provldos n lump surll payment to vosted om:>loyeos lit ret Irol'nont, dOllth,
Incapacitation or termInatIon of employment, of an amount based on tho rospectlve employee's slIlory, Tho COll1pnny'sltability Is
nctuartauv determined (using the Projected Wnn CredIt method) et the and of eech year,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plnn assets (excluding not Interest) Is reflected
Immediately In the balance sheet with a charge/credit recognised In Other Comprehensive Incomo ("OCI")In tho period In which they
occur,

Remeasurements recognised In OCIIs reflected Immediately In surplus In statement of proftt nnd loss account and Is not reclasslflod to
profit or loss In subsequent periods,

(c) Other long term employee benefits:
Company's liabilities towards compensated absences to employees which nrc expected to be nvnlled or oncnshed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year are accrued on the basis of valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an Independent actuary
using Projected Unit Credit Method,
Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of chnnges In actuarlat assumptions and are recognised
Immediately In the statement of profit and loss,

2,15 Earnings Per Share
Bastc earnings per share ts calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weIghted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, Enrnlngs considered In ascertaining the Company's earnings per share Is
the net profit or loss for the year after deducting preference dlvldencls and tny attributable tax thereto for the year, The weIghted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all the years presented Is adjusted for events, such as bonus
shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equIty shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change In resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year Is adjusted for the effects of all dllutlve potential equity shares,

2,16 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs constst of Interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowingcosts also
Include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,
All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss except:
a) Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of assets that necessarily takes a substantIal period of time
to get ready for Its Intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets,
b) Expenses Incurred on raising long term borrowings are amortised using effective interest rate method over the period of borrowings,

Investment Income earned on the temporary Investment of funds of spec1flc borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible (or capilallsatlon,

2,17 Dividend on ordinary shares
The Company recognises a lfabillty when the distribution Is authorised by the shareholders, A corresponding amount Is recognised
directly in equity,

2.18 Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed In financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated,

3 Significant accounting judgments, estImates and assumptions
In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes Judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates,
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Information about assumptions, judgements and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting In a material adjustment in
the year ending March 31, 2023 are as below:
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(a) Useful life of Property, plant and equipment, Investment Property and Intangible assets and Its expected residual valuo

Property, plant and equipment, Investment Property and other Intangible assets represent a significant proportion of the assets of the
Company. Deprectatlcn and amortisation Is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected usefulltfe lind the expocted
residual value at the end of Its life. The IJseful lives and residual values of Company's assets are deterrnmed by management ilt tht'!
time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, Inctudlng at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience
with similar assets as well as anttctpatlon of future events, which may Impact their life, such as changes In technology.

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
The fair value of financial Instruments Is the price that would be received to s~ll an asset or paid to transfer II liability In an orderly
transaction In the principal (or most advantageous) market aHI>'? measurerr.pr.t elate under current mar1<etconditions (I.e., an exit
price) regardless of whether that price I~directly observable or estimated u,;lng Mother valuation technique. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded In the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that Include the use of valuation models. The Inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this I~ not feaSible, estimation Is required In establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates
Include considerations of liquidity and model Inputs related to Items such as crcdtt risk (both own and counterparty), funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility for further details about determination of fair value.

(c) Actuarial Valuation
The determination of Company's liabHity towards defined benefit obligation' to employees Is made through Independent actuarial
valuation Including determination of amounts to be recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss and In Other Comprehensive
Income. Such valuation depend upon assumpttons determined after taking Into account discount rate, salary growth rate, expected
rate of return, mortality and attrition rate. Due to the complexities Involved In the valuation and Its tong-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation Is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. Information about such valuation Is provided In notes to the
financial statements.

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets
In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating units based on expected
future cash flows and uses an Interest rate to discount them. Estimation unce-tatnty relates to assumptions about future operating
results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

(e) Effective Interest Rate (EIR)method
The Company's EIRmethodology, recogntses Interest Income I expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given I taken and recognises the effect of potentially different
Interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the financial Instruments.
This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the Instruments, as
well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee Income/expense that are Integral parts of the Instrument.

(f) Impairment of financial asset
The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECl) on Its financial assets measured at amortized cost and Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income (MOCI) except Investment in equity Instruments. At each reporting date, the Company
assesses whether the above financial assets are credit- Impaired. A financial asset Is 'credtt- Impaired' when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the fmanclal asset have occurred.



Smartllnk Holdings Limited
Notes form ing part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR,unless otherwise stated)

4 Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as Issued from time to time, On March 31, 2023, MeA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amondment
Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

(I) Ind AS 1 - Disclosure of material accounting poltctes: ,
lhe amendments related to shifting of disclosure of erstwhile "slgnlftcant accounting policies" to "material accounting poucies' In the
notes to the financial statements requtr Ing compsntes to reframe their accol'nllnl! policies to make them more "entity specific. This
amendment aligns with the "material" concept already required under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
cempeny does not expect this amendment to have any significant Impact In Its financial statements.

(II) IndAS 8 - Definition of accounting estimates:
111eamendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting pollcles and accounting estimates. The deflnltfon of a "change In
accounting estimates" has been replaced with a definition of "accounting estimates." Under the new definition, accounting estimates
are "monetary amounts In financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty." Entities develop accounting estimates If
accounting poltctes require Items In financial statements to be measured In a way that Involves measurement uncertainty. The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant Impact In Its financial statements

(111) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
'The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemptIon In paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12. At the date of transition to
Ind ASs, a fIrst-time adopter shall recognize a deferred tax asset to the extent that It Is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which tile deductible temporary difference can be utHlzed. SImilarly, II deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with:

a) Rlght-ot-use assets and lease liabIlities

b) DecommiSSioning, restoration and Similar liabilItIes and the corresponding amounts recognized as part of the cost of the related
asset.-_
Therefore, It a company has not yet recognIsed deferred tax on rlght-or'''se assets an.d lease lIabllttles or has recognised deterred tax
on net basts, the same need to recognize on gross basis based on the ,carrying amount of rlght-ot-use assets and lease liabilities.

(tv) Ind AS 103 - Common control BusinessCombination
The amendments modify the disclosure requIrement for business combmanon under common control In the first financial statement
following' the busIness comblnatfon. It requires to disclose the date on which the transferee obtains control of the transferor is
required to be disclosed.
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5 Cash and cash equIvalents

Particulars Aut Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash on hand 2.01 2.22
Balances with banks

On current accounts 33.50 28.88
Total 35.51 31.10

6 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equlvalent

Aut Aut
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 12 months' 768.66 1,044.26
Accrued interest on fixed deposit 33.08 34.18
Unpaid dividend accounts H4 11.14
Total

-_ .
803.58 1,08258

1. Includes INR72.45 lakhs (March 31, 2022 INR72.45 la!dls) held as margin money agaInst bank guarantee.
2. Includes INRNIL(March 31,2022 INR330.00 lakhs) he\d agaInst corporate guarantee to bank for credit facHltles availed by
DlglsolSystems Limited.
3. Includes INR660.00 lakhs (March 31,2022 INR610 lakhs) held against corporate guarantee to bank for credit facllftles availed
by Synegra EMSLImited.

7 ReceIvables

Aut Aut
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Others Receivables
Considered good, unsecured (Refer Note 37) 55.36 75.38

From related parties;
DigisolSystems Limited 16.98 14.26
Synegra EMSLimited 30.11 25.44
Telesmart SCSLimited 32.72

47.09 72.42

From others: 8.27 2.96
Total Receivables 55.36 75.38

Receivables ageing
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023 Ma~ch 31, 2022

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good
Unbilled Dues
Not Due 1.58 1.65
Less than 6 months 52.13 15.57
6 months - 1 year 0.03 0.60
1-2 years 1.62 44.61
2·3 years 12.95
More than 3 years -

Total 55.36 75.38

There are no dues from director or other officer of the company or any firm or private company in which any director is a
partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 37.
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8 Othor FInancial assets

Particulars Aut
March 31, 2023

Aut
March 31, 20~2

7.93 31.92
(7.99)

Security Deposits (Gross)
Less: Provision for Impairment loss
Security Deposits (Net)
Advance to employees

7.93
1.45

23.93
1.30

Total 9.38

9 Current Tax assets (Net)

25.23

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

I-,A""dv-a-n-ce--:-In-co-m-e~t~ax--:-(n-e-:-t-of=-p-r-ov""':'ls""':'lo-n-s""':'fo-r""':'t-ax-a-'U-on-o~f:-:I~NR::-:-1,-=O~51:-.=-:50~I:-ak:-:h-s""':'(M:-a-~-:ch~31:-',1----~14'::7~.2::-:1+---· 56.75
2022: INR 1,966.33 lakhs)

1"7.21 56.75Total

..
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10 lnvestments

Particulars AHt Aut
"'.rch 31, 2023 March 31, 2021

Invostmonts measured at Cost
Subsldlarlos 7,031.71 6,1«l.86

c

Invostments measured .1 amortised cost
Debl ~C(urrues -4,551.90 5,056.62
rlxed Deposits 1,537.31

Invoslmonts measured at ralr Value through Profit or loss
Mutual funds 6,191."1 5,915.92

Invostmonts meuured at F.lr Vllue throush Other ComprehensIve Income
Debt secentres 49.30
Total· Gross (A) ~,,312.3! 17,162.70
less: AIlOWllnce(or Impalnment loss (8) {1.790.2i~ -(l, 115.18
Total - Hot (AHB) 17,521,12 15,047,51
Inveslments outside India

.
Investments In India 17,522.12 15,0047,52

Dotatls o( Investments •

Particulars Aut
March 31, 1022

I Invostmants measured at Cost
Invostmenls In Equity shares of subsldl.rles (Unquoted):

(Fully paid up)
Olallol Systems LImIted (reler foot note I)

Synegra EMS Limited
Telesmart SCSlimited (refer (oot note I)

314.09

Amount

7,031.;1
(1,790.21)
5,241.50

Nos

4,288,36
1,555.96

296,5.j
TOlal . Gross
Less: Allowance for impairment loss

6,140,86
(2,065,88)

Fae.Valuo Aut
March 31, 2012

Asat
Mirth 31, 2013

Total· Net

2 Invostments measured at Amortised Cost
Invostments In bonds (Quoted) (ref.r note 3):

Cholamandalam Perp NCOSerles POlIO 12,9~
Tata Power Company limited 20n . NCO10,m
Canara Bank BOPerpetual· 9.55"
Cholamandalam Investment and finance Company Limited • NCO
8.80"
Mahlndra Rural housing Finance LId 2017 . NCO8.~
HOFCBank limited Perpetual· BO8.85"
Tata Motors Finance Umlted Perpetual NCO·11,10"
Bajaj Finance ltd 2027 . NCO8.15"
nta Capital Finandal Services Limited 2022 • NCO8.45"
LaT Infrastructure Finance Company Limited ·NCO 7,65"
LaT Infrastructure Finance Company Limited· NCO 8,81"
UPPower Corporation Limited· NCO10.15"
North Eastern Electric Power Corporation Limited· HCO7.68S

I(IC.IBank 008 tier ·11 O.~
Tata Sons Ltd NCO. 9.5«
MaM Financial Services Ltd 2031 ·7.35:r.
State Bank of India Unsecured Rated Listed AddItional TIer I Non
Convertible Bond· 7.72Y.

8.50" Muthoot flncorp limited
Punjab National Bank TIer" • 8.93"
Kotak Mahlndra Bank limIted Basel III perp • 8.10"
State Bank of India perp . 100 year· 7.55"
LaT Finance Limited Tier" (sertes-s] • 9.95"
Punjab National Bank (TIER II) Bonds . 9.2~
LaT Finance limIted MLD
TATA Capltlll Financial Services Limited· 7.89"
LaT finance Limited· 8.75"
MlIhlndra & Mahindra finandal Services LTD . 7.9O:r.
Bank or India (Series XI) • 9.8OJ.
PNB Housing Finance LImited Bonds (SerIes XVlI.8)- 9.48J.
l & T Finance Limited· 8.90"

10,OO,COO
10,00,000
10,00,000
10,00,000

1,000
25,00,000
25,00,000
10,00,000
10,00,000
1,00.000

10,00.000
10,00.000

1.00.00,000

10,00,000 10
10,00,000 10

5 40,00,000 40,00,000 201.20
1,00.00,000 2 2 204.50

10.00,000 16 16 167.50
10.00.000 11 117.47
10,00,000 20 200.23
10.00,000 50 529.18
10.00.000 9 92.87
10,00,000 50 523.41
10,00.000 8 88.49
10,00.000 25 252.66
10,00,000 ~ ~19~ :_~ __ ~2~05~.~26~__ --=--:-:-~~r.::;-~)7~

4,551.90 5'056'~f"O't- ~OLO~

b I~ ~I'
4 ~IJ

~OLO/- ~ ~
-.../ 1--(;) \ S' ~\,'

As at
MII"eh 31, 1023

4,07-4,98

2"1.65
590.01
100.59

320.90
320,94
302.57
343.01
50.63

210.01
312.94
134.60
102.68
206.34
348,54
163.53
210.83

3100
100.65
103.85
202.68
204.52
170.85

1

10
10

4,10,00,000
1,50,00,000

28,80,000

4,471.12
2,560.59

4,~,59,8S7
2,50,00.000

40
55
10

30

30
28
30
5

20,000
12
5

10
20

365
15
20

3

5,00,000
10,00,000
10,00,000 100.5810

YJ

30
320.90
320.94

10,00,000

JO
5

342.74
5D.63

10
20

102.29
206.13

210.8320

3
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year end'!d MlIrch 31, 2023
(Amount In INfl Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

HOI Amount
Particulars Faco Value AHt Aut Aut Aut

MIIrch 31, 2023 /larch 31, 2022 IMrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Flxod Doposlts (Unquoted) -
FIxed Doposlt wIth BaJaj Flnence Limited (refer foot note 2) 15,00,00.000 3 1,537.31

1,537.31

3 Invostmonts measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Mutua( funds (Unquoted)
HDfe Mutual Fund
HDFCLiquid Fund· Direct Plan· Growth 1.000 57M30 2~.02
HDFCCorporate Bond Fund· DIrect Plan- Growth 10 3.90.996.~66 3.90,996.~66 107.99 103,54

!Clel Mutual Fund
lelCI Prudontlal Banking & PSUDebt Fund· Growth 10 20.67.52~,707 20.67.52~.707 569.54 540.34
lerel Prudential Corporate Bond Fund· Growth 10 21,17.912.167 24.35,703.391 528.89 576.19
telCI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund· Direct Plan· Growth 10 4,93,524.038 4.,93,524.038 128.45 121.34
ICICIPrudential Short Term fund· Growth Option 10 40,817.002 2,50,792.088 20.62 119.85
lelCI balance Advantage Fund· Growth 10 78,693,35~ 51.205.961 "5.47 25,37

Kotek Mahlndra Mutual Fund
Kotok Bond Fund Short Term· Growth· Regular Plan 10 15.0-4,985.518 15,04.985.518 663.94 64M3

Blrla Sun Lite Mutual fund
Blrla sun Ufe floating rate fund ·growth ·regular plan 10 76,645,066 1,27,134.481 224.53 353.32

Adltya Dtrla sun Itfe floating rate fund growth dIrect pia" 100 1,75,327,342 525.26

SBIMutual fund
SSIShort Term Debt fund·Regular Plan·Growth 10 ~0.77,36M52 40.77,363.~52 1,106.21 1.061,98

Frenklln Templeton Mutual Fund
Franklin India Short term Income Pian· Retail Plan· Segregated 1.000 13.649.982 18.290.977 12.75
Portfolio 2 (10.90% Vodafone Id~a Ltd 02S~p2023 (Pie 03Sep2021) •
Growth Optfon)

Invesco Mutual Fund
Invesco IndIa Ultra Short Term Fund Plan Growth 10 10,022.335 10,022,335 230.95 220.30
Invesco India Short Term Fund· Regular Plan 10 7,725,541 7.725.541 2504.42 244.55

HSBCMutual Fund
HSBCCorporate Bond fund • Direct Growth ( Formerly L & T Trtple

10 2,52,757.312 9,85,570.099 164.44 619,53
Ace Bond Fund· Direct Plan,Growth)
HSBCShort Duration Fund • Direct Growth (formerly L & T Short

10 28,97,136,850 28.97.1)6,850 680,93 655.07
Term Bond Fund· Direct Plan· Growth)

Bandhan Mutual Fund
Bandllan BankIng a PSU Debt fund· Direct Plan· Growth ( Formerly

10 19.40,480.415 19,40,480.415 0414.35 395,84
IDFCBankIng & PSU Debt Fund· Direct Plan- Growth)
Bandhan Bond Fund . snon Term Plan· Growth ( formerly IDfC Bond 10 33.384,349 16,36
Fund· Short Term Plan· Growth)
Bandhan DynamIc bond fund· Growth· regular plan ( Formerly IDfC 10 10.77.845,928 )09,21
Dynamic Bond fund growth regular)

Edelweiss Mutual Fund
EdelweIss NIFTYPSU Bond P·lus SOL Index Fund . 2026 Direct Plan 10 18.37.832.906 18,37.832.906 203.46 197.39
Growth

6.191,041 5,915.92
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Notes formlnspal't of thlt Standalone FinancIal StatemenU for the year ended March ll, 202l
(Amount In INRlekhs, unless otherwlie stated)

Face Value Aut
March ll, 201l

A'it A, at
March l', 101~ March 31,2022

7,500 3~0 ~9.30
49.30

(~9.30)

19,312.33 17,162.70
l,nO,ll (2 11~.18

17,522.12 1~ 0~7.52

4,~51.90 5.0~6.62
12,192.16 9,331.20

~,364.52 4.,840.31
6,19Ul ',915.92

Pro'oron<. Shares (Unquoted)
Infrnstrllcture leasing and FInancial Services Umfted· Prelerence
Shoros • 16.46%

Partlculan
Amount

Aul
March 31 I 2022

Total· Gross
lo!sl Allowance 'or ImpaIrment toss
Tolnl· Net

Totnltnvertments· Gross
Total Impairment

Total lnvestments- Net

Aligrogate book value ol!
Quoted In~stments
Unquoted Investments

Aggrogate markot VAluo 01:
Quoted In~stments
Unquoted Investments

Footnote:-
1 Pursuant to the apPfoval of Scheme of Amalgamation by National Company lllW Trtbunal • Mumbal BrMch vide order dattd March 03, 2023 one 01 the subsidiary

retesmart SCSlimited (Telesmart) Is amatgamated with another subsidiary Olglsol Systems limited (Oltlscl) w.e.f April 01,2022. The Scheme hu become effectlvo on
the date 0( filIng with Registrar of Companies which Is May O~. 1013. As per ~ Scheme Olglsol will Issue ·19,59,857 shares (Cace value 01 IHR 1/., with share lair
valued at INR8.41. The shares pending allotment as at the year end have been aUotted by the Board 01 Olrectors 01 0181$01Systems limited at Its meeting held on May
17,2023.

2 Fixed deposIts are pledged agaInst Loan obtaIned by Ollll~ Systems LImIted (wholly owned subsidiary) (March 31, l021It!R Hll).
3 Investment In Bonds Includes accrued Int~est INR 17"'.68 In the current yur and 210.83 I~ In the previous year.
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Smartllnk Holdings limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14 Other Non Financial Assets
Aut Aut

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
6.61 10.90

12.50 5.17
7.33 7.93

51.17 40.85
77.61 64.85

Aut Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

15.64 <1<1.44
115.64 44.44

Particulars

Prepa expenses
Surplus In Gratuity fund (funded) (Refer note 35)
Advance to vendor
Balonce with govemmentauthorltfes
Total

15 Trade Payables

Particulars

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

TOllll outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total

Based on the Informatfon available with the Company, there ere no outstDnding dues lind payments made to any supplier of goods
lind services beyond the specified period under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMEDAct]. There Is
no Interest payable or paid to IIny suppliers under the said Act.

Particulars Aut
March 31,2023

Aut
March 31, 2022

(I) Others (undisputed)
Unbflled Dues
Payable Not Due
Less than 1 year
1·2 years
2·3 years
Morc than 3 years

20.84 23.22

92.11
2.69

20.59
0.29
0.31
0.03

44.Total

16 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

Partlcular1
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowing measured at amortised cost
Unsecured

Lease liabilities 147.31 180.22
147.31 180.22Total

17 Other Financial Uabffltfes
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022Particulars

Deposits 20.17 4.37
Employee Payable 33.97 33.96
Unpaid dividend' 1.84 4.14
Financial Guarantee Obligation 12.71 2.38
Asset Retirement Obligation 8.58 7.92
Total 77.27 52.77
, During the year INR 1.42 lakhs (March 31,2022 INR 1.43 lakhs) was transferred to the Investor Education and Protection fund.
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18 Provisions

Asat
March 31, 2022

Asat
March 31, 2023Particulars

Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 5.07 5.35
Total 5.07 5.35

19 Other Non Financial liabilities
Asat

March 31, 2022
As at

March 31, 2023
Particulars

Statutory dues payable
Rent received In advance

4.14
6.34

3.35
.0.45

Total 3.8010....8

20 Equity Share Capital
The Company has only one class of equity share capital having a par value of INR2/· per share, referred to herein as eqUity shares.

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022Particulars

700.00 700.00
700.00 700.00

199.50 266.00

,66.50
199.50 199.50

Asat As at
March 31 2023 March 31,2022

99,75,000 1,33,00,000

(33)25,000)
99,75,000 99,75,000

Authorized
3,50,00,000 Equity Sharesof INR2/· each

Issued. Subscribed and paid up
99,75,000 Equity Sharesof INR2/· each, fully paid-up

Less: NIL (Previous Year:33,25,OOO)Equity Sharespurchased under Buy·back scheme
Total

(a) Reconciliation of eqUity shares outstanding at the beslnnfng and at the end of the year

Particulars

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issuedduring the year
Less: Buybackduring the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on December 04, 2020 and the Shareholders of the Company through postal ballot on 10th
February, 2021 had approved the proposal of the Company to buy·back upto 33,25,000 fully pald·up equity shares of INR2/· each at a price of INR95/·
per share (aggregating to 17.43,. of the fully paid-up Equity ShareCapital and Free Reservesof the Company), payable In cash for an aggregate amount
not exceeding INR31,58,75,000/· from the existing shareholders of the Company under Tender Offer Mechanism. The offer was kept open from April 30,
2021 to May 14, 2021. The Company had bought back 33,25,000 Equity Sharesand the shareswere extinguished on May 27,2021.

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR2/· per share. Each shareholder Is entitled for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the board of directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders In the ensuing annual general meeting, except In the case of
Interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of company, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company after
distributions of all preferential amounts, In proportion to their shareholdlng.

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5%of the agsregate shares In the Company
Asat As at

Ma~ch31, 2g22March 31, 2023Name of the shareholder
No of s~ares % of holdlnNo of shares " of holding

7.97%

48,00,163 048.12% "'6,74,160 46.86%
9,34,833 9.37%

Mr. KamalakshaR. Nllik
Ms. Aratl K. Nalk
Mrs. takshena A. Sharma
Mrs. SudhaK. Nalk

9.37"
7.97%
4.69"

9,34,833
7,94,608
4,67,417

7,94,608
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Particulars

gro ate number of shares bought back during the period of five ears Immodlatel
No of Ihllros
outstandlna

No of sher••
boulht·back during

03.2023
03.2022
03.2021
03.2020
03.2019

99,75,000
99,75,000

1,33,00,000
1,33,00,000
1,69,50,000

33,25,000

36,50,000
56,00 000

per records of the Company, Including Its register of shareholders/members and other declarations recetved from shllreholdcrs regarding beneflellli
erest, the above shareholdlng represents both legal and beneficial ownershtps of shares.

ails of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Promoter name

KamalakshaR. Nalk
Aratt K. Nalk
· lakshana A. Sharma
· SudhaK. Natk
Amlt Vtrendra Sharma
Nalk HUF

As at
March 31, 2023

No. Of Share. " of total shares " Change during
the year

48,00,163 48.12% 2.70%
9,34,833 9.37X
7,94,608 7.97%
4,67,417 4.69%

17,891 0.18% 100%
1,90,493 1.01%

7 ,15,405 71. 4al

Promoter name

Kamalakshll R. Nalk
Aratt K. Natk
· lakshana A. Sharma
• SudhaK. Nalk
Naik HUF

Aut
March 31,2022

No. Of Shares " of total shares " Change during
the year

46,74,160 46.86% 29.71%
9,34,833 9.37% 29.71%
7,94,608 7.97% 29.71%
4,67,417 4.69% 29.71%
1,00,493 1.01% 29.71%

69,71,511 69.90%al

her equity

Particulars
As lit

March 31, 2023
As lit

March 31, 2022

neral Reserve
rplus In Statement of Profit and loss account
atutory Reserve
pital Contribution
pltat RedemptIon Reserve

MOel Reserveon FInancial Instruments
MOel Reserveon defined benefit plans

tal

5,567.20
11,146.92

899.50
92.95

400.60
2.27
0.57

18,110.01

5,567.20
12,566.18
1,254.32

92.95
400.60

4.02
19,885.27
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Smartllnk Holdlngs limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone FInancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

(A) GonorClIReserve (GR)"
Aut

March 31, 2022
Aut

March 31, 20~3
Particulars

Opening balance
Add: Transfer from Surplus In ProfIt and Lossaccount

5,567,20 5,567.20

Closlng balance ~,567,20 . 5,567,20

, General reserve Is free reserve available for distributIon as recommended by Board In accordance with requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013

(B) Surplus I (deficIt) In the Statement of Profit and Loss •

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2023

Opening balance
Add : Net profit I (loss) for the year

11,146.92
,774.08

12,693,96
,2,895,35

Amount available for appropriations 12,921.00 15,589.31
Less : Appropriations
Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve
Less: PaId to Shareholders for purchase of shares under buyback scheme
Less: Buyback Tax

(354.82) (579,07)
(3,158.75)

{704,57)
Closing balance . 12,566.18 11,146.92

• ThIs represents the cumulatIve profits of the Company, It will be utilized In accordance wIth the provisions of the CompanIes Act,.
2013,

(C) Statutory Reserve (As per section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of IndIa Act 1934)·

Particulars As at
March 31',2022

Aut
March 31, 20~3

Opening balance
Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss account.

899.50
354.82

320,43
579:07.

Closing balance 1,2~4.32 899.50

'This represents provision created under section 45·IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, It will be utilized In accordance with
the provisions of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

(0) Capital Contribution"
As at

March ~1, 20~3.
As at

March 31, 202~Particulars

Opening balance
Add I (less): Changeduring LIlt:! year

92.95 92.95

Closing balance 92.95 92.95

• Represents impact of Interest on loan to subsidiaries by promoters at lower than market rate of Interest.

(E) Capital Redemption Reserve·
ASilt

March 31, 2023
As at

March 31, 2022Particulars

400.60 334.10Opening balance
Add: NIL Equity Shares (March 31, 2022 33,25,000) of INR 2/. each purchased under
buyback scheme 66.50.

400.60400.60Closing balance

'This is on account of transfer towards buyback of equity shares, It will be utilized In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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Notes forml. (Amount In

(F) FVTO

Openl
Add I
Closln

• Repre
reserve
relevan

(G) FVTO

Openl
Add I
Closln

• Repre
Interes

oldlngs Limited
nil part of the Standalone Financial Statement$ for the year ended March 31, 2023
INR takhs, unless otherwise stated)

CI Reserve on financial Instruments"
As at

March 31, 2023
Aut

March 31, 2022Particulars

2.27
(2.27)

2.27ng balance
(tess): Change during the year
g balance ']..27

sents changes In the fair value of certain Investments In debt securltfes. These changes are accumulated within the MOCI
within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to Surplus In the Statement of Profit and Loss when the

t debt securities are derecognlsed.

CI Reserve on defined benefit plans·
Aut

March 31, 2023
Aut

March 31,2022Particulars

0.57
3.45

2.89
,2.32)

ng balance
(less): Change during the year
g balance 4.02 0.57

sents remeasurements I.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts Included In the net
, expenses on the ne deftned b".1tt ",blUcyare "'".,'" ~ tho ot~~"".,"~"",. ,."ead of profit ,,'" toss,

s>. .

.<



~--- ......-
Smartllnk Holdings limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

22 Interest Income

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

On financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Interest on preference shares 2.53 4.78

2.53 4.78
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on bonds 349.68 412.24
Interest on deposits with banks 37.18 42.88
Interest on deposits with financial Institutions 38.34 6.24
Other Interest Income 0.24 0.60

425.44 ~61.96
Total 427.97 466.74

23 Fees and commission Income

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Guarantee CommIssionIncome 12.24 9.62
Total 12.24 9.62

24 Net Gain On Fair Value Changes·

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March J 1, ,2022

On financial Instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 317.78 =342.<18
Total 317.78 342.48
Fair Value changes:
. Reallsed 199.44 686.28
. Unrealised 118.34 (343.80)
°Falr value changes In this schedule are other than those arl.slngon account of Interest Income/expense.

25 Other Income

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 202~ March 31, 2022

Gain on derecognition of RoUassets 2.72
Interest on income tax refund 0.44
Profit on Property, plant and equipment sold I written off (net) 3.57 0.46
Sale of Scrap . 0.85
Foreign Exchange gain· (net) 0.01 0.01
Reversal of Impairment on financial Instruments (refer foot note) 143.?5 2,818.3~
Total 150.69 2,819.64
Footnote :.
Current year reversal of INR143.95 lakhs pertain to Impairment on financial Instruments pursuant to the approval of scheme of
amalgamation of subsidiary Company (refer foot note 1 in note 10).
DUring the previous year, the company has reversed Impalrement of INR2818.32 lakhs of Its Investment In subsidiary Diglsol
Systems limited.

26 Finance Costs

Particulars
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022
On Financial liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

Interest on deposits
Interest on borrowings

Other Interest expense

0.291.13
12.59
2.97

•.,:-" --+- .... _:-.."';.., 16.69Total
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Smartllnk Holdings LImited
Notes formIng part of the Standalone FInancIal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

27 ImpaIrment on fInancIal Instruments

Partlculars
For the Year Endod

March 31,2023
For the Yellr Ended

March 31, 2022
On FInancIal Instruments measured at FVTOCI
Investment in Preference Shares (Interest) 0.26 4.78

0.26 4.78Total

28 Employee BenefIts Expenses

Particulars
For the Yelll' Ended

March 31, 2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022
264.97

6.81
1.79
12.34

257.54
7.12
1.32

10.50

SalarIes and wages
ContributIon to provIdent and other funds (Refer Note 35)
GratuIty expenses (Refer Note 35)
Staff welfare expenses

276.48285.91Total

29 Depreciation and amortisatIon expense

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2022PartIculars

·62.78 64.21
4,65

39.45

DeprecIation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 12)
AmortIzatIon on IntangIble Assets (refer note 13)
DeprecIatIon on Investment Property (refer note 11) 39.44

108.31102.22Total

30 Other expenses

PartIculars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Mllrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rent, rate and taxes 29.63 20.70
Repairs and maintenance 222.29 52.13

Communication expenses 6.27 8.00
Prfntlng and statIonery expenses 1.90 0.58

Advertisement expenses 12.18 13.42

DIrector's fees 22.45 14.17

AudItor's fees and expenses (Refer footnote) 15.28 15.22

Legal and professional charges 79.07 81.60

Insurance 7.98 11.84

Annual maintenance expense 12.54 11.80

Software connectivity license/maintenance expenses 42.67 24.98

Travelling and conveyance expenses 29.76 19.70

Power and fuel expenses 89.18 69.93

MembershIp and subscription fees 0.40 0.14

Sundry balance written off (net) 8,18

Bad Debts Written Off 58.16

Ortlce Expenses 13.54 11.51

Application, registration & filing Fees 0.72 0,61

Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 57) 7.65 12.89

Miscellaneous expenses 19.02 15.90

Bank charges 0.26 0.06

Total 679.13 385.18
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Smartllnk Holdings LImited
Notes (ormlng part of the Standalone Flnancfal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AmollntIn INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Noto:-
Payment to Auditors

for the Year Ended
March 31, 2023

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2022Particulars

Chllrged to Auditor's fees and Expenses:
Statutory audit fees Including GSTexpensed
Reimbursement of expenses Including GSTexpensed

14,17
0,24

14.17
0,40

14,41 14,57

Other certification fees Including GSTexpensed 0.87 0,65
15.28 15.22Total

31 Income tax expense
(A) Deferred tax relates to the following:

for the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 20.22

1.28 1.35
12.41
2.0.1

1.0.3 1.14
2.31 16,91

161.89 155.10.
20.6.12 173.07
368.0.1 328.17

365.70. 311.26

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 20.23 March 31, 20.22

(311.26) (385.15)
(53.29) 73.11

(1.1.6) 0..78
(365.70.) (311.26)

For the Year Ended for the Year Ended
March 31, 20.23 March 31, 20.22

53.29
73.11

53.29 73.11

Particulars

Deferred tax assets
On account of timing difference In retlral and other employee benefits
On account of fair value of financial assets designated at MOCI
Provision for doubtful debts I advances
On disallowance u/s 40a of Income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred tax liabilities
On property, plant and equipment
On account of fair value of financial assets designated at MPL

Deferred tax liability (Net)

(8) Reconciliation of deferred tax assetsl (liabilities) (net):

Particulars

Opening balance as of April 0.1
Tax assets! (lIabllltles) recognized In statement of profit and loss
Tax assets! (liabilities) recognized In OCI

-on re-measurements gain of post-employment benefit obligations
Closing balance as at March 31

(e) Deferred tax assets! (liabilities) to be recognIzed In Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

Tax l1ablllty
Tax asset
Deferred tax assets! (liabilities) to be recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss

(D) Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss

Particulars
For the Year Ended

March 31, 20.23
For the Year Ended

March 31, 20.22
· Current tax
• Deferred tax charge! (Income)
· Adjustments In respect of current Income tax of previous year

334.89
53.29

(49.72)

10.8.42
(73.11)

6.90.
42.21338.46Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss



Smartllnk Holdings Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(E) Income tax expense charged / (credit) to OCI

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1.16 (0.78)

1.16 (0.78)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31,. 2023 March, 31,2022

2,112.54 2,937.56
25.168% 25.168%

531.68 739.33

(704.02)

1.92

2.02
(53.38)

(94.06)
(49.72) 6.90

338.46 42.21

Net faIr value (galn)/loss on debt securities

Net loss/(galn) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Income tax expense charged / (credit) to OCI

(F) Reconciliation of tax charge

Particulars

Profit before tax

Tax Rate
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable

Tax effects of:
• Item not deductible for tax

· CSRexpenditure not allowed for tax purpose

· Leasehold land amortisation not claimed In Income tax

• Others

Effect due to tax paid on exceptional Item at a lower rate (net of business loss)

Earlier year adjustment

Income tax expense
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Smartllnk HoldIngs LImIted
Notes formIng part of the Standalone FInancIal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2013
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwl.se stated)

32 EarnIngs/loss per share

811slcearnIngs /(Ioss) per share amOU'lts are calculated by dividIng the profltlloss for the year attr1buteble to eQUIty holders by the welshted
evcrese number of equIty shares outstandIng during the year.

The weighted average number of ordInary shares outstandIng dur1ng the period Is the number of ordInary shares outstondlnB at the beQlnnlng of
the perIod, adjusted by the number of ordInary shares bought back or Issued dIKing the perIod multiplIed by II tlme·welghtlng factor. TIle time'
weIghting factor Is the number of days that the shares are outstandIng as a proportIon of the total nunber of days In the yellr.

The followlnB reflects the Income and share data used In the basIc and diluted EPScomputatIons:

PartIculars
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023
For the Year Endod

March 31, 2022
OrdInary equity shareholders
ProfIt/ (Loss) attrfbutable to ordInary equIty holders
WeIghted average number of eQUIty shares
Face Value per share
BasIc earnIngs per share (INR)
Diluted earnIngs per share (INR)

l,n4.08
99.75

2
17.79
17.79

2,895.35
10U~

2
27.59
27.59

33 ContlnBent liabIlities

Particulars Aut
March 31, 20~3

As at
March 31, 2022.

Bank guarantees gIven In favour of Etectrldty Department· Government of Goa 71.61 71.61

Corporate guarantees given In favour of banks on behalf of Dlglsol Systems LImited (Whoity owned
subsidIary)
HDFC Bank LImited
8ajaj Finance Limited

3,000.00
2,000.00

Corporate guarantees given In favour of banks on behalf of Synegra EMS LImited (Wholly owned
subsidiary)
HDFC Bank LImited
Small Industries Development Bank Of IndIa

1,300.00
270.00

Total 6,641.61

34 CapItal and other commItments

2,000.00

1,300.00

3,371.61

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2023
As lit

March 31,2022

719.9!i
Estimated amount of contracts remainIng to be executed on capital account
Nnn·rllnrpll~tlm leil5e lIabilltfes undlsc;ountad basis net of liability rccognlscd(RC!fer tlote 36)

35 Employee benefits

(Al Defined Contribution Plans
During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement 0( Profit and loss·

2.7S.~
734.22

For the Year Ended
PartIculars March 31, 20ll

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Employer's ContrIbutIon to Provident Fund and Pension Fund
Employer's contributIon to Natlonat Penson Scheme
Employer's contrfbutlon to Employee State Insurance Scheme
Total

4.43
1.94
0.44
6.81

4.72
1.76
0.64
7.12

• '0,

J' ",~"'"...,;.......,
'0' ....- , ,

.
ij

»r".' -/. . .- - I.~.~-, \ ,..,,;)'
. .:.. .;:.:.::..-.::~.



SmartHnk Holdings LImited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(8) Defined benefit plans
a) Grlltulty payable to employees

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan lind governed by payment of GratuIty Act, 1972. EV()ry employee who hos completed five yoars
or more of services Is entitled to a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salnry for ench completod yenr of services. The schoma Is
funded through a polley with L1C.

Particulars Asat Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

I) Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum) 7,20% 7.27%
Rate of Increase In Salary 6.00% 5.00%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 13.07 12.77
Attrition rate PS: 0 to 5 : 5% PS: 0 to 5: 9%

ps: 5 to -10 : 0% PS: 5 to 40 : 0%
Mortaltty IAlM (2012·14) Ult IALM (2012·14) Ult

II) Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 24.82 23.71
Interest cost 1.82 1.49
Current service cost 2,17 2.03
Benefits paid (5,14)
Actuarial (galn)1 loss on obligations· Due to change In Financial Assumptions 0.31 (1.20)
Actuarial (galn)1 loss on obligations· Due to experience (4.71) 3,93
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 24.41 24,82

III) Change In the fair value of plan assets:
Opening fair value of plan assets 29.99 33,29
Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Asset 0.01
Interest Income 2.20 2.20
Contributions by employer 4.50
Benefits paid (5.14)
Return on plan assets excluding Interest Income 0.22 (0.37)
Closing fair value of plan assets 36.91 29.99

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2022

·'ncluded In Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 28).

Particulars

Iv) Expense recognized In the Statement of Profit and loss
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost (net)
Total expenses recognized In the Statement Profit and loss'

2.17 2.03

(0.38) (9·71)
1.79 1.32

(4.40)
(0.22)

2.73
0.37

v) Expense recognized In Other comprehensive Income

).10

Particulars
For the Year Ended

March 31,2023
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022

Actuarial (gain) I loss on Obligation for the period
Return on plan assets excluding Interest Income
Net actuarial (gains) 1 losses recognised In OCI (4.62)

Particulars
As at

March 31. 2023
As at

March 31, 2022
vi) Assets and liabilities recognized In the Balance Sheet:
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

24"'1
J6.91

24.82
29.99

Net asset 1 (liability) recognized In Balance Sheet' 12.50
·'ncluded in Other Non Financial Assets (Refer note (4)
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II) Expected contribution to the fund In the next year INR2.18 lakh,

III)A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assum tlon Is .s shown below:
For tht Year Endtd

March 31, ~2023
For tht Ytar End,d

March 31, 2022
Impact on Present Value obligation

+1"
22.93
27.Q2

27.00
22.86

hange In discount rate
hange In salary escalation rate

22.27
26.86

26.87
22.23

x) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Years
For the Year Endod For the Year Endod

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

ear 1
ear 2
ear 3
ear 4
ear 5
ear6 to 10

0.13 0.14
0.13 0.17
0.15 0.18
0.20 0.22
2.05 8.98

20.39 18.31

) Leave encashment
Aut Aut

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

7.20% 7.m;
6.cm 5.00:1;
13.07 12."

PS: 0 to 5: 5S PS: 0 to 5: 9S
PS: 5 to ~O: 0% PS: 5 to ~O : OS

lALM(2012,14) IJIt IALM(2012·1<4)Ult

Particulars

ctuarlal assumptions
Iscount rate (per annum)
ate of Increase In Salary
xpected average remaining workfni! lives of employees (years)
ttrltlon rate

ortallty

eases
peratlng leases where Company Is a lessee:

When the Intermediate lessor enters Into the sublease which Is clllssified as Operating lease, It retains the lease liability and the right·of·use
sset relating to the head lease In Its statement of financial position. During the term of the sublease, the Intermediate lessor: Recognises a
epreclatlon charge for t.he right·af·use asset and Interest on the lease liability and lease Income from the sublease.

urther Ind AS116 requires Inclusion of vartabte tease payments based on Index or a rate.
ariable lease payments based on an Index or a rate: Vanable tease payments based on an Index or a rate (for example, linked to a consumer
rice Index, a benchmark Interest rate or II market rentat rate) are part of the lease liability. From the perspective of the lessee, these
ayments are unavoidable, because any uncertainty relates only to the measurement of the liability but not to Its existence. Variable lease
ayments based on lin Index or II rate are Initially measured using the Index or the rate lit the commencement date (Instead of forward
teslfndlces). this means that an entity does not forecast future changes of the index/rate; these chilnges lire tllkpn Into account at the point
time In which lease payments change.

owever, based on management's estimates that lease payment Increases 10%after a period of II perfod of three years. Therefore, based on
anagement judgement, estimates and conservative approach it Is estimated, lease liability has been calculated based on these estimated cash
ows.

oHowing are the changes in the carrying vlllue of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 202~;
Category of ROUAss.et TotalParticulars

Land & Bulldln s Prepaid Rent
alance as on April 01, 2021 61.34 1.68 63.02

Additions
eletlon
epreclattcn 18.~7 0.63

42.97 1.05

23.18 0.81
7.35 0.24

12.....

alance as on March 31, 2022
ddltfons
eletlon
epreclatfon

19.00
044.02

23.99
7.59

ala nee as on March 31, 2023 12.4~

The aggregate depreclatlon expense on ROUassets Is Included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit and loss.

::':... -:..



Smartllnk Holdings LImited

Notes formIng part of the Standalone FInancIal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The following is the movement hI lease liabilities during the year ended March 31 2023',
Particulars Amount

Balance as on April 01, 2021 196.6"
Additions
Deletion

Finance cost accrued during the period 15.04
Payment of lease liabilities (31 46)
Balance as on March 31, 2022 180.22

Particulars Amount

Balance as on April 01, 2022 180.22
AddItions ~.Deletion (25.86)
Finance cost accrued during the period 112.59
Payment of lease iiabilitfes ... (19.6")
Balance as on March 31, 2023 ~

'''7.32 'IThe table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars
Asat As at

March 31, 2023 Marc.h 31, 2022
Less than one year 11.59 32.45
One to five years 57.93 72.30
More than five years 797.75 809.69
Total 867.27 914.44

The Company does not face a slgniffcant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Lease rentals paid on short term leases for current year INR 2.16 lakhs (prevl~ year INR NIL)

(B) Operating leases where Company as a lessor:

The Company has entered into cancellable operating leases on its Investment property portfolio con.slsting of certain office and manufacturing
buildings. These leases have terms of between 11 months to 60 months. CertaIn leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental
charge on an annual basIs according to prevailIng market condItIons.

The total rental income on assets given on operating leases amounts to INR 196.50 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 INR
90.53 lakhs).

Future minimum rentals receivables under operating leases as at March 31 are, as follows:
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Within one year 213.56 131.25
After one year but not more than five years 701.20 246.31

37 Related party disclosures:
(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified and certified by the Company:

SubsIdIary Companies
DIgi50l Systems limited

Synegra EMS LImited
Telesmart SCSLimited (Merged with Dlgisol Systems Limited w.e.f April 01,2022)

EnterprIse over whIch key management person Is able to exercIse significant Influence.

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik (HUF)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk· Executive Chairman
Mr. Krlshnanand M. Gaonkar . Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Bhanubhal R. Patel· Non Executive Independent Director
Mr. Pankaj M. Baliga • Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Pradeep A. Rane . Non Executive Independent Director
Mr. Pradeep G. Vande· Non Executive Independent Director (retired w.e.f January 04, 2022)
Ms. Arati K: Nal~ . Executive Director
Mr. K. G. Prabh& • Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Urjita Damle • Company Secretary

..
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SmertUnk Hold:nBs limited
Not~ forming pArt of tho St.nda!one Plaanclal StatemonU f?r tf\~ yeer o'~rled /.\~rctl ~ I, 202:;
(Amount In INn lokhs. unless otherwf~o stated)

Relatlvos of key manlgoment personnel:
Ms. ArMI K. Nalk
Mrs. Sll~hn K. Nalk .
Mr$. lnksh3na A. SIIarma . I:'

c..

(8) Dotnll. of transacttons wIth related party In tho ordl~ ('r.~!,_?!..!.>u~:~£!:!~::~~·,.:",."r ~('1
Fer 1:'0 y..~rtil

PllrtlculMS

Rent Incomo
Olglsol $)'Stems t:mlted
Synegrn fMS LimIted

Rent E~ponse
01811015)I$t("1'I1Umll('lf

Ro.nt Written oIf
0181101Syste-nlllmlted
Synogra EJ.\5limited

Purchaso of NetworklnJ Products
Olglsol Systems llm'ted -

Charged towards CSRexpenles
0181101SY5tems limIted

Investmont In Subsidiary
Synegra EMSLimited

ManagerIal Remuncrltton
Mr. K. G. Prabhu

Short·term employee benefits
Post 'employment benefits

Ms. UrJlta DNr.lc
snort-term employee benelHs
Post-employment t~neffts

DIrector Sitting Fecs
Mr. Krlshnond M. C30nkar
Mr. Panka! M. B~IIBa
Mr. I'rade"?p A. qaM
N.r. Bhanubhal R. Patel
Mr. I'rodeep G. Pande

Consldoratlon paid for Ouy"eck of Sheros
Mr. Kamalaksha R. I~alk
Mr. KamalakshD R. Nalk (HUF)
Ms. Aartl K. Nail<
Mrs. Sudha K. Naill
Mrs. lakshana A. Sharma

Bank Guarantee !lIven during the year on behalf of
Olglsol Systems limited
Synesra EMSlimited

Bank Guarantee revoked !!urlng tne!' year
0181$01Systems LimIted
Synegl'll EMSlimited

--1'. __ ..,",---- ...~
- Jl~d~arc.!~ J I...:OJ~~ __ for the yt Ir end~d "'.arch 31, 2022
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Smartlfnk Holdings LImited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Flna.nclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Balances due from and due to related parties

Particulars Aut
March 31,2022

Aut
March 31, 2023

Amount due from related party as on:
Subsidiary Companies:

Dlglsol Systems LImited
Synegra EMSlimited
Telesmart SCSlimited

16.98
30.11

14.26
25.44
32.72

Amount of Corporate Guarantee given and outstanding as on:
Subsidiary Companies:

Olglsol Systems LImited
L-.::S;.:.;ynegraEMSlimited

5,000.00
1,570.00

2,000.00
1,300.00

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail In arm's length transactions.

38 Segment reporting
The Executlve·Chalrman of the Company acts as the chIef operating dedslon maker (COOM)of the Company In accordance with Operating
Segment (Ind AS 108), for purpose of assessIng the flnandal performance and position of the Company, and make strategic deCisions. The
Company's business activities are mainly related to !nvestments and Real Estale, which are primarily assessed as a single reportable operating
segment In accordance with Ind AS108 by the CODM.

39 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

A. Accounting classification and fair vatues
The followIng table shows the carrying amounts and faIr values of financial assets and ftnanclalllabllitles, Including their levels In the fair value
hIerarchy. It does not Include fair value Information for financial assets lind financial liabilities not measured at fair value If the carrying amount
is a reasonable approxfmatlon of fair value.

B. Measurement of fair value
The (air values of the financial assets and liabilities are Included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged In a current
transaction between willing parties, other than In a forced or lIqUIdation sale.

The following methods and a5sumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. Fair value of cash, bank balances, short· term deposits, trade and other short· term receivables. trade payables, other current liabilities and
other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these Instruments.

2. The fair value of non-current financial assets comprising of term deposits at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) are not
significantly different from the carryfng amount.

3. The fair value of lease lIabllltfes are calculated based on cash flows discounted using a CUTent lending rate. They are classified at level 3 In
the fair value hierarchy due to the Inclusion of unobservable Inputs Including own and counterparty credit rtsk.

40 fair value hierarchy
The faIr value of financial Instruments as referred to above have been classified Into three categories depending on the Inputs used In the
valuatIon technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priorlty to ~ed prices In active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1
measurements) and lowest priortty to unobservable Inputs (level 3 measurements) .

•Level 1 . level 1 hierarchy Includes financial Instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds
that have quoted price. The fair value of aU equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges Is valued using the closing price as at
the reporting period .

•level 2 . The fair value of flnandal Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity' specific estimates. If all significant Inputs required to fair
value an Instrument are observable, the Instrument is included In level 2. The fair value of Mutual funds and FVOClbonds and preference shares
are based on published net assets values or other observable market data. They are classified at level 2 In the fair value hierarchy .

• level 3 . If one or more of the significant inputs Is not based on observable market datil, the Instrument Is Included in level 3.
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Smartllnk Holdings LimIted
Notes forming part of the Standalone FInancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 1023
(Amount In INRLakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

Fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilities

PartIculars Aut As lit
Fair valult hlorarchy March 31, 1013 March 31, 1021

Flnll!lclal assets measured at amortIzed cost
Investments In Debt securities Level 3 4,551.90 5,056.62
Fixed Deposits Level) 1,537.31
Security Deposits Level 3 7.93 23.93

Financial assets measured at fair value

(II) FinAncial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss Level 2 6,191.41 5,915.92
Investments In mutual funds
(b) Trade receivables Level 2 55.36 75.38
(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive Inc Level 2 49.30
Investments In Debt securities

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
St>curlty Deposits Level 3 20.17 4.37
Lease LIabilities Level 3 147.31 180.22
Financial guarantee obligation Level 3 12.71 2.38
Asset retirement obligation Level 3 8.58 7.92

There have been no transfers between Levelland Level 2 during the period

41 Financial risk management objectives and poUcies

The Company Is exposed to various fInancial risks. These risks are categorIzed Into market risk, credit rIsk and liquIdIty risk. The Company's risk
management Is coordinated by the Board of Directors and focuses on securing long term and short term cash flows. The Company does not
engage In trading of fInancial assets for speculative purposes.

(A) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the faIr value of future cash flows of II financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices.
Market risk comprises of Interest rate risk and price risk.

(I) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk Is the risk that the faIr value or future cash flows of a flnanctal instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market Interest
rates. In order to optimise the Company's position with regards to Interest Income, treasury team manages the Interest rate rIsk by dlverslfyln!!
Its portfolio across tenures. The Company does not have exposure to the risk of changes In market Interest rates as the Company's long-term
debt obligations are with fixed Interest rates.

(II) Price risk
The Company's exposure to securities risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified In the Balance Sheet as faIr value through
OCI.

(B) CredIt risk
Credit risk is the risk of flnandal loss to the Company If a customer or counterparty to a financial Instrument falls to meet its contractual
cbttgatlons. Credit risk primarily arises from cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets measured at amortised cost and financial assets
measured at fair value through profIt or loss or other cemcrehenswe Income. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value
of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk Is to prevent losses in financial assets.

for other financial assets and Investments, the Company has an Investment policy which allows the Company to invest only with counterpartles
having a good credit rating. The Company reviews the credit worthiness of these counterpartles on an on-goIng basis. Counterparty limits may be
updated as and when required subject to approval of Board of Directors.
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Smarttlnk Holdings Limited
Notes {ormlng part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company limits Its exposure to credit risk of cash heid with bonks by den ling with highly rllted bnnks nndlnstltullons end retaining sufflclant
balances In bank accounts required to meet II month's operntlonlll costs. The MIIMllement reviews the bllhk Recounts on rogular bosls lind fund
drawdowns are planned to ensure that there Is minimal surplus cash In bank accounts.

The Company's maximum exposure to credIt risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2023 and MIIrch 31, 2022 Is the carrying
amounts as mentioned In Note 5,6,7, 8 and 10.

(C) liquidIty risk
The Company's principal sources of liquidity are 'cash and cash equivalents' nnd cash flows thot lire generated from oporlltlons. The Company
bellevcs that Its working capital Is sufficient to meet the financial liabilities wIthin maturIty period. The Company hilS no borrOWings.
Additionally, the Company has Invested Its surplus funds In fixed Income securIties or Instruments of slmllaJ proftle thereby ensuring safety of
capital and availability of liquidity as and when required. Hence, the Company carrIes a negligible liquidity rfsk.



Smartlfnk Holdings LImited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended Mllrch 31. 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

42 The Company has not given Loans or Advances In the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors. Key Management Personnel and the related
parties (as defined under Companies Act. 2013), either severally or jolntty with Dny other person.

43 Cepltal·Work·ln Progress (CWIP)

(II) For Capltal·work·ln progress ageing schedule
31 March 2023

Totel
Amount In CWIP for a period of

Projects In progress

CWIP Less than 1 year 2·3years More than 3 years1·2 yeers

Projects temporar1ly suspended

31 March 2022

total
Amount In CWIP for a period of

Projects In progress

CWIP Less than 1 year 1·2 years 2·3years Mor. then 3 years

215.70Projects temporar1ly suspended 215.70

44 Intangible assets under development
The Company does not have any Intangible assets under development during the current year and the previous year.

45 Details of Benaml Property held
The Company does not have any Benaml property. where any proceeding has been Initiated or pending against the company for holding any
Henaml property.

46 Reconciliation of quarterly returns or statements of current assets flied with banks or financial Institutions
The Company has not availed any overdraft facility I loan dunng the current year and the previous year.

47 Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or flnandallnstftutlon.

48 Relationship with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the Companies Act. 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act. 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act. 1956.

49 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
Tho Company does not have any charses or ~atlsf3ctlon which Is yet to be registered with Re!listrlll' of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

50 Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company hes complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules. 2017.



Smarttlnk HoldIngs Limited
Notes forming part of the Stllndalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INRLakhs,unless otherwise stated)

51 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
(I) The Company has not advanced or loaned or Invested funds to nny other penonts) or entlty(les), Including foreign entltlos
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(II) directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entIties Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b)provlde any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Deneflclerles

(11) The Company has not received any fund from any personts) or entlty(les), Including foreIgn entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded In writing or otherwIse) that the Compnny shall:
(a) directly or IndIrectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Pnrty (Ultimate Beneffclarles) or .
(b)provlde any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneffclarles,

52 The Company Is a Non BankIng Financial Company· Non·Systemlcally Important Non·Deposlt taking Company as per the Rese1VeBank of
India cIrcular RBI/ONBR/2016·17/44 Master Direction OHBR.PD.OO7l03.10.119/2016·17. Thus, the follOwing analytical ratios are not
applicable to the Company.
1. Capital to rtsk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR)
2. Tier I CRAR
3. TIer II CRAR
4. LIquIdity CoverageRatio.



Smartlfnk Holdings LImited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

53 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
A The below table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled,

As at M.arch3 t, 20.23 As at March 3~ 2022
Particulars Within 12 .After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 rotal

months months months months
Flnnncllli assets
Cash and cash equivalents 35.51 - 35.51 31.10 31,10
Bank Balance other than Cash and cash 1,64 601,74 803.56 4,14 1,078.44 1,082.58
equtvalonts
Investments 6,701.38 10,820,74 17,522,12 5,915.91 9,131,61 15,047,52
Receivables- Other Receivables 55,36 55,36 75.38 0,00 75,38
Other rfnanclal assets 1,45 7,93 9,38 1,30 n,93 25,23

Non Financial Assets
Tax assets (Net) 147,21 147,21 56,75 56,75
Investment Property 1,280,03 1,280.03 1,467,85 1,467,85
Property, Plant and Equipment 875.44 875,44 . 840,39 840,39
Capital work-in-progress - 215.70 215.70
Intangible assets -
Other ncn-ttnanctat assets 65,11 12,50 77,61 . 59.6~ Jj.17 64.85
Total Assets 6,860.65 13,945.59 20,806.24 6,087.51, 12,819.84 18,907.35

Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 115,64 - 115,64 44.44 44,44
Borrowings(Other than debt securities) 0,03 147.28 147,31 18,82 16;.40 180,22
Other financial liabilitIes 48,52 28,75 77.27 44.85 7,92 52,77

Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) -
Provisions 1,09 3.96 5,07 4.10 1.25 5,35
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 365.70 365,70 311.26 311,26
Other non-flnanclalltabilttles 5,70 ~.7~ 1.0,18 3,8Q - 3,80
Total LIabilities 170.98 550.49 721.47 116,01 481.83 597.84

. - .
Net 6,689,67 13,395,10, 20,084.77 5,971.50 12,338.01 18,304).51

B Public Disclosure on liquidity rIsk
(i) Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

Number of significant counterpartles I Amount (INR I % of total I % of total
Crores) deposits Ilabllttles

Not Applicable

(Ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount In INRcrore and % of total deposits)
Not Applicable

(ill) Top 10 borrowings (amount In INRcrore and % of total borrowings)
Not Applicable

(Iv) Funding Concentration based on significant Instrument/product
Sr No. Name of the Amount (INR % of Total

Instrument! crore) Liabilities
product

Not Applicable



Smartllnk Holdings Limited
Notes formIng part of the Standalone Financial Statements (or the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INRLakhs, unless otherwIse stated)

(v) Stock Ratios:
(a) CommercIal papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total

Not Applicable
(b) Non-convertIble debentures (original maturIty of less than one year) as II % of total public funds, total liabilities nod totat essets

Not Applicable
(e) Other short-term liabilities, If any as a % of total public fUnds, totalllabfllties and total assets

Particulars As at Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31,

2022
Short term lIabllttles as a % of total public funds
Short term llabllttles as a %of total LlabHltles 23.70% 19.40%
Short term liabilities as a % of total Assets 0.82%, 0.61%

(vi) InstItutional set-up for liquIdIty rIsk management
Not Applicable
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Smartllnk Holdings Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(Amount fn INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

54 UndIsclosed Income
The Company does not have any undisclosed Income which Is not recorded In the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed lIS
Income during the year (previous year) In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or surveyor any other retovam
provlslons of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

55 Dotalls of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or Invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financIal year.

56 Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital Includes Issued equltv capftal and all other equity reserves attrIbutable to the
equity holders. The Company operates as an Investment Company and consequently Is regIstered as a Non·Banklng FInancial Institution • (Non
Pubtfc Deposit Accepting) with Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

The Company does not have any borrowings In the nature of loans and advances (rom Banks, financial Institutions and others and Is cash surplus.
The cash surpluses are currently Invested In Income generating debt Instruments (Including through mutual (unds) and money market
Instruments dependIng on economic conditIons In line with Investment polley set by the Management. Safety of capital Is of prIme Importance
to ensure availability of capItal for operations. Objective of Investment polley Is to provIde safety and adequate return on the surplus funcls.

No changes were made In the objectives, potktes or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,2022.

57 As per provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company was required to spond INR 7.40 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 13.76 lakhs)
being 2%of average net profits made during the three Immediately precedIng financial years, In pursuance of Its Corporate Social Responsibility
Polfcy on the activities specified In Schedule VII of the Act. The CompDny has spent INR 7.89 lakhs (IncludIng excess of earlier year) (March 31,
2022: INR 14.00 lakhs) towards Corporate Sodal Responsibility activities as under:

A. Particulars Aut As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Gross Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 7.40 13.76

Add: Amount Unspent from previous years .
Total Gross amount required to be spent during the year 7.40 13.76

B. Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 7.651 16.351

C. Amount spent during the year on
(I) Construction/acquisition of an asset
(II) On purposes other than (i) above 7.65 12.89

D. Details related to amount spent
For the Year Ended for the Year Ended

Particular March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(I) Construction / acquisition of any asset
(If) On purpose other than (i) above

- Installation of Networking products In various schools 2.50
• Prime Minister's National Relief Fund 1.51
-Promoting healthcare - 0.57
-Contribution to Foundations / Trusts -
-Education purpose 7.6.5 8.31

Total 7.65 12.89

E. D t II of excess CSRexpendituree a s

Balance excess as Amount required to be Amount spent during Balance ItXCItSS as at March
Nature of Activity at April 01,2022 spent during the year the year 31,2023

-on purpose other than Construction I
(0.24) 7.40 7.65 (0.49)

acquisition of any asset

Amount spent during Balance excess as at March
the year 31, 2022

Balance excess as
at April 01, 2021

Amount required to be
spent during the yearNature of Activity

(1.11)



Smartllnk Holdings Limited
Notes for mlng part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount fn INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

F. Disclosures on Shortfall
Particulars March 31 2023 ~arch 31 2022

Am<lOOtRequIred to be spent by the Company durIng the year 7.40 13.76

Actual Amount Spent by the Company durIng the year 7.65 12.89
PY Excessadjusted during the CY 0.24 1.11
Shonfall/(Excess) at the end of the year (0.49) (0.2-1)
Tot 21 of previous years shortfall

RealOn for shortfall· State reasons for shortfall In expenditure

58 Disclosure requIrement as per regulation 34(3) of SEBILODRRules 2015,
Particulars

As at Aut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Loans and advances In the nature of loans to subsIdIaries by name and amount. .
Loans and advances In the nature of loans to associates by name and amount. 0

Loans and advances In the nature of loans to firms/companIes In whIch dIrectors are
IntelllSted by name and amount. 0

lnvestments by the loanee In the shares of parent company and subsIdiary company, when
the <ompanyhas made a loan or advance In the nature of loan. 0

59 As at March 31, 2023, the Company did not have any outstandIng long term derivative contracts (prevIous year INRNIL)

60 There were no whlstleblower complaInts received durIng the FY 2022·23.

61 The Companydoes not have any scheme of arrangement which has an accountIng Impact on current or previous fInancial year.

62 Event after reporting date:·
There have been no events after the reporting date that requIre dIsclosure In these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Smartllnk Holdings LImIted
CIN : L67100GA1993PLCOO1341

As per my report of even date
For Shrldhar & AssocIates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm RegIstration No.: 134427W

~~ ~
({ Nalk
Executive Chairman

~~
K.G.Prabhu
ChIef Financial Officer

Abhfshek Pachlangla
Partner
Membership No. 120593

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 2023

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17,2023

Urjlta Damle
Company Secretary
ICSIMembership No.24654
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IN'oEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Smal"tlln~ HO',dfng~Uml.tt!d

Report on the Audit o(-the-Conso(fdated F'tfta.ncial Statements

Opinf()n

We. h~ye, audited the ~~companyi~g: c~rtsolidated firtifnGial.stat'¢~~~ts,of Stilartltnk HoldIngs Limited
(hereJoafter referred to as th'~ ~IHo~diPg Company") and Its sub~ialari:~s {Motdir5geomJ)'any and its
subsitll'arfes't'oget~~x referred to a,s "tne G-r,Qup'\ "wliichc0rnprlse the Cdnsotfdat~d Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2023/ and the Consolfdated Statement of Prbflt· ami toss (i-nctuding the Other
Comprehensive IRCOl'Tfe), the GOl"lso\idatedStatement of C,hanges In Equity and the ConS'otltlate'd
Stat-em~nt of Ca:S:hFlows for the year then ended, and not-es to the Consolidated Final'lcial
St~tements, 1nduafQg a, ~ummal¥ ·of sigdlfl~aot: .ac;:cQuntfn.8 poUd.::s and :other explanatory
,itifctrma tion'JMrc:1nafter refe'!'r~d~'td~as..t.fi~~9t:{~.o.!!kj~t~dffnan~la.kstatettte{its''').. '

In-our opinion and to the best of' our lhfOl'mation and 'according to the' explanations given to us, and
based-on consideraticn of reports of other audtters on separate flnan'dal sta~ement-s and on the
other ffrranGial fnfo-rmatlcn of subsrdtartes, the aforesaid consottdated f.lnanclal statements give the
frifG!itJatlcn required by tpe CoITiP~;nf~:;A.¢t, 2013 ("tlie Act") lrd:he' manner so required' and glve, a
,tr;ue an'd fair ,v.i'e~dtl;cot:iformity With the Il1di~n AI:e.ountfn,S S~n'dal'dS' prescribed under section 133
Qf the Act read wIth Companies (Indian Acc6uotjng.'~ta)'(q~rds): Rules, 201~ as· amendeq and other
accounting prtnciptes generally accepted in Indiaj of their consolidated state of affairs of the,Group
as 8,t.March 31,. 2.0,2), of consolidated profit, consotidated changes in eqUity, and its consolidated
cash flows-for the-yearthen ended.

8a'.sl'$for"Op'intoJ)

We'conducted our audit in accordance with the 5ta:ndar:dson Audlt~n!ti (SAs), speef.tled under section
'143(10) of the AGt. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further des~rfbed Jn the Aud:itor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ccnsclfdi:\ted :Flnanclal Statements secrien Qf our report. We
ar;e.,ind~pendent of the Group in accordance wi.th the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
all~,it of' t!"ie c.(jhs9.l)dii~edfin,ahcfal 5~atemef}t$ {il India i~ tenns of the Code of Ethics Issued by
Institute of G,nar'tered A!>~ol;)ntar:lt,dflndta ((lrtt'Al~"h and tM ret-ev~r.lt proVisIons of the Act and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in <a:Gcordancewith these requir.ements. We b'etieve
that the audit evidence we liave ol:)t-ained is sufficient and appropriate to proVide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our protesstonat judgment, were of most signiftcanGe
in out audlt of the consolidated fi,nancial statements for the year ended Marc,h 31, 2023. These
matters were 'addrcessed in the ConteXt of our audit of the consoudated financial statements as a
wli61e-, and 'tn fo~lng our opinion thereon, and we do net pCQvfdea separate opinton on these
mattet-s. We have determined the matters' des~r.lbed below to be the key ~ttdl,t matters to be
commcntcated'tn bur' report.

1. Revenue R~cognition fr:om·~etworldng Produtts
R~Jer the dtsclosure related to Re.v.enuerecogrilUon in' Note 26 to the accompl'lhyihg -Consolrdated
Ffnancf~l statements.

-.;:::~~,~.lltes,Hll., I" Floor, ¥aibha:v Ghambers,Ma1Utusudan KaJekar.R()ld .•BandraEast, Mumbai-4000S2
Icc..Tel: +91 (21) 2604 3:0.28/2604 4363 t 67411399 EmaO: InrQ@SbrldbBr.anl1;1~~o~late~.conl
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Revenue from saJe and servicing of networking products Is recognised net of returns and trade
discounts. The Group recognises revenue when performance obttgatlons as per the underlying
contracts are satisfied In accordance with Ind AS115 • Revenue from Contract wfth Customers «)nd
AS 115'). The terms set out In the Group's sales contracts are varied which affect the timing of
revenue recognition.

We have identified Revenue recognition from networking products as a Key Audit Matter because
lnd AS 115 involyed assessing if distinct performance obligations exists under each type of ,the
contracts and ensuring that the revenue is recognised In the appropriate period In which
contractual obligation is satisfied.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue from Networktng Products Indueled
the following:

• Obtained an understanding and assessed the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of Internal controls over iaentificatlon of the contractual obligation existence,
accuracy and timing of revenue recognition.

• Verified the contracts on fest check basis to Identify performance obligations under the
contract and to assess whetner revenue Is recognised In the perfod In whJdi the performance
obligation is satisfied.

• Performed substantive transactional testing on test check basis.
• Performed substantive analytical procedures considering the revenue trends of the previous

years and the relationship between revenue and other finandal statement Une Items.
• Reconciled the revenue with sales register.
• Performed cut- off testing to validate the timing of revenue recognition determined by

management.
• Verified the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures, which are included in note 26 of

the consolidated financial statements.

2. Valuation of lnvestments tn Bonds and Mutual Funds

Refer Note 13 to the consolidated-financial statements.

As at March 31,lQ2"l, the Holding Company has investments of Rs. 10,743.31 Lakhs In mutual funds
and bonds whkh constitutes abOut 41.06% of the total assets of the Group. During the year, the
Holding Company has recognised Rs. 317.78 Lakhs as fair value gain In the statement of Profit and
Loss as _perrequirements of Ind AS 109 *Finandallnstruments".

Due to significance of amount lnvotved, we have considered this as Key Audit Matter.

Our audit procedures to ass~s the Valuation of Investment tn Bonds and Mutual Funds tncluded
the following:

• Obtained an understanding and assessed the design, Implementation and testing of the
operating effecttveness of Internal controls over the existence. valuation and ctasstncatton, In
mutual fUnOsand bonds.

• Verified the de-mat account and statement of holdings to confirm existence and accuracy of
Bonds as at March 31, 20D

• Verified the confirmations from Fund Houses and statements of holdings to confirm existence
and accuracy of tnvestmentsin Mutual Funds as on March 31, 2023.
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• In respect of investments in mutual funds which are fair valued through profit or loss,

performed independent price checks based on confirmation and statement of Net Asset Value
(NAV)from mutual funds houses.

• In respect of investments in bonds which are valued at amortised cost, verified the deal sheets
and computation of interest accrued.

• Evaluated the basis of classification of investments into the various categories of financial
instruments.

• Verified the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures, which are included in note 13 of
the Consolidated frnandal statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other fnformation. The other
information comprises the Informatlon InclUded In Director's Report, but does not fndude the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated finandal statements does not cover the other Information and we
do-not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility Is to read
the other information and, in dOing so, consider whether the other information is matenally
Inconsistent with the .corselidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work- we have performed, we
conclude tfiat there is a material m1sstatement of this other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

Responslbflft1es of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group 10 accordance with the accounting prtndples geneTlllly
accepted in India, including the Accountln,g Standards specified under section 133 of the Act~ The
respective Board of Dlrectors of the companies iocluded in the Group are responsible for
maintenanc-e of adequate accounting records In accordance with the- provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group 'and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
trregutartttes; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from mat.ertal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, Which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the tfoldlng Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated finanCial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companIes included in the Group are responsible for assessing the abilitY of the Group to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gofna concern and usfng the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors efther Intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing..the flnandal reporting process of the Group.

Shrldhar:& Associates, 101, 1It Floor, Vajl:ib1lVChambers, Madbusadan Kalekar Road, Bandr. Eut, Mumbai-4000&2
Head Offlce Tel: +91 (22) 26043028/:2604 4363/6741 L399 EmaU: Info@Sbridbarandassodltes.com
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Out objectives are to obtain reasonable assurence "bout whether the consctidated flnencial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to
Issue an auditor's report that includes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance is a high ievel of
assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with Standards on Auditing
'("SAs") will always detect a !TI~terial mlsstaterpent when It exists. MIsstatements can arise from
fmud or error and are considered materfa! tt, Indivldualty or In the aggregate, they coutd
reasonably be, expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professIonal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• IdentifY and assess the rfsks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and apprO'Pt'late to provtde a
basIs for our opInIon. The risk of not detectIng a materfal mIsstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusten, forgery,
Intentional omissions, mtsrepresentattons, or the overrtde of Internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desIgn audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances. Under section 1'43(3)(1)of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on Whether the Holding Company has
internal financial controls with reference, to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accountihg poltctes used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or condItions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to.(;ontfnue as a going concern. IfWe cenctude that'a matenal unce'rtalnty 'exlst$~we
are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated finanCial statements or, If such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based en Ore audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or condItions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as,a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consotfdated financIal
statements, Including the dIsclosures, and whether the consolidated finandal statements
represent the undenying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

. presentatlon.

• Obtain suffictent appropriate audtt evidence regarding the financial, information of the
entIties or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
finandal statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision lind performance of
the audit of the finandal statements of such entities included in the consotidated financial
statements of which we are the indepent1ent auditors, For the other entitles included in the
consolidated financial statements, whlch have been audIted by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervtslon and perfor:mance of the audtts
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible (or our audit opinion.

Shddhar & Assoclatu, 101, lot Floor, Valbhav Chambers,Madhusudan Kalekar Road, Bandra East, Mumbai-4000SZ
Hend eIDce Tel: +91 (22) 2604 30281 Z604 436316741 1399 Email: fn(o@Shrldharandanoc:lates.com
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We communicate With those cha(ged with governance of tile Holding Company and such other
entitieS" Included Ih the consolldated financial statements of Whfch we are the fndependent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope arid timing of the audit and
significant audit ffndlngs, Includtng any slgnlflcant deficiencies In Internal control that we
Identffy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethtcat requirements- regarding IndepeAdence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our Indepeildenae,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those Charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance In the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended March }1, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report. unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine' that a matter should not be
communicated In our report because the 'adverse conseeuences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the pub{fc interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries whose- financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 11,584.43 lakfis as at March 31, 202:3, tbtal revenue of Rs.
20{452~23 lakhs and total net profit after tax of Rs. 368.41 lakhs and 'net cash outflows
amounting' to Rs. 22~63 lakhs for 'the year ended on that date, as consl'dered in the
consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements have not been audited by us.
These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated fmanctat
statements, In so far as It relates to the amounts and dIsclosures induded In respect of
these subsidiaries and our report In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid substdlartes, Is based solely on the reports of the other
audito,rs.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial stat-ernents, and our report on Other LeRal and
Regulatory Requirements betow, Is not modified In respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other ,-egal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained aU the Information and exptenatlons which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated flnandal statements.

b. In our optnton, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid ccnsctteeted financial statements have been kept so far as It appears from our
ex~mfnat1on of those bo{lI4and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, thl! Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (Including
Other Comprehensive lncome), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in EquIty and the
Consolldated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financlatstatements.
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the AccounUng
Standards spedfled under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounttng
Standards) Rules, 2015.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the tfolding
Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of Its subsidiary companies. incorporated
in India, none ofthe directors of the Group companies incorporated in India are disqualified
as on March 31, 2023 (rom being appointed as a director In terms of Section 164 (2) of the •
Act.

f. With respect to-the adequacy ofintemal financial controls {)VeT ftnandal reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of -such controls, refer to our separate report in
"Annexure A".

g. With respect to the other matters to be Included In the Auditor's Report In accordance With
Rule 11 of the companles (Audit and Audftor's) Rules, 2014, In our opinion and to the best
of our fnformation and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The group does not have any pending Iftigatlons on Its flnanctal pesttlen which
require disclosures in the consolidated finandal statements as at March 31,2023.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iiI. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Educatfon and Protection fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India.

tv.
(1) The Management of the Holding Company has represented that, to the best of

It's knowledge and beUef, no funds have been advanced or loaned or Invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or k'nd of
funds) by the Holding Company, and It's subsidiary companies to or in any other
persons I entitles, includlng foreign entities ('Intermediaries'), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediaries have, whether directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other
persons or entitles Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company, and It's subsidfary companies (HUltimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficfaries;

(2) The Management of the Holding Company has represented that, to the best of
It's knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding
Company, and It's substdlaFY companies from any peoon(s) I entfty{les),
IncludIng foreIgn entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understandJnv, whether
recorded In wrltlng or otherwise, that the Holding Company and it's subsidiary
companies have directly or fndirectly, lend or Invest In other persons or entities
Identified 11'1 any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneftdaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneftctartes:

Shridhu & Associates, 101, I" Floor, V.lbllav Chambers, Mlldhuiudan Kalekar Road, Bandnl East,Mumbal-400052
Be!ld OfficeTel: ~1 (21) 2604 3028/2604 4363/674J 1399 EmaD~lDfo@sto1d11anndaaoctates.com
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~3) Bas~CI dh our a~l( proa,ttliu(es which we ha,ve cao,lder-ed reasonabte and
app-fbpHate In, the) ¢lr.¢j'IfI~t"~~es :arid accordtng te the information and
exptanattons provided to us bY the Managemehtof the Holding Company In this
regci;r'd, n'oth1'nghas come to O,l'i'rn6tIl:ie that has caused us to betteve that the
representations made by the Management of the Ho~:dingCompany under sub-
cla'use (1.) and (2) contain any material misstatement.

v: The Holding ,Company and itl'$ 'Stlbsldtary tompahy incorporated ih India !'Iav.enot
d~.~lared: or ~19 dlyide))d :c{!:lr,'1ng,tbe year anti t~r~fo[e reporting compllaoce
with section f23.of the-Act is riot appHcabl'e.

1. In our opfi'l1on, actordj~g; to,ir'lf6rmStiotl, e~p~anattcfns given to Us, the>r~mun~r~ffon ret
',the y'~ar ended MaTG.h3'1., 2023 pa1'd by the Group to Its dtrecters Is WIthin the l1mits
lafd P£~cr1bed under Secfroti '·9tof t~eAct read With Schedule V to the Act.

3. According to the il1,f-O'rmat1onalit! eXl?Janattons given, to us.~a'ndbased on the <SARO
reports issued by \.IS for the Company and on constderatren of'C"A'80 rep'orts by 'statutory
auditofs"of subsicliaries ass-ociates; included In the consoifdate:d f.tna.ncfal statem-erits of
the Gpmpagy t()"wni;C~repeni,og u"der'CARO Is -applfcaBle, 'we report tti~t these are no
Qualitkatlons/ady,erse remams ..

4, Pr'ovi_soto Role 3(1) ~1th~ Coropal'li.e;sl'(Accounts) ~l!~~ 2044 reqL1lr:es <aUccrnpantes
which 'use 'accounting software fot maintaf'nlng- their bOOksof account, to use 'Soch an
atco:On$flg;rso~t.Wa:tewhich' has. it f,ea~ure ()f'~aL1(lJt trail, witb effed from the fln..andal
year 'begirin!ng _QtI t April z~ and ~cc~if~jA8l~1.l"eportt9S under Rul~ 11.(:g) of
<rompanies (Audit and AuditorS) Rules,! 2014 (as ar,nendeC!)'Is' not applicable, for the
current fihanciaf Year,

At5h'isnekPachlangla
Palitfiet -
MethSershil): No.: 120523-
9D!N~';231.2q~93P:~W~MN1~~;

~tace:,'Ml1m.b':~J ,
()at:e~ tf;ay 111 ~((2)
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ANNEXUREA TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FlNANC1Al. STATEMENTS OF SMARnlNK HOLDINGS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAR<:H 31, 2023

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' In the
Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the Members of Smarttfnk Holdings Umited on the
consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

Report on the Internal FinancIal Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Sectfon 143 of the
Companfes Act, 2013 ("the Act")

Opinion

In conjunction with our aUdit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the Internal fimmc1al controls with reference to
consolfdated financial statements of Smartlfnk Holdings l1mited (hereinafter referred to as "the
Holding Company") and its subsidiary companies, which are companies Incorporated In India, as of that
date.

In our opinion, and to the best of our informatlon and according to the explanatIons given to us, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies are companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consotfdated Iinancial
statements and such lnternal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective companies conSidering the
essentiat components of internal .centrot stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial
Contr9ls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the
ICAI").

Management's Respons1blllty for Internal Flnancfal Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidfary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establfshlng and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
estabUshed by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal FInancial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the leAl"). These responsfbltftles include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal ffnandal controls that were operating
effect'tvelY for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of Its business, including adherence to the
respective company's "policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the tfmely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Shrldbnr & Associates. 101,1'11Floor, Vaibbnv Chambers, Madbusadan Kalekar Road., Bandra East, Mumbal-400052
Read Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028/2604-4363/6141 1399 Email: info@shridbar..anda"odafes.com
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AUditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal ffnancial controls with reference to
consolidate~ flnandal statem.ents of th~ Holding company. tts subsidiary companies, wh'ch are
companies Incorporated In lndia, based on our audit. We conducted our audIt In accordance with the
~uidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Oyer Financial Reportfng (the "Guldance Note")
Issued by the ICAIand the Standards on Audltfng prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
-extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether Internal financial controls wfth reference to consotfdated flnanctal statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively In all material respects.

Our audit involVesperforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal flnancial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consol1dated financial statements 'flcluded obtaining an
und~rs.tanding of Internal ffnancial controls With reference to consolidated financial statements,
assessing tne risk that a material weakness exists, and testIng and evall:latiog the design and operatlng
effectfveness of Internet control based on the assessed rtsk, The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, Including the assessment of tbe risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated, financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below" Is 'sufficient ~nd
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Internal financIal controls witb reference to
consolidated financial statements of the HoldIng company, its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls wIth reference to Consolidated FInancIal Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements Is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the relfab1Uty of financial reporting and the
preparatton of ccnsolldated financial statements 'for external purposes In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's Internal financIal control with reference to consolidated
financial statements Includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertaIn to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provtde-reasonabte asstlrance that transactiohs are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
aa:,ounttng pnhdple"S, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only In
accordance With authort'zatfdhs of mal'lagement and d1rectors of the company; anc1 (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolfdated financial
statements.

Shridhnr & Associates, 101,1". Floor, V'aJbhllv Chambers, Madbusudan :KalekJr Road, Bandra East, Mumbftl-4000S2
Bead Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028/2604 ,,"363/6741 1'399 Email: info@Shrldharandassodates.com



Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Inherent Ltmitatfons of Internal F1nandal Controls with reference to ConsolIdated Flnandal
Statements

Because of the Inherent limitations of Internal financial controls wfth merence fo consolidated
finaodal statements, fncluding the possibtlfty of cotluston or Improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detkted. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal finandal contr.ols with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the lnlernal flnandal control with reference
to consolidated finandal statements may become Inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the pottcies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aferesaid reports under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act OJ) the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates
to two subsidlary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, Is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

C)o~
Abll1shek Pachlangia
Partner
Membership No.: 120593
UDIN: l3120593BGWJMN1816

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2023
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SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED
ConsalldllteCl Bllllln,ceSheet as at March 31, 2023
(Amount in INR lakhs; unless otherwlse stilted)

~.

Particulars ~ot. Asat Aut
'_ i_ No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

ASSETS
financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 40.91 59.'"
Bank balance other than clIsh lind cash equIvalents 6 1,361.62 2,065.37
Receivables
<') Trade receIvables 7 4,Ol2.2<4 1,712.84
(II) Other recelYabJes> 7 8,27 2.96

II Investments 13 12,280.62 10,9n.5"
Other ffnanc1aLassetSo 8 ~f4;02 17MB

t-Ion·flnanclal Assets
Current tax assets (Net) 9 176.28 80.80
Deferred tax assets (Net) 36 267.03 327.21
Investment propertY 10 1.106.11 1.279.8&
Property, plant and equlpm~t 11 2,203.049 1,857.09
Qlpltlll work·ln·progress 215.70
Other Intangible assets 12 3.71
Inventories 14 iJ,,330.9,1 1,433.21
Other non.flntnclal ass~ts 15 1.0'4t.36 703.60
Total Assets 16,;162.86

--'- 20,887.63 I'

LIABILmESANDEQUITY

UABILmES
FinancIal Liabilities
Trade payables 16

(I) total outstandIng dues of mtcre enterprises and small enterprises 114.66 8.66
(It) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 3,581.33 ',229.3<4

BorroWlf'lgs(Other fj1an Debt SecurttleS) 17 3,366.66 2.527.89 Ii
Other flnan'cla! lIaollities 1~ -100.97 455.65

Non·Financfal LIabilities
Provisions 19 1M.2S 97.86
Other non·flnancial liabilities 20 194.69 n.o
EQUITY
Equity shar~ capital 21 199.50 199.50
Other equity 22 18,15.13.80 16.300.51

Non·controiling Interest 23 (4.81)

Total UlIbi1ftfi!sartiEquity I''''26,162.86 20,887,63
See accompanytrig notes to the conSOlidated flnanCJal statements 1-68
The accompanying notes are an 1ntetral part of the financial statements

As per my report of even date
For Shrldhar a Assodatt's
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No.: 134427W

For and on behalf of t~ Board of Directors of
Smart link Hordtnp Llmltlld

~'7100>Al"3PL~

K.R. Nalk ~ f \Abhishek Pachlangta
Partner
MembershIp No. 120593

EKeculive Director

\;I.
UrJlta Clml.

Chief FinancIal Officer Company Secretary
ICSIMembership NO.246S4

Executive CHairman007-
~P"~·

Ptace: Mumbal Place: Mumbai
Date: .May 17. 2023



SMARnlNK HOLDINGS llMntO
Consollda~ Sute",ent of ProOt.nd lou for the y"T ended ~n:llll, 2023
(Amount In INllloilhs, unless othetWf~ statl!d,

Hote fO<'the Ye.r ended for the y"r endedp.rtlculan Mo. ~n:h 31, 2023 ~rch 31, 1022
Rtvenul! from operufons
Interest Income 2<4 #4.78 ,",.20
Rental Income 69.12 37.71
Nt't sal" on 'air VlI\ue changts 25 117.78 342.4
R~ue from contracts wfth customer 26 15,"n.JS 7,070.n
Toul Rovenue from operations 16,305.21> 7,950. Ie
Other llIcome 27 128.63 92.96
Totallnco",e 16,~J3.9~ 8,0~1.1<4

EXpenses
"Inanee ~o~ts 28 , m.'l 70.86
Impalrmenl of flnandal Instruments, r ~9 0.26 U8
PlJr~haseof Stoc~·ln·trade 30 1,899.88 2,·nO.n
Cost of raw materlll consumed )1 "al~.•) 2,604.~
Change In Inventorles o( (lnlshrd loeds, wotk·ln·progrl'u and stCltk·Jn. !tl~ J2 (1,~26.63) (leU9)
Employt't' benefits expenses n 1.653.07 1,3~.74
Oepn!Clatlon ,lind amortisatIon expense 3" 298.60 2)9.016
Other expenst'S l5 I,nus 945.2)
Total Expen,.s 16,250.72 7,30<4.61

Pront I (lOSS) before exceptfon.I Items .nd tall 113.22 731.53

ExCl''PUonalltt'ms (reft'r nOte 10 lei) , 2.091.57

pront I (loss) before tax
,;r

2,27".79 731.53

~s: T,. Upon,,:
.~

· Current Tax 334.89 108.42
· Oefmrd Tax 65.68 (0.)9)
• Tax Adjustments of earl I" year (<49.72) 6.90
Toul T.. [Xp4t01e 36(0) 3'0.15 (293.07)

Proflt I (Los" for the y.lr 1,923.'" 1,031.60

Oth,r Comprehen,Ive Income
A. Items that will not be feclasslflrd to profit or toss

Re·measurement gaIns I (loss) on defined benefit plan (l4.S6) (14.391
. Income tax retallnl to abovt' 5.47 - 0.71

Other C:ornplilhllllslVe tnceme (A) '1' (19.)7) (13.68)

Totar Comprehenslv, Incom, for the year .' 1,894.57 . 1,011.92

Proftt I (loss) for the year attributable to
EqUity holders of the pe~t 1,923.94 1,038.74
Non·cootrolllnainleftst (7.1.)

Other compreht'nSlve Income for thf pertod attrfbutablf to
EquIty holders of the partnt (29.31) (1•• 01)
Non-<:ontrolllng InterlKt 0.1'

Total comp,..hemfve Income for the y.ar. net of ux. l~bI, to
Equtty holders of 1M parent 1,894.57 1,024.71
Non<ontrollln9 Interest (6.79)

Bade and dnutod Eamlnp per share
(~Inal wlue per Share Rs 2) lS 19.29 9.90
See accompanying notes to the consolldatrd floancfal $tlItements 1·68
TM accompanying notes are an Il)tl'grat part of the ltna.ndal statemeflls

for and on behalf of the BoIrd of Directors of
Sml111fnk Holdln" limited

Partner
Membentllp Ho. 120593

Place: Mumbal
Oate: May 17, 2023

PIKe: Mumbal
Oate: May 17.2021



SMARTLlNKHOLDINGSLIMITED
Consolidated Statement Of Cash nows for the year ended Marcl\ 31, 2023

(Amount In INRlekhs, unless otherwise staled)

Partfculars For th~ Year End~d for the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash flow from operlltlnlllcttv1tl~s
Net profit before tax 2,271,,79 738.53
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 298.60 239.46
Profit on Property, plant and equipment sold I Wrflten off (net) (2,143.28) (0.64)
ProviSionfor diminution in valu~ of non current Inwstmenls 0.26 4.78
EIRImpact or secur1ty depos1tsand rent amorttzatfon (1.32) (0.80)
tlR Impact of interest income on bonds 6.94 6.84
Interest on Income tax refund (2.79) (0.36)
Bad Debts written off 0.22 1.32
ProvisIon for doubtful debts made/ (written back) 5.82 4.96
Net gaIn on faIr value chonges (317.78) (342.-48)
Unrealfsed ForeIgn exchange difference (net) (13.14) (21.38)
Sundry balances written off I (back) (net) -4.53 1.20
FInance costs 171.91 70.86
GaIn on derecognItion of RIght to use asseu (2.n)
ProvisIon for warranty (net) 9.30 ".2"
Statutory prov1slonno longer reqUired written back 68·70)

Op~raUnll profit I (loss) before world", capital change 291.34 695.83

Changes In working capItal
(Increase) I Decrease In Investments (995.22) 5,866.72

(Increase) I Decrease In Fixed depos1Uwith Banks 591.63 (762.43)

(Increase) / Decrease In Inventories (1,897.70) (743.40)

(Increase) I DecreaseIn Trade and other receIVables (2,329.2.3) (831.11)

(Increase) I Decrease In Other flnancllliassets (27.00) (-435.61 )

(Increase) / DecreaseIn Other non·financlal asseti (337.75) (131.77)

tncreese / (Decrease) In Trade payables 2, ..74.59 464.97

Increase I (Decrease) In Other flnanclalllabfllt1es (103.25) 169.16

Increase I (Decrease) In Other non·flnandallfabilltles 112.90 31.83

Increase I (Decrease) In prov1slons 11.55 ~ 16."2

Cash generated from I (used In) operattons (2.208.14) ".339.61

Income tax paid (3n.86) (1-43.00)

Net cash flows from I (used In) operatfOl actfv1tfes (A) (2,586.00) 4.196.6t

Cashflow from Investlnillctlvltt~s
Purchaseof property. plant and eqUipment and IlM!StlTIent property (412.09) (-42".06)
Proceeds from ~Ie of property, plant and equipment and Intangible IISSl" 2,507.37 0.68

Net cash now from I (us~d In) InvMtlng acttv1tles (8) 2,095.28 (423.38)

Cashnow from Flnanclnl acttv1tles
Buyback of Parent Company'sequity shares (3,158.75)

Tax on 8uyback of Parent Company'sequity shares ('1004.57)

Proceeds from I (Repayment of) borrowtngs 681.92 237.31

Interest payments 1'''6.47) (100. H)

CashPayment'for the prfnclpal portion of tease payments (62.94) (42.26)

Net cash flows from I (used In) flnandng activities (C) 472.51 (3,7,68.41)

Net Increase I (Decrease) In ca.shand cash equfvalents (A+B+C) (18.21) 4.82

Cashand cash equIvalents at the begInning of the year 59.14 5".31

Effect of exchange differences on restatement of fore1gncurrency Cash (0.02) 0.01
and bank balance
Cashand cash equivalents lit the end of the year <40.91 59.1"



5MARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement Of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INRlaRhs, unless otherwise stated)

Par'tfcu[an
For the Yelr Ended For the Yellr Ended

March 31, 2023 MardI 31, 2022
Cash and cash equIvalents comprise
Balance5 wIth banks

On current accounts 38.13 55.34
Cash on hand 2.73 3.30
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 40~91 59.14

(I) The above Consolidated Statement of Cash flow has been prepared onder the IndfrKt m.thod as set out In Ind
AS 7 • Statement of Cash Rows·,

(II) Non Cash Movement In Flnandng ActMty

Partlculan
for thl! Yelr Ended For the Year Ended

Mardi 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings (Including current maturitie5 of lOOi term Debt) (45.16)
Lease LiabilitIes 219.79 15.87

See accompanying notes to the consolidated flnandal statements 1·68
The accompanylng::notes are an Intestal part of the financial statements

As per my report of ~n date
For Shr1dhar IiAssociates
Chllrtered Accolln~nts
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 134427\'1

For and on behalf of the &oard of Dlrecton of
Smlrtlfnk HoIdfngs LImited
elN: L67100GA1993PLCOO1341

()~W~
Abfllshek f'4Chtangla
Partner
N.embershlp No. 120593

~
(i Helk
ExecutIVe ChaIrman

~H~'.
~,,?

ExecutM DIrector

~
Urjlta Damle

ChIef FInancial OffiCe! Company Secretary

ICS!Membership Ho.2465"

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17,2023

Place: Mumbal
DlIte: May 17. 2OZ3
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SMARTUNK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hotes formIng part of the Consolidated FInancIal Statements f.or the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In INR, unless otherwise stated)

1 Corpol"ate Information
Smarttfnk Holdings LimIted (formerly known as Smantlnk Networt Systems. limited ) ("Company" or "Parent" or "Parent Company"),
Incorporated In Goa. Is ~ Non·Bankf~ Financial Institution (NBFf) (non·deposlt taking) as defined under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1~3".

""The Compaoy's regfstered office is Situated at Vema Industrial Estate, Goa, India.

The Consolidated pfnancfal Statement of Smartlln~ Holdl~ Limited comP,"se of the flnan(jat~tatements of the Patent Company and Its
subSidIaries 0lgl501 Systems limited and Synegra EMS Limited, together ref~rred to as the 'Group' •

The parent Company operates as an Investment Company.and earns majoey from Investl", act1vIty.

Dlglsol )ystems limited Is In the business of developing, manufactllli"l, maT1<etlng. distributing and servtdnl of various catesories of
NetworkIng and [nfortnatlon Technology (11) ProdlJCts.

Synegra EMS LImited Is In the business of manufacture of Various categories of ,Iectronfc and IT prodlXtS on job 'WOrt basis aIfd also
engages In contract manufacturing forOrfglnal EqtJ1pment Manufact~.

Telesmart SCS limited Is In the bU$lness of manufacture of 'l'arlous c.ategory of electronic ondfT products. Dtn10i the ~ar the company
has merged with Dlgisol Systems limited (refer note 37(8)).

The Board or OrreCto~ approved the consoUdated financial statements for fhe year ended March 31. 2023 and authorised for Issue on
May 17, 2023.

1 Stgnlflcant accountIng policIes

Significant IICCountlng pOUcles adOpted bY the Group are as lIlder:
2.1 8asls of Preparation of fInancial StatltmentJ

(a) Statement of Compliance wfth Ind AS
These flnallc;tlll statements have been prepared in accordance with !n<I;lanAC(ountil1t';Stlln<lards (Ind AS) notified underSectloll
133 or the,Companld Act, 201'3 (the °Act·) read WIth lhe Gom~nies (IndIan Act(1)fitihg Standards) Rules, 2015 and Company
(Indian Accounting Standard) Ammendment Rules, 2016.

Accounting poUcles have been consistently applied to all the ~a~ presented except-wtlere a newly tmJed accounting standard
Is InItially adopted or a revisIon to an extstl,,! IICCOunti,,! stllodard requlm a cha~ In the accounting polley hitherto In use.

The 11nartClai statements have been prepared on a hlstor1cal cost basis, except for certaIn flnancnil asset! and financial
liabilities Ihat are measured at fair value. '

The financial statements are presented In Indian RupeeS (INR) In tam, which Is also the functional clJfTenCy of the compeny IIJ'ld
all amounts disclosed In financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the neamt takhs. except when oUlerwtse
Indicated.

(b) Us. of estimates
The preP<'ratlon of ttnandaLstatements In confonnlty with Ind AS requires the Management to make eslliTiate and asstmptlom
that aHect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, tI!ported alllOll'1t of revenue and ~
for the year and disclosures of conti,,!ent liabilities as lit the 80lance Sheet date. The etlmates lind assumptions used In t~
accompanying financial statements are based upon the Manaif'll'lln eYlllUlltton of the rel~ant facts and circumstance'S as at
the date of the financIal statements. ACl,lJalresuLts could differ from lhese ~ttmates. EstImates a~ under1yfnl aSsun1ptlons-are
reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to atto\lTltfng estImates, If any, are recOlnll~i" th~ year In whfch the estimates are
revised and In any future yea~ affected. Refer Note 3 for detatled discussion on estimates and Judgments.

2.2 Principles of consolidatIon
Subsidiaries
SlJbsldlllries lire all entities (1nclud1ng structured cent1tles) over wtlich the Iroup has control. The Group controls an entity When
the group is exposed to, or has r1ghU to, var1able returns from Its Involvement with the entity and has the~bllltY to affect t~e
returns through Its power to direct the rel~ant actfvftles of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consottdated from t~ date on
which control Is tl'llOsferred to the Group. TMy are deconsollclated from the date that control ceases.

The Groopt€Ombil'les the ffnanclal1tatem~nts o(:t~ ..paront and Il$ :sllbsldllr1es line bY line addlnl tQiethe, like Items of assets;
liabilities, equIty, Income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unreaUsed gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. UnreaUsed losses are abo eliminated unless the trlInsactloo provides evidence of an
Impairment of the transferred asset. Ac.countl,,! policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the poliCies adopted by the Jroup.



S1MRTLIHK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Hotes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Stat@lTlenufor the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In IHR,unlns otherwise stated)

Business combInations
Acqulsitfonof subsidiaries and buslnessn are accounted for uslnl the purchase melhod. The consideration transferred In elIch
business comblnlltion Is measured at th~ aggregate of the aCQUisitiondate, faIr values of assets rtv~, liabilities IneiJrred.by,the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree, and equity interests Issued by the Group In exchange for control of the atquiree.

AcquiSitionrelated costs are recognised 11'1 tile consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Goodv,-ftlariSingon acqUisition Is recognised as: an ass!!t a"d measured at cost, being the excess of th~ conslde~tlori';ttanst~!Jed
In the buSinesscO,!TlblnationOYerth~(jroupts lnterclt In the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, Uabflfttesassum~
lind contingent lIabflltles recognISed. Where t~er faIr valu~ .elf the Identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the c&st of
~CQugltfon.after re.as$ess;ng the fair val6es e>fithe Mt assets and contlnge"t lillbilltles, the excess 1$ recognised 11$, tapftal
me"'e on consolidatIon.

Once control has been achieved, any subsequent IICQUlsltfonswhere the Group does not or1B1naltyhold II hllldred percent
interest in II subsldillryere treated liS an lICQulsltlonof~hares ftom non·controillng shareholders. The ident1flable net assets are
not subject to further fair value adjustments and the difference be~n the cost of acquisltfon of the noncontrotlfng Interest
and the net book value of the additional proportion aCQUiredIs adjusted In @<Iulty.The amount of non·controillng Interests In
the acquiree Is measured either at the non·controlUng Interests proportion of the net fair value of the assets, ltabllttte's and
contingent liabilities recognised or at fair value.

Businesscombinations arising from transfers oTinterests In ennnes that are under the common control are accounted fortlSlng
the pooling of Interest method. The difference betwem any consideration transferred lind the lIftf'I!Ple htstor1eal carrying
values of assets Md lIabllltft'Sof the acquired entity are recognised !n shareholder's equity.

Whena transaction or other event does not meet the definition of a business combination due to the asset or group of assets not
• Identlffes and recognises the Individual Identifiable assets acquired
• allocates the cost of the group of assets and lIabllltles to the IndIVIdualIdentifiable assets and liabilities on the basIs of tllelr
Such II transectton or event does not give rise to goodwill or a lain on a bllliain purchase.

2.3 Property, plant Dndequipment
Prope('ty, plant and equfpment, are stQte~lIt i~tor1~ltos\ of I\cQlil~ltlonor construction tess accumlJIated tlepr~atJotr~~i1d
impaIrment losses, if af1Y.Cost of propertY. plan~and eqolpment comprtses Its purct1~sepr1ce net ,ofany discounts and reba.tes.
!lny Import duties and othe( talles (other~an thOSesubs~ntly rkovered from ~he tax Author:lt1es), III:lY dl~tly attributable
expenditure on milking the asset relldy for Its 1ntended use; other InCld~tal expemn, decommlsslonll11costs, If any, and
Interest on borrowings attrtbutable to It up to tile date It Is ready for Its Intended ",e. Cost of property, plant and' equipment
that are hot yet ready for their Intended use at the balance sheet date are shown under capital WOf1(·ln·progress.

Subsequent costs are Included In the asset's cariytng amount orrecognlzed as a separate asset, as appropHate. only wta~ It Is
probable that Mure economIc be~l'Its asSOdated with the Item will flow to the Group and the cost of the Item can be
measured reliably. The carrying IImount 01 any component accounted for as II separate asset Is derecognfzed when replaced. All
other repaIrs and maintenance costs are charRed to Statement of Profit and Lossduring the year In which they are Incurred..

Property, plant and equipment's residual values and useful lives lire revlewed at each Balance Sheet date and changes, If any,
are treated as cllanies In tlccountllli ntlmllte.

Depreciation methods, estimated use{ullrvn
The Group depreCiates Property, Plant and Equtpn'lentsusing ttle WIIIght tine method over their ntlmated ustfulllYeus under:
Proporty, pllnt Ind oqulpment Useful Live. (tn yoars)

e
II

5

Plant and Equfprnent.s

Furnltllre lind Flxt.ures
MotorVehicle
ornce Equipment
Electrical Installations
AirCondltfoners
Computers

5
10
10
3



SMAR.TLfNK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hotes forming part of the Consolidated Flnandal Statemenfi for the year .nded 31 March 2023
(Amount fn IHR, unltss otherwise stated)

oepreciaucn on property, plant and eQu1pmentltas been provided on the stralght·Une method as per the useful Ufeprescnbed In
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except ill respect of certain caJegodi'!$'Ofassets, In whose cas-e the life of the 'assets tias
,been assessed es under based on techntcill advl~~, takIng fnto account the natu~ of the asset, the estimated usage ~otthe
asset, the operating condlUons of the a,sset, past hIstory of replacement, anticIpated technological changes, manutactl.lters
warranties and maIntenance support, etc

Depreciation on addition to property plant and ,equipment is provjdfldon pre-rata basis from t~ date of acqutsltfon.

Property plant and equ1pment Is derccognlsed on disposal or when no future economIc benefits are expected from Its use.

,~ ',Depteclatlon on der'ecognitfpn of an asset' from property plaht and eqti'rprnerltis provided up to the date precodlna the da'le 'Of
derecognltron,
Any gaIn or loss arlSfngon deracognltlon of the asset (catcuteted 4S t~ difference between the I1t't disposal proceeds aOd the
carrying amount of the asset) Is recOinlsed In other Income I expellS"etn the statement of profit and toss In the year the asset Is
derecognlsed,

Depredation methods, useful lives lind residual values are reviewed periodically lit each financial year end and adjusted
prospectiveLy,as appropriate. .

2.4 Investment properties
Property thalls held for long· term rental yield or for capital appropriati'On'Orboth, and that Is not used In the prodm1on of
goods and services or for admInistrative purposes Is classiflfld as Investment property.
Investment properties are measured InItially at cost. Subsequent to Initial recognition, Investment properties are stated lit cost
less accumuilited deprectatlon lind accumutated1mpalrment lOSS, If any. _
TM cost Includes the con Of replaCingparts and' borrowing costs for tong-term construction projects If the fe<:otlnlUoncrlfe'J1il
are met. When sIgnificant parts of the Investment property are requ1red~o .be reptaC(1dat intervals, the Group depr«1ates~·
separately based on their SpecIfIc useful lIVes. All other retll.'llrorld ,t6'alhtenance costs are recognIzed In proftt or Ion as
incurred.
Investment properties are derecognltfld erther when they have been disposed of or wtlen they a~ perTMnentty withdrawn .from
use and no future economIc beneflt Is expected from tht>irdisposal. The dffference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset Is recoanlzed in profit or loss In t~ perfod of derecoanttlon.

Investment properties Include properties leased out and measured urrdertnd AS116as rfght of use as~s.

2.5 Intangible Assets
IntangIble aSSl't.sWith finIte useful UVC'Sthat are acqu1red separatelY' ere camed lit cost tess 4ccumuillted amortlSlltioo'and
accumUlated Impairment losses. AmortIsation Is recognIsed on a straight line bash CNertheir estfmated useful lives so as to
reflect the pattern In which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The estimated usefui,Ure and amortfsatfon method are
reviewed at the end of each reportfnl perfod, with the effect of any chanses In estimate bel"! accounted for on. prosp«t1ve
basis. The amortisation of intangible asset Is included In Depreclatlon,.nd IlmortlSlltlonexpense In statement of Prom IiLoss
accoeot.

The Group amortized fntanglbte assets USingthe straight line method over:their estfmatfld usefut lives as UIlder:
Intllnglble assets Useful Ufe (1~ yean)
Computer Software (ERP) 3
Computer Software (other sortwa~) ..

,Technical know·how 5

Intangible assets wfth finite liVesare assessed for tmpalrment whenev&rthere ,tS, an InditatlQfl.that the Intanalble asset may,be
Impaired. The amortization period and the IImorttzatibh method for an ih1anglble asset WIth.1lnite userut Itfe are reVfeWed al
least lit each flnancfal yeal'end.

2.6 foreign Currency Transactions
(a) FlInctional and prntmtlltion curr.nc;y

Items Included In the flnandal statements are measured using the CUfrencyof the pr1maryeconomic environment In whlcl\ the
el)tfty operates ('the ftmctl'Onalcurre~·I. TlTe,f,\i1anclalstatements 1I!"e"presentedIn Indlar",r:v~ (INR),which I~'the GfOup's
functional and presentation currency.



SMARnlHK HOLDINGSLIMITEO
Notts forming part ofl.ht Consolidated FInancial Statements (or the year endltd 31 March 2023
(Amount In INR, unle'ss othl!rwlsII stated)

(b) TransactIons and balances
on Inltlat recognttlon, all foreign ~ncy tl1lnsactions are recorded by applylna to the 'foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between t~ runctlonal currency and the foreign currency at the date o( the transaction. GaIns/Losses arising out of
fluctuatfon In (oreign exchange rate between the transact10n dllte lind settlM1ent date are recognMd In the Statement of Proflt
and lou.

All monetaty ass-ets and liabIlitIes In forefgn currenoes are restated at the yellr end at the exchange rate prevatt!nJ at the yellr
end and the exchange differences lire recognISed In the Statement of Profft and loss.

Non'mo(letary Items thllt are measured In terms of IIlstorfeat cost 1n a forelgrt currency are translated uslnl the tl(chan~e rates
at the dates of the Inltllll transactions.

2.7 Fair vatue measurement
The Group measeres nnanclallnstruments. such as, derfvatives al fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderty tranSllCtfon ~tween
market partiOpants at the measurement date. lhe faIr value measurement Is bas~ on the p(esumptlon that the tl1ln$llCtlon to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 'either: :
... In the ~rin!'lpal market for the asset Qr Uablllty, or
... In the absence of a prinCipal market, In the most advllntaseous mar1<et for the am!~ Of liabIlity IICcMslble te tM Group.

The Group uses valuation technIques that are appropriate In the ctrcumstancM and for Which Sufflclent.ta are avattlilite to
measure fair value, maxImIzing the use of relevant observable Inputs and mlnlmtz1og_the ~ of unobsefVable inputS. The Group's
management determfnes the policies and procedures for fair value measurement.

All assets and lIab1l1tles for Which fair value Is measured or dIsclosed In the financIal statements are categorized within the fair,
value hierar(hy, described as follows, based on the lOwest level Input that Is significant to the faIr value measurement as a
whole:
• Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In actIVe markets for Identical assets or lIabllttles
· level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices Included In Levet 1 that are observable fOI' the assets or liability, t'fther

directly, (I.e. as prtces) or Indirectly (I. fl. derived from prtces).
· Well -~nptltrfor the assets or lIabllfty t~.,are not based Of) observable market data ,(unobservable If'!puts).

2.8 Revenue F(ecognltfon
(a) Int .... st Income

Interest Income Is recorded usIng the effectfve Interest rate (EIR) method for all finandal Inst~ts measured at amorttsed
cost and debt lostrument measured at MOCI. The fiR Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts1hrough
the expected life of the ffnandal Instrument or, When appropriate. a shorter per10<1, to the net calT'flnl amount of the flnandal
asset.

The EIR (Md therefore, the amortised cost of tlie asset) IS calculated by taking tillo account any discount or premfgm on.
acquls.ltlon"fees ~nd costs that are an Int~rat part of. the EI~. The Group re<;~n~ses I'nterest Income uslna a rate of I'et\lm lhil.t.
r~prescnts -the !*'St estimate or II e6(lStllnt r~te,or ref.om ove~(tie expected life of ltJe loan. Hence, It recogniSes the effect ~f
potentIally <ltrrerent Interest rates charg~ at various stales, aild other chilractertstlcs of the product Ufe cycle (lntludlng
prepayments. penalty Interest lind chal'll~).

tr expectations r~ard1ng the cash flows on the financial asset are I1!Yisedtor reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment Is
booked as a positiVe or negatIve adjustment to the carrying emoont of th@ asset In the balance sheet with an Inc.rease or
reductlon In Intel'Mt fncomo. The adjustment ts subsequently amortised through Interest fncome In the statement of prof1t and
tess,

(b) Revenue from lellse rentals
Lease 10 e Is rKognfsed In the Statement ofPi'oflt 'and Loss 'on stral~ht Une J?asls ,over the lellse term, unlMs there Is another
system! s"Wf1lchIs mor'e represer'ltattve oHlie'tlme pattem of tl'le lellSe.

(c) Dividend Incom.
DlYIdend Income (including from FYOCllnvestments) Is reeogntsed when the Group's righno receive the payment Is establlsh.ed,
It Is probable that the economtc benefIts associated WIth the dividend will flow to tlie entity and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably. This Is genel1llly when the shareholders approve the dividend. ...-!::=:::::::- .....

~
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(d) Trading tneerne

Tl'!dlng Income Includes all g,alns and losses from challles In fair valU! and the related Interest Income or expense and
dMdends, for flnanc1al assets and flnanclal Uabftitles held for tradIng.

(el Revenu. from contract wtth custom."
Re\'enue from contract with customers Is recO!l1ised upon satisfaction of the pet10rmance obItaatlon by transf~nl promIsed
goods and rendertng of services to the customer. The revenue is meas~ based 01\ tl'!nsaction price, which Is the fair value of
conslderatlon received or receivable, and Is net of discounts, allowances, mums, goods and servICes tax/Vltue added
taxesfsales tax and amounts coUected on ~half of thfl1l party.

2.9 Accounting for Government Grants
Govemment IIl'!nts In terms of Incentives are recQirdzed only ",hen there Is reasonabtt' assurance that (II the Group witt comply
with the condltfons attached to them, and (11)the grant/substdy will be ~.
The Go'vemment srent In ~ form of IncentIVes are recognized as Income on II syst~tk basis In the Statement of Profit and
loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are Intended to cOlnJ)emate and trle
achievement of the performance enterla for befog eligible for recetpt of tJie jl'!nt. The grants are presented under ·Other
Operating Income' In the Statem~t of Profit and Loss.

2.10 Taxes
tex ~nse for £he year, compt1slng current tax and deferred tax, are Included In the determination of the net profit or loss for
the year.

(a) Current Income tax •
Current tax Is the amount of tax payable on the taxable Income for the year as determined In accordance with the provisionS of
the Income Tax Act. 1961. C~ tax assets and tax lIablUttes a~ offset where the ~mv has a I.. ally enforceable rfJht to
offset and Intends either to settle on a net basts, or to realize the asset and settle the ltabllfty stndtaneously.

(b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax Is recognIsed on temporary d'frerenc~, ~"I dlfferftlCes ~ the carrying amount of Issets and Il.bfllt1t$ and
corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable proflt. Deferred tax Is ~asured usinl the tax rates and the tax la~
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reportfng date. Deferred tax lIabllft1es are recogntsed for alt temporary diff~es.
except:
(I) Where the deferred tax liability ar1ses from the ImUal rKO!Olt1on of BOOdwIUor of III asset or liability In II transaction that' 1$
not II business combination and, lit the lime of t~ tnJllSact1on, affKU neither the acctUlt1ni profit nor tllJQlbte proflt or loss
(11) In respect of taxable tempcnry differences mocIated with InYestments In subsldlar1eS. ~ the ttmtna of the reY'ef'5'a1of
the temporary dffr~ can be conlrotled and It ISprot>ab(e tlIat the temporary dffferences wilt not ~ In the foreseeable
Mlfre.

Deferred tax assets are aeneralty rKO!Olsed for atl deductfbte tempoBry differences to the extent that It Is probable that
taxable profits wi\! be aVlnable ~alnst which those deductlbte temponlry differences can be utlltsed. Defemd tax assets and
lIabllftles are offset If such Items relate to taxes on Income lIMed by the same JOVemint tax laws and the Group has a legally
enforteable right for such set off.
Deferred tax assets are re'VI-.d at each balance $heet date for their realfsablllty.

Current and deferred tax are recognised In proflt or loss, except when they relate to hems that are recogntsed In Other
COl'Oprehenstve Income or directly In equity. tn which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised In Other
C;omp~henslve Income or dIrectly In equity respectMty.
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2.11 Lea"s
Acontract IS,or contelns, a lease If the contract conveys the right to'control the use Of an Identlfl~ asset for a period of tIme
In exchange for consideration.

Group 15 1 lessee
The Group accounts for each lease component wtthln the contract as a lease separately from non·lease components of the
contract and Clllocatesth~ consideration In the; contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alol'!e price
or the lease component lind the lIuregllte stand·alone price of the non-lellSl!components.
The Group re<:ognlses right-of·use asset representing Its r18ht to use the undertyfng asset for the lease tenn at the lea~e
commencement date. The 'Cost of the r1ght·of·use asset measured at Inceptloi'l shall comprise of the amount of the InItial
measurement of the lease liability IIdfusted for any lease payments mede lit or before the commencement date less My lease
Incentives received, plus any Initial direct costs Incurred and an estimate of costs to be Incurred by tilt lessee In dlsmanttlrli
and remoylnl the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which It Is located. The rilht-of-use assets Is
subsequently measured at cost lC!Ssany accumulated deprecilltlon, IIccumulllted Impairment losses, If any and adjusted for any
remeasuremem of the lease liability. The right-of-use IIsset~ Is d~redated USing the H~Iaht-iine methOd from the
commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useflJlllfe of nsht·of·use asset. ~ estlmat~ useful lives of naht-of use
assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant lind eqvIpment. Rlght·or-use assets are tested for
Impllirmcnt whenever there Is any Indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, If any, Is
recognised In the statement of profit and loss.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lellS! payments that are rIOt paid It the commencement dllte
of the lease. The lellse payments are dlsc:ounte<lusing the Interest rate ImplicIt In the leasel If tha, rate cen be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determl~, the Group uses Incremental borrowtng rate. For leases wtth reaSOllably
similar characteristics, the GrouP. on a lellse by lease basis, may adopt either the Incremental borrowtng rete specific to the
lease or the Incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall Incillde fixed payments, vllnllble
tease payments, rC!Sldualvalue guarantees, exercise price of a purchase optton where the Group Is reasonably Certain to
exerdse that option and plIymt"nts of penalties for terminating the lease, If the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease. The lease IIl1blllty Is subsequently reml!asured by Increaslns the carrying amount to reflect
Interest on the lellse liability, reducfns the carrying I!mount to reneet the lease payments made end remeasur1na the carry1na
amount to reflect !lny rellssessment or lellSe modifications or to reflect revised In·substance fixed lease payments.

The Group recognISes the IImount of the re·measurement of leas. liability IS an adjustment to the rllht-of-use asset. Where the
carrying amount or the r1ght·of·use asset Is reduced to zero and there Is a further reduction In the meas~t of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remlllniniamount of the re·measuremttnt In statement of proftt Ind loss.

The Group has elected not to IIpply the requirements of In<!AS 116 to short-tefTTItea,es of allinets that have a lease term of 12
months or less and lellse, for which the underlyinlasset Is of low vlIlue. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a stralght·lIne basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
At the Inception of the lease the Group cilluifles ellch of Its lellies as either an operatlns IUM or I ffnance 11!llSl!. The Group
recognises lease payments received under operating teases IS Income on a stral.ht- line basis over the Iftse term, In case of' a
flncnce lease, finance 1ncome Is recognised over the lease term ba~ on a pattern reflectfng a constant ~riodlc rllte of return
on the lessor's net InvC!StmentIn the lease. When the Group Is lin Intermediate lessor It acc;ounu for Its Interests In the head
tense and the sub-tease separately. It IIUt'$Ses t~e lellsc)classification 01 II sub-lease With reference to the nght·of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not With reference to the undertylnlasset. If a head lease Is a short term lease to whkh the Group
applies the exemptfon described ebeve, then It classifies the .$ub-leI'lM11$ lin operatfn, lees8.
If an orrengement,contllins lellse and non-lease components, the Group appllos Ind AS 115 Revenue to allocate the con,lderetlon
In the contract.

IndAS116 requires Inclusion ofvar1able lease payments based on Index or II rate.
Var1abletease payments based on an Index or a rate: Variable lease ~)1TIenu bas~ on an Index or a rate (for example. linked
to a consumer price Index, II benchmar1( fnteren rate or a market rental rate) are part or the lease liability. From the
perspective of the lessee, these payments are unavoidable, because IIny uncertainty relates only to the measurement or the
lIabflfty but not to Its existence. Vllriable tease payments based on an Index or II rate are Inlttally measured using the Index or
the rate at the commencement date (Instead of forward rates/lndlces)_ This means that an entity does not forecast future
changes of the Index/rate; these changes are taken Into account lit the point In tfme In whIch lease payments chlln!l~,
However, bllsed on management'$ estimates thllt lease payment Increases 10% after II period of II period or three years_
Therefore, based on management jUdgement, estimates and conservative approach it k estimated, lea~e !lability has been
calculated based on these estimllted cosh flows_
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Operating leases
As II less"!
For transJt(on, the Group has elected nOt to apply the requirements of lod AS f1610 lellse, whlct1are eXJ;llrtniwtthln 1'1 fllI'I"ths
from the d~te of tran,ltlon ~ class Of IISS'et lind leases tor WIllettthe under1Y1r1iIIsset Is of low value on a lease· by lease basts.
The Group 11115 also used the practical expedient. provid~ by~ standard when apptyllll Ind AS 1t6 to leases pi'evlolnly
classified as operatfng leases undl!1" AS 17 and therefore, has not reassessed whether II contract, Is or contains II lease, It the
date of Initial application, relied on Its assessment of whether leases are onerous, apptytng AS 29 Immediately before the date
of Inlttal application as arHlltemat1ve to performlns an Impairment review, excluded 1nltlal direct costs from measuring the
right of tisusset at tile date 6f InlUal applfcatfon and used hlndSfghtWhen determining the lease term If the contract contains
options to extend or termlnb"te tile! lease. The Group hils ~e(h13, 'slngle .discount fate'to a portfolio of leases WIth similar
chllrllc(erlS'ifcs.
On appllcatfon of Ind AS 116, the nature of exeenses bas chanied from lease rent In prmous periods to deprvc1atlon cost for the
t1ght·to·us~asset, and nnarlce cost for Interest accrued on lease lIabfllty.

As a le$sor:

The Group~s not required to make any adjustments on transition to Ind AS t 16 for leases IIIwhich It acts as a lessor, except for
a sub- lease. The Group ecceonted for Its leases In accordance wtth Ind AS 116 from the date of initial application. The Group
does not have any significant Impact on account of sub·lease on the appllclltlon of this standard.

2.12 Impairment of non-flnanchiL lISl.ts

The C'ariyfrtll' val\JeSor assets f cash generatIng units at each balance sheet date 11'.... revtewed for (mpa.ll'1't1ent.If any fndlcatlort
of lmpafrmerit exiSts, the recoverable amount of such assets Is estfmated and Impairment Is recOSJ'lfSed, If the carrying amount
of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recovl!1"llbleamount 15the fafr value less cost to setl and their value In
use. Value in use Is arr1ved at by discounting the Mure cash nows to their present value ~ 011 an appropriate pre-tax
discount rate to determIne whether there Is any indication that those assets have suffered any Impairment toss. wtlen the!\! Is
an Indication, tha an Il'[lpl!,lnTlent.Ioss l1K:ognlsedfor an aS$t'~~o.earlier accountl"g pertOds no loover exists or 'l'ITay have
decreased, StKh reversat of fmpalrment loss Is retognlsed In the Stlitement of Profit and Loss, exc!pl In case of rt'Valued assets.

1.1 J Provfslonnnd contingent liabilities
Provjslons .are recognised when the Group has a present Obligation (legal or constructive) es a resOlt of a past event, It Is
probable that the! Group wtll be required to settle the obll,atlon, and a reliable estimate can be ma'6e of the amount ot the
obligation. . .
The amount recognised as.a provision Is the best estimate of tl\e consideration required to settle the present obUgat1onat the
end of the reportIng pcrto<l, tak1ng Into account the risks and untertafntleos sUf1'Oll1(llng the obItptlon. In the event the t1me
value of money Is material, provfslon Is can1edcat the present value of the cash ftows reQUIred to settle: the obtliatlon.
If the effect of the time value of money Is matenal, proYfSloMare discounted usllll a ~urrent pre·taX fit. tflat reflects, when
appropt1ate, the risks specf(ic to the liability. When dlscountlng1s-US'e<f,the Increase In tlte pl'O't1SIOlldoe to the PasSllKeof time
Is recogntzed as a rtnance cost.

Contingent liabilities are dIsClosedwhen there Is a possible obllptlon artslov from past events, the eXistence of whldl wtlt be
confirmed .onlyby the occurrence or nen-eccurrenee of one or more uncertain future events not Wholly'!¥1thfnthe control of the
Group or a present obligation that arises from 'past events, Wh~i'eIt Is eIther not probable that an outflow of resourres will ~
required to settte the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. When there Is- a possible oblliation or a
present obligation In respect of which the likelihood of outflow of ~ourt~ Is remote, no provfs1onor disclosure ISmade.

Contingent assets are possible assets that ames from past events and wtIose exist~wllt be conflrmed.only by the occerreoce
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertafn future events not ~Ily within the control of the entity. A contingent asset Is
dIsclosed. Wherean Inflow of economic benefits 1s probable.

2.1<4 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent In the balance sheet compt1se cash at banks and on hand and short·term deposits wtth an original
maturity of three months or less. which are subject to an Inslgnlflcant risk of changes In value.
for the purpose or cash flow statement, (ash and cash equivalents Include cash on hand, cllsh In bank al\d short-term depo"Slts
net of bank overdraft.
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1.15 Financial 'fnstrumllnts

A financial Instnment IS, any contract that ~tves rise to II flnandlllllsset of~one entity and lJ1naooal 1\~b1l1ty'or ~tY
tnst'rtlment of a.tr0ther entity. ;;; : '

Investments and f1nanc1alassets

(I) Initial recolinlHon and measurement

At fnltfal recognlrton, financ1al asset Is measured at Its fair value plus. In the case of a financial asset not It, faIr value tlJrOuBh
profit or loss, transllctlon. costs that' lire dl~tly IIttr1b~lIble to the IIcqUlsltlon of the f1nanclat,S$et, T~c:t~ <~ of
fInancIal assets earned at faIr value thrOUgh profit or loss are e)(pens'ed In profit Of loss.

{II) Subse.quent measurement
For purposes otsubseque;€ measurement. financial as.sebc4lre classifted tn following categories;
a) al"amortfted cost; or
b) a,t Jatr val rough oilier comprehensive 1~9"!e; or
c) at faIr valu Uih profit or I~s. . ~'"
The tlassfficitfon depends on the ent;ty's business model fOf ma~ging the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
caslrflows.

Amo!t!ted ~~ Assets that are ~lcl for collect1on ot cOllttactual cash flows-Wbere those:cash flows represent solety payments
()f p.~ncjpal .an~,1nteres~;,are measured at a~rt!zed cost: Inte~ Inc9mHrbm the'Se tlnal1(Ial assets Is lnCl(~ in Interest
Incoffie tlslng ~~frectlYe Interest tatt""'thO(IE'IR).

,f§.!! ~ ~ other comprehemlvr ~ .l.fYQQl: ~seu that are held for cotl~1On of contractual ca$h flows and for
seIlIJlB..the fln:;~al asse~s, Where,~he as~et~'faSh flows ~epreseQt;®lel~ 1?1IYmentsof Rtlnelpal aIr!! Interest, in'e measured at
faIr ;~alue through other (omprel'lenSive fncome (FVOC1). MoVe'itients In the cal'r1Jng amount are taken through' other
comprehensfve)ncome (OCI). except for the retosnltlon of ImpaIrment lolns;« losses. fnterest ~ alld Jorelill exchange l
ga nd loss~ Wh1chare. recogn lh Statem.en~ ot Pt'o.fit an<;llO!;, When tbe fl~an.cI~pt l5;de.recOSnfzed, the cU1J:tulattv~
~ loss ~revlousl~ ~6gnfz I Is ~Iaulfl~\}rom ~utti to Stljteti14!iltof ~Oflt arid Loss and I1!COIl'IlzedIn>other
aaft (losses). Interest income from thfte t1nanc1al assets Is Included In Interest tncofne uslna the effecttve Interest rate
method.

Em value Ii !2rQf.!t 2r:1211: Assets that do not meet tlie crtterla for amortized CM or FVOCIare measured at fair value
thJ"Cfoghprofit or loss. Interest Income from these tlnancfat assets Is Included In Interest1ncome.

EOo;,tv 1nstrvmIMts: All eg'ult): lovestil'ients ~,<COj;eof Ind. AS i09l1re measllf'ed;at faIr value. Equlo/l'IOStnJrnel1ts 'Whlch are held
(or tradIng and contingent consideration recognIsed by an atqulrer ilia busll'le'$$combfnatfon to which lod .\5103 appties are
classified as at fair value throuah profit and toss (FVTPl}. For atl oth!r eq\llty1nstrunertts, the Group ",-y make an Irrevocable
electIon to p~nt In otl1er'c~p~~nsNe, ~om'e ~uent dja,I)Jes 11'1t~fAlr valtteithe Group makes ~ etecnon on an
Insttument~ ~nstrument ~sls. The ctasstflcatron Is mad~on Inttiel recoanitiOn and Is irrevocable.

If th:e'.Gr'oufYd~rdes to ~)assifY all eqt.)ltY,inS.eIlt'as a~OCI, theJl/all fafnyal~ c:ha'r\le1 on ~ fnstrumenr~ ~ltclUdlng:
dMdends. are recOill1Zed tn thf! OCI. There If rib recycUng.of the al1\Olrlts from OCI to proflt and loss. even on<3llleof
love'stment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulatW.e ,at" o(1oss withIn equItY.

EqUitY instrv~ts InchJa~ within ttie MPl!.·:~teaorY~~ measured at {air Value with atl Chane~ recovnl'led In the profit and
loss.

(In) Impalrmt'))l'~!f!nal'td."'fisttt ' <
In Kcordanclt Mtllind AS 109. Financial InstrUmtt!'U, tM Group applle ~peged c;-'JtJon (fel) modfl for'fneosurement an<!
recpgnftlon of (mpatrment loss onllOlfT)clal ~.

For rt!cognltlon Of ImpaIrment loss On flnanda\ assets ~ risk exposure, the Group determtrtes that whether there has been a
significant Increase In the credit risk sInce In1tial recQlnltfon. If cr~lt: r1$~M$ not Increased slanlflcantly. 12·month Eells used
fo .l?)"OyIde f frm~.~lOss. !j0We.Ver. If cr~1t risk b~ lncr.ea~ ~snlflafritlYI lifetime Eel ti USed. If fn 5Ubs~quent years.
c~ quall the Instrument Improves sUCh that tliere Is no rOIlier a slintftcant Increase In credit risk since InitIal
recognition, ~ the entiey reverts to recognizing ImpaIrment loss allowance based on t2'month Eel.
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Life time Eels are the ~pected credit losses resuttlns from aU possible default ~ts aver the expected life Of a financial
Instrument. The 12 month Eel Is a portion of the lIfetIme Eel which results from defautt events that lire possible withIn 12
months after the year end.

Eel Is the dlffel1!nce between aU contractual cash flows that are due to the Group In accordanct with the contract and all the
cash flOW) that the entity expects to r~elve (I.e, all Shortf,aIlS),dIscounted at the orlal"al EIR.When estlmatlns the cash flows,
an entity Is required to consider all contra~tual terms of the financial Instrument (Includl". ~yment, extensIon etc.) aver
the expected life of the financial Instrument. However, In rare cases when the expected Iffe of ~ financial ImtrurneJlt cannot
be estImated reliably, the" t~e entity Is requfred to use the ~rT1afhlnacO(ltractoal term of the financial Instrument.

In general, ft Is presumed that credit risk hils slgnfflcantly Increased sInce tnttlal recognItIon tf the payment Is more tllan 30 days
past due.

Eel fmPlllrment loss allowance (or reversat) r~osnlzed dllr'lnt the year Is ~Oinlzed as Income/expense In the statement of
profit and loss. In balance sheet Eel for flnancialllssets measured at llmortlzed cost Is presented as an allowance, t.e, as an
Integral part of the measurement of those assets In the bala"c~ sheet. Th~ atlowanc~ reduces the net eanyfl1l amount.

(Iv) Ocrccognltion of financial assets
A ffnanclalasset Is derecognlzed only When
a) the rfghts to receive cash flows from the (fnanc1alasset Is transfmed or
b) retains th~ contractUal rights to receive the cash. flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractualwlliatlon to pay th~
cllsh flows to one or more ~fplenu.

Where th~ flnancl,,1 asset Is transf~rred then In that case financial asset Is de~osnl%ed only If substantially all rlJkS and
rewards of ownership of the flnanc1al ani'll Is tl'1lnsferred. Where the entIty has not transferred substantIally all risks and
rewards of owne~hlp of the financial asset, the financial asset Is not derecollnfzed.

(c) Flnanclalllabflltles
(I) Initial recoanltton and m~lISurement

FinanCial llabllltles are claSSified, al Initial recognition, as financial lIablUtles at fair value throUSh profit 01' loss and at
amortized cost, as appropr1ate.

AU financial liabilIties are recognized inltla\ty at fafr valUf and, In the tas~ of bOr'rowtngsand paYllbles, net of directly
ilttrfbutllble transaction costs.

(If) Subsoquont mOllsurement
Tho mellSul'omentof flnllncl!lllIablUUes depends on their classification, as described below:

F'lnllnclalllllbflltles lit fair value throush profit or loss
Financial lIabllltle1 at fafr VIIlue through profit or loss Include financial liabilities held for tradlnl and financial lIabfUUes
dcslRnattd upon Initial recognition as at fair value throUllh profit or loss. Separated embedded dertvatlves are also classffied as
hold for trading unless they are desiRnated as effective hedlllni Instruments. GaIns or los~ on liabilities held for trading are
recoantzed In the Statement of Prottt and Loss.

Loans and borrowings
After InItial recognition. Interest·bearll1l loans and boITowInvs are sutKequently measured at amortIZed cost uslnl the EIR
method. GaInsand losses are recOllnlzed In Statement of Profit and lou when the liabilitIes ~re derecOlnlzed as ~II as throt/llh
tho EIRamortIzation process. Amorttzed cost Is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisItion and
fees or costs that are an Integral PIIrt of the ErR,The fiR amortfzatlon Is Included 115 finance costs I" tile Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(III) Derecognition
A financIal lfabllfty Is derecognlzed When the oblliatloll Under the liability Is dlschllr'ged or cllncelled or expIres. When an
existing flnanC1alItabfllty Is replllCed by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
(!)dstfng liability lire substantially modified, such an exchantr or modlflcatlon'is trellted as ttle derecosnlti!)ll of the ol18lnal
IllIblllty eM tHe recOllnlUonof II new liability. Tl1e difference 1n the respective canyi"l amounts Is recO!lllzed In tM Statement
of Profit and Loss es ffnanc~ costs.
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(d) Flnanclal Guarantee Contracts
Flnanoal auarantees are fn1t1ally recognised fn1:l'le flnandal statements (within 'other ltabnltfes') -at faIr value. Subsequently,
the tlability Is measured at the hIgher of the amount of loss. allowance'-<fetermlned as per Impairment requlreffleftt5 of In<!.(S, 1'09
and the amount recognised less cumulatiVe amortisation.

Any increase In.the liability relating to fillanclal guarantees Is record~ In the statement of PfOflt and loss In credft loss exj:leme.
The premIum receIVed Is recognIsed In the statement of profIt and loss In net f~ and <omm1ss1on fncornt! on a straltht line
basis over the life of the guarantee.

(e) Offsettlns flnanda' Instruments
FinanCIal assets and babiUties are offlet and the net amotI'lt is f!POrted In the bal2mce sheet ~re theft! Is a regally
enforceable right to offse1: the recognized amounts and there Is an Intention to settle on 11 net basls or ~Ilte the asset and
settle the lIatmlty sImultaneously. TI\e legally cnforce~le "aht must not be contfngt!flt on f~ events and must be
enforceable In the normal course of buslneu lind in tile event of ~fault, Insolvency or bankruptcy of the GI"OUp'or the
coun~arty.

2.16 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (on weIghted ayerag. baS1S) and netreatlsabte value.

Cost of Inventoli'!!s comprises of cos\,of purchases, costs of conversiOn and other costs Incutr~ In bringing the Irwentooes to
th~Ir present location and condlt1on.

ProvlS!on of obsolescence on Invento.;!es 1$ cons1<lered on the basis ofmaMgement's estimate based on demand and markel of
the Inventor1es.

Net realizable value Is the estimated_selllns price I.n the ordinary courw of bUsinfts, tess the estimated cost of complet1(m and
the estimated costs necessary to maJ(e the sale.

The net realizable value of wor!( In progress Is detMTIlned with reference to the setl,", prices of ntlated finished products. Raw
materials and other supplies h~ld for~e In the production of finIshed products ar~ not wrftten down below cost e~ept fn cases
where metertet pnces have dectlnedand It Is estimated that the cost of the ftnlshed products will exceed the net realluble
value.

2: 17 Employee Benefits
(a) Short-term oblillatlons

LIabilities for Wages and salaries, fndUdlna non·monetary benefits that are expected to ~ttled whotty within 12 months after
the end of the year In whIch the employees reritier the mated seMce are rtCOIri1zed In respect or employees' ~ up to the
end of the year and are measured at the atflOUlts expected to be pald when the Ifabltttt.s are wttled. The If.bltlt19s are
presented as current employee benefit obligations In the l)a\ance sheet.

(b) long:term empllJ)'H benefltobllptfons
(1) OefJlU!d contribution plan

ptoVldent Fund: The Group's contrfbutlons to statutory provident fund In accordance Wfth the Emp(~ PrcMdent fond and
MI5Cellaneous ProvIsions Act, 1952 whIch Is II defined contr1butfon plan, aft! charged to Uie Stattment of Profit and los~ln the
period of accrual. The Group has no obligation .. other than the contribution paYllbl~ to the provident fund.

Emp oyee's State Insurance Scheme: Contnbution towards tmptoyees. state Insurance scbeme IS ~ to the regulatory
lIothor1t1es, where the Group has 00 further obltptlons. -such benefits are daSSlfied as DefIMd CcrItI1but1on pllIn as"ttle..Group
does not carry any further obUaations, apatt: from the contrfbutfbns ~ on a monthly basI! Whtch art' ClharJed to the
Statement of Profit and tess,

(II) Def{rled benefit.,plans
Gratu!~:
T~t1Toup provides for gratutty, a defined benefit plan (the ·Gratulty PIan") cover1ll1 ellgtble employees In accordance with the
Payment of GmU!1:y Act, 1m. The Gratll1ty Plan provides a Iwnp- sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
IncapacItation or termination of employment, of an amQUllt based on the respeclfve employee·s salary. The Group's ltabil1ty Is
attuat'llllly determIned (uslng the Projected Unit Credit method) attl1e end ofellch year.

Remeasurements, comprtsiOl of 1ICtuar1a1gaIns and losses and the return on- ptan assets (eoxclUCItntnet tntere5t) Is ref{ec:ted
Immediately In the balance sheet with a chllrgelcredlt n!COinhed mOther Comprehenstre Income roc,") In the period in whIch
they occur.

Remeasurements recognIsed in OCI 4s renect~ Immed:fati!ly In Surplus
red,mlfled 'to profit or l~s In su~t!quent periods.
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(e) Other Long Term Employee Benefits:
Group.·s liabilities towards compensated absences to ernplaye:es whIch are expected to be availed or eacashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year are accrued On the basis of valuations. as at the BIltance sheet date, Gamed out by an Independent
actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gaIns lind tosses comprise expenence adjustments and the effects of c:hlIntes In actullnal assumptions and a~
recognfsed ImmedIately In the statement of profit and toss.

2.1& Earn1ngs Per'Share
BIlslc eamlngs per share Is calculated by dlvldlns the ~t profft or loss for the-year lIttrlbutllble to equfty shareholders by the
weIghted average number ot equity shares outstanding durtng the year. Eamlngs considered In ascertalnl", t~ Grovp's earnings
per share Is the net profit or loss for the year after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax. the~to for the
vear. The weighted average number ot-equlty shares outstanding during the year and for eu the yean presented Is adjusted for
events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equfty shares. that have changed the number of ~ulty
shares outstanding. wlthout'il corresponding change In resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profft or loss for the year attrtbutable to equity sharehOlders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding durtna the year is adjusted for t~ effects of an dftutfve potential
equity shares.

2.19 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of Interest and other costs thal an entity Incun In connectfon with the borrowtns of funcls. Borrowing
costs lItso Indude exchange differences to the extent regarded lISan adjustment to the borrow1ll1 costs.

All bblt6Wlng costs are charg~ to the Statement ot Profit and l~s except:
a) Borrowfng <om directly attrfbutable to the acquisition or constructfon of assets that nec:essar1ly takes a substaOtfll1 per10d of
time to .get ready for Its Intended use are clIpltalfsed as part of the cost of such assets.
b) Expenses ~ncurred on raising lonll term bOrrowings are amortised usfnt effective Interest rilte method over the period of
borroWfnss.

Investment Income earned on the temporary investment of funcls of spedfk borrowfnas pending their expefIdlture on quallfyfnt
assets Is deducted from the bOrrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

2.20 DIvidend on ordInary sharcs
The Group recognises a liability when the diStribution IS euthoi1sed bY ~~ shatetlolders. ,., corri!'spood1na amount. Is recognIsed
directly In eqUity.

2.21 Segment R.portl"g
Operating segments are defined as eomponen~of an enterpr1se for whIch discrete ffnanclal Informat1on Is available that {$

evatuat~ regularly by the chief operating deciSion maker. .

The group has two business segments:
(I) In'lestmen.t: Earning Income through dMdends, Interest. rentals and gelns on Investment In securities and property.
(ii) Networkfng : Developing. manufacturing, marketing, dlstrlbutfna and servld,,! of networking products.

2.22 Roundln. off amounts.
All amounts disclosed In finarrcllli statements and notes have btte" rounded off to t!le nearest lakhsi unless otherwtse stated.

1 SllTllflcant IIccountjlll judlments • .,tlmatM and assumptIons
In the preparation of the financial statements~ the Gp,p makes judgements, t'Stlmat~ and aSSUlllptlOhs abOut the carryfng amount of
assets and liabllitfes that a~ not ~adlly appa~t from other SOUF~. The- estimates and associated asslmptlOOi art! based on
hlstortcal experience and other factors that lire considered to be relevant. Actual resul.tS<may differ from these estimates.
Estfmates and underlying assumptions a~ rPVfewed on an ongolna basis. RevisIons to accountflll estimates ere recognised
prospectively. In(o(lTlatlon about assumptions, judgements and estimation uncertainties that hllve a significant r1sk of resUlting In a
mate tment In the year ending March 31, 2023 art! as below:

'1>'< &.q1S'
-c Ir
b 0.~ l'VIur:
r:..
~
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(a) uf:fdt rift' of pro~\Y, pllnt InC! ~~Ulpment~ ;~vestment '~OpertY and' fnt.bJjlilo I1seWJt6tl1ts e)!peet~TesldUII vllU'e
P~perty, plant and eQUfpment, l~estment Property and 0'ther::lntant1ble assetS represent &,signlf!cant proportion of the".assets
of t~ Group. IRpredatlon and amortisation Is derned after determfnlng an estlmcte of an lI$Set's expecte<lusefut life and tbe
ex~ted resIdua! valu~ at ~~ 01 II,S lIt~ l'he useM Uves and resfd\Jal v~lues of "Group's ~ ..are determined by
.,ement at tBe ,tlme the a~.set is licqufr~ and r'Mew, OdlcallYll WJludlllt at: ·tae~)tfn~lal yeit end. The lIVe! are
baseH on hlstorica,l. expertence Mil similar Ilnet't AS'wel~ as ' patlOn offuWi'e eventS, whIch may ImpqcUhelr life, suCli IS

changes In technOlogy.

(b) Fair valUl> mea:surertlents al'1d valOa'tlon processes _
The '(arr value of financIal instruments Is the price that woolil be recelYed tO'seU an asset or paid to trahS{et a UabflltY In an
orderty transaction In the principal (or most odvantllleous) mar1let at the measurement 'date under ctm'ent mar1let conditions
(t.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price Is dlrectly-observable or estimated usfni anothervaluat1on technlq~.~n
the'falr values of financial assets ~~d fI~ancial \I~l:!llIt'es recoJee<! In the balant~ sheet cannot be der1v a~tlve Ilit~'ts,
th~ are determined using al/ar1~ of valuaffon:.teehnlques tfllit Indude the ~e of yal~tlon models. 'The ts to these I'1lDi1f.'ls
are taken from observable markets where posslble, but ~ 'this Is not feasible, estimation Is required jn establishing fair
values. Judgements and estimates Include cons1(feratlons of liquidity and model Inputs related to Items such as credIt risk ~both
own and counterpa'tty~, funding value adjustments, correlatlo/l and volatility for further details oboUt determInation or fair
w~ .

/ __··'o

(e) Adullrial Valulltion
Th~~et~rmlnatlo~. of (lom . rtf obl{satfon to emplo~es Is mild. ,hroUS" 11)d~~~4Vlt
acW3r1al valuati~tf;1nCludini Inatlon of.. amounts to oenised In the Stat~llt Of Proflt and Loss and In Other
Comprehensive tncorne, Such valuatlon depend upon assumptions detennfned after taking IritO ICcount dlscoU1t rate, salary
growth rete, expected rete of return, mortolltyoand attrition rate,. ~ to the,comp{exlUes Involved In the"vatuat1on and ItS long·
term nature, a d benefit obUgatlon Is hlghlycsensltfve to ~nies In t~·oasslM11ptiogs", Information a!loot such ~luatfo1) Is
prqvlde-d In not e financial stlltem~hts. '

(d) Impairment of non·finllncllllll~S'ets
In assessing imp]lfrment, mana ent estimates the recoverat5le amoun~ of ~ilch asset or cash'lenenl1U11 uolts IxIsed en
e/~Cte(! future cash, flows all s 1Ir:1Interest'il rllte'''tO dl tllem, 'EsHmaBon uncel'talnty I'!!lates t~assumptlon$ 'about
foturtr operating r'E!Sullslind ttle e ermhlatlol'\;o'f A3iJ1tabie t'rate. .

(e) Effedlvt Interest Rab. (EIR) method
T~cGroup~s EIR methqdology, retognises 'nteres\ IncQ~ 1 'e uslne' - e.of return tnat'represenu tl'le~t ~tfmate;Of a
constant rate of r-elun'l riVer tile; expected bebavfoural U e OlIn, Itve taken and l"eCoal'llses the ~ffeet of potentially
dlffl!rerlt Interest rares lit various stages and other characteristIcs of the finandallmtruments,
This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement retarding the expectetl behaviour and IIfe·cycle of the
lnstruments, as welL ~xpected cfianaes to India's base ra~es:anCl other ·f.ee 'fncomer~pense that are. fntegral parts of the
InstnJ!!Ient. >

(f) ImpaIrment of rlnanclal asset
The Group recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit losses (ECl) on (tsJlnancial assets measured at amortized cost and
Fair Value through Other C.omprehenslve IncQme (FVOCI) el{cAAl,1!1V~t fQUlty Ins~ts. At e~J'I!POI'tlnt cda~1'the
Group assesses Whether the abOVe financIal assets al'!! cr'edft, .•,mpalred, A ,1111a$set:t It.lm~~·'~ one~f!lOre
events that have~detrlmentat Impact on the ~tlmat~ future cash flows ofttle financial ha~ ocCiJl.1:e'd.

.. Ministry of Corporate Affairs r'MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the ex'fft1nt standards ~er Companfes (Indian
ACCloUtitfngStandllrds) Rules a, Issued from Um. to tfme, C?o 31. ZOZa"MP'A IImended file C;1)~n~:QJ1dlan AC~()\.IQtlfli
Standllrds) Amendment ~ules, 2623, appltcable'fl'om April 1, , as below: '

(1) Ind AS 1 • DIsclosure of material accounting P911c1es:
rh~'lImendments reillted to shifting o,f d~scIO$u~ of erstwhl~~lgn'flcant a.cc~tlni pqlld to ·'rna.te~"(C:QUntl"a,
In the notes to the financial sta~emer\ts requlrl'rig companies t'cf:reframe thetfaccounting 'to make tfifii1lT101'e "e
specfffc. This amendment aligns with the "material" concept }I{~ady requfretl' Under Intemafc10nal Flnanclal Reporting Standards
(IFRS). The Company does not e~t this amendment to have ooy sllnfffcant Impact In Its ffnlInc1al statements.
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(II) Ind AS8 - Defln(t1on of accouritlhg estImates:
The amendments will help entities to distinguish betweeollccountlng pollC1es and accountil1l estimates. The defInition of a
"chi)nie til accountfng estfmates" has been replaced WIth II definition of "accClUOtfnrestimates ... Under the new deflnltlO(1,
~c~ountln~tfmlltes lire "monetary amounts,ln:llnanclalittateme~~ that ate: sulSject to measurement uncertainty." (n({tles
develop accounting estimates If accountlna polldes requite Items In ftnanclal statements to be ~lISured In a way that Invol~
mel:lsuremeo{ un<:ertalnty. The Company does I)Ot expect tnts amer¥lment t~1!.ave 6nY~silntrlcont..lmpact In Its fl'l!OClal
~\atement$' ','"

{ill) Ind~"1'2'Ilrrcome Taxes
The amendments narr~ the scope of the re<:osnltJon exemption In paragraphs 15 ond 14 of Ind AS 12. lit the date of
transltfon to Ind ASsj a first-time adopter shall recOinlze a deferred t'llx."met to the ex.t~ t]1a,t It,~ prQ~b\Hha~ t~ble
profit WIll be available agaInst wtllcN tne deductible temporarY dlfferelite CM be otitned. Sfmliarfy. II a~ferred tllX liability for
all deductible and taxable temporary dlfferences associated with:

a! light-of.use assets and lea$e Uab1lf~I~j
bJ decommissioning. restoration and sfm1lar liabilities and the COI'feSpondj(ll amounts rec:ognlx~ a\ part 01 the con of the
related asset.

Therefore. if a company has not yet ~Oinl5ed deferred tax on r1ght-01-use assets arid-lease Uiibillties or has reccilnlsed
deferred tax on netb!lsls, the same need to retOin1z~ on gross basis based on the ca!1Ylna amount of "@t·of-use assets and
lease liabilities.

t.:
~MInd AS .103 - Common control Busfnen Comblnatfon
Th"e amendments modify tije disclosure requirement fOT buslnesi combination under common con'ttot tn the ,first ftftintlal
statement folloWIng the bUSiness combination. It l'equlres to disclose the date on which the tramferee obtains- control of the
trallsferor~s require<1 to be dl$close<l.
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5 Cash aiftJ cash e-quivalents

As at
March 31; 2023

6 Bank balances other than cosh and cosh .quival."t
! ' '# r~i;, 'c , .,' '\1\\, >%t ' '>i,~'

Particulars Aut As at
.~ -".

March l1, 2023 Marcb 31, 2022
'" In Fixed'deposit with matur::1tyfor more than 1i2 mohths" it' "'~t323,664 :2TO'fl1~'3~

Accrued Interest on deposit 36.12 49.85
Unpaid dividend accounts -~, .~ 0.', 10M .;.4;;1f4
Total '1,361.62 :Z.06'5'. 37
•
1, Indudes INRn.45 lakhs (March 31, 2022 JNR n.4~ lakhs) held as margln monef;~~lnst ba)l'k gu~rafltee,

2. Includes INRNIL (March 31,2022: INR 940.00 lakhs) held against corpejrate guarantee to bank for credit factlitles
,3. Includes INR6'60.00 tak1:ts(March 31, 20221l'lR 1\5. 96'1.12 lakh'S;)fixed depOsits under lien with the bafl~s-asrpar.gfn
money agalhst credit fadtl~y availed. .,

4. Includes INR55.00 lakhs ~March 31,2022 INRNIL) flxe-d deposlts under lien with the Smalllndustrla,LDeveloptnent
Bank'Of'Lnd!aas a margIn mGneyagaInst ter"lloan a~a1~d.

7 Receiv;abfes

*.1032,2,,( 1,7t2.84
29.0t 23.19

(29.01i (~>3.19)
i4.0~2.24 1.11'2.8'4

8.ZZ '~,96
4,040.51 1.1f5.80
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A~at
March 31, 2022

Not Due

Less than (, months
6 months· 1 year
1·2 years
2·3 y,ears
MOre. than 3 years

1,548.98

17'f.66
5.01
0.36

1,729~;\I6

10..0
8.15

9.53

. (29.0,t) (23.19)
~tO'40.'1 1,715.80

8

PartIculars

Securfty Deposits (gross)
Less: Provtston tor Impairment loss
Security Deposfts (net) 28.1a 29.24
Advance- to employees 5.89 8.57
Production Linked Incentive ReceIvable 280.00 1~5;.77
Total 3104.01, 173'.$8

9 Current tax assets (net)

PartIculars As,~t As,at

.it, ." March 111, 2023 .~ Marcll 31, 2021.
Advance<payment of taxes and tax deducted at source (net of
prov1sfons for taxation of Rs. 1,OS1.SO takhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 176.tS 80,80

.: 1966.3~ ..olakhS) =. ~
Total 176.28 SO.80
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241.65
S90.Ql

10(l-S8 100,sS

320.90 320.9()

30 320.901 '320.94
28 .sOz.S'

» 30 343.01.

5 ~ 5M3
20,fl1f 210,03:

312.94
134.60

10 102.68'

2~, 206.34
348,54

10.00.000 163.5'~:
10.00.090 20 '23.0.83 21Q.8'S

1.00.00,000 1 3 314.09 314.30

1(1 100.65
10 103.85

~ "0,00,000 201;2()': 202.68
2 204.50 204.52

170.85

529.1:8'
92.87

523.41
88.49

252.66
1~ 20~,-25

4,551.90 5,056.62

1,537.31
1,537,.31

SMARTlINK HOLDINGS LIMITED
ofHo~,rorm{'lS,part or the Con$olldat~ Financial St~t~~nb fOf:~~ye.~ ~dea$j Marccflt'20}3

(Amount tn INRlakhs, IJ!II!!SS o~rwt~~tatl!d)

13 InvlIstm.nts

4,551.90
1,537.31

~~915.92

A~.t
March 31, 2022

!ii056.62

InVl!stments outSide India
Investments In IndIa

12,280.67

., Inv~tm""ts Ill-:.sured at Amo~sed Cos~
InnstrTiC!nts i~llonds (9.11ot~)~ffl(.r notc! 2)1 .«

Cholamandalam Perp NCO Series PDI10 12.90%
Tata l!Q.wer Coml,)any limited 20~. NCO.10.751
C:'nara Bank BOPerpetual • 9.s~
Cholamandalam;IOVl!stment and Flna.,ce C9mpal1YLlmlted',~ NCO

. UO~ '.,""
Mahlndra Rutal.houslni Finance ltd 201r·~CD 8~
HOFC Bank Lff!1I~ed pe$~~DI• eo 8.85~.,
Tata Motors Ff"tlaJ1ceLfihiftod Perpetu<!'l fleD .11.1~
Balaj i'lnanee ltd 2027 • NCO 8."51
1'at~r;ap.ltal FinanGl1l1S:l!r,.1~~ h1intted 20'12 ° NC9 3.45.1
!.aT Infrastructure Finane!! Company lfmltl!d ·NCO 7.65'
LaT Infrastructure FInance Com~ny LImIted· NCD'8.81'
UP Power Cofritatlon Umltl!d • NCO 10,15';
North Eastern Electric ))ower CorporattOCl"Limited. NCO 7.681
letci BJln1<OO~,Uer ·110'.00,% <~.

'rata Sons Ltd NCO • 9.541

MGMoFinanclaliServfcos Ltd 2031:· 7.35"
i~ :. . ,

State lIank of IndIa t.JiI~ured Rated L1steC! AddltlOnat Tier I Non
Convertible Bond ·7.721
8. 50~ Mvtl1ootJlocorp 9Lmlted
Punjab National Bank Tiel: 1I• 8.931

" Kotak M,ahlndra-.Bank LI~ltl!d Basel tit pellJio 8.1~
:§ State.1llnk of lnata petrY 100 yeal1 • 7. '5%

LaT Finance Umfted Tier n (sertes-s) • 9.95"
Punjllbt:"l'tlqnall'lllnk (TIER II) Bonds.· 9';'2~

Lin Flrtance LImIted MLO
TATA Capital Ffuanclal Services limited ° 7..89%
L'&T Finance Uffifted • Sits" '
Mahlndra IiMahlndra Ffnanc1al ServIces LTO· 7.~
Bank Of India .,~rles Xl)~.9.80%
PNIIHOUflng ffn'ance lfffllte<1lloniis (Ser1es XVII.lll· 9 •.cst
L Ii.T finance U(11lted • 8.901

Flxe<JJ)~p05lts (Unqu!,~)
Flxedmposft With 6ajaj fInance limited (refer tOOt note 1')



~'R.TLINK tfOlDINGS I:IMrr£O
Hotes fonnlng part of the, Consolidated Flnancfal Statem.nts forth. y9lr ended 31 March 1013
(~mount In ItlR: lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Partlculan

57<4\030 2~;O2
3,90,996.<466 3,90,996.<466 101.s.4

~0,67 ,52~.707 20,67,52".707 5<40';'''
21,17,91.2.2 2<4,35;703.391 576.19

",93,5204.038 .. ,93,SZ,... 038 12.ili~4·,
10 040,817.002 2,50/1'92.088 1l9;85
10 78,693,.,156 51,205,961 25.37

Mutual Fund
FUl1dSll~~ Ter!11 ·>GrOVfth• Regulilr:Pllln 15,0",985.518 15,~.985.518 ~0',93

10
100

'10 040,77.363 •.452

India Short term Income l'llln' Retail Plan· S~atej 1,000 13.6049.982 18,290.977 12.75
Id~a ltd 02SepZOU (P Ie o3sej)i021) .

Mutual Fond
UltraSJ1~ Term FV'Ii:!Plan Growth ,10 !O,022.a3' 10';022.335 : 220'.30
Short Term Fund· [)Irect Plan Growth 10 7,725.5<4i 7,125.5<41 24-1.55

6'19';53
10 2,52,757.312 9,85,570.099

Short Duration fuM • Direct Growth (Formerly L IiT Short Term 6110.93 655.07
• Direct Plarl • GrowUl) 10 ,28,97, 28, 97) fJ~.850

Fund
Banki(lg & PSU Debt Fund· DIrect Ptan - Growth ( For.merty

Ii PSUDebt Fund· Direct Ptlln • Grqwth) , 10 19,040,<480."15
"1.,"d~hOa Term Plan· GtOWtW'£brmerlY"fllt€"BOnd

33.38<4.3"9Term Plan· Growth) to
Dynamic bona fund· Growth· revuli!lr pllIn ( Form~¥ IOfC

fund Ilrowth reRula() 10 ,to,77,8<45.928

PSU Bond Plus SOL IrId!!)( fund· 2016 Direct ~a" 10 18,37,&32.?06 18.37,832.906



SMARTl.INK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hotes (armln. part-oHhe Con~olld.ted Financial Stat~ents forth. year endfd 31IUtch 2013
(Amount In ltiR lakm, unless ot~se stated)

.
H~ Amount

Particulars FaceValue As at AI at As at As e~
Mlrch 31, 2023 Mlrch 31, 2022 Mlrch 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Preference Shares (Unquotfd)
Infr&tructure LeaSing and FInancial Servfces limited· Preference 7,500 3..(() 49.30
Shares· 16.<46'

Total· Gross
'110

...~pO
Less: Allowance for Impairment toss 1'49.30)
tem- tlet ,

TotallrM!stments· Gron '_", ;':. 12,Zeo.6Z 1101La.
tOt8.llmpalrment "" ~~~. ,~ iF " . lil'9.30)
TotallnvestmenU· Net 12,280.62 10,971.504

Aigregate book velue of:
Quoted I~tments 4,551.90 5,056.62
Unquoted Investments 6,950.66- 5.256.21

Algr~ate market value of:
Quoted Investments 4,364.52 4,&10.31
Unquoted Investments ~ c' . ' .. ~ ~ , ,_. 6,19f.41 5.9,15.92

.~
Footnote:·
Fixed deposits are pledged aiafnst Loan obtaIned by OIalsol Systems limited (Mlrcl)")1, 20lllNR NIL).
Investment In B<llndsIncludes'llccrued Interest INR174.68 In tile current year and 210.83 lekhs In the previous year.



-

'*SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITEO
Not" forming part of th@Consolldat.d Financial Stat~m~nts for th. yur ttndfll~1 March 2023
(Amount In INR lakhs. untess otherwls~ stat~)

,.. Inventories
(Valtl~ at the lower of cost ot net realizable value)

Partfculan

Raw l11aterfafs and components
R4w mater1als and components In transit
WorMn·progress
fInished goods
Stock In Trade

Alit Aut
March 31, 2013 March 11, 2022

790.71 181.11
256.85 <405.59
5l5.73 0.32

68.0<1 2.50
1,64'1.56 653.23

13.804 164.37
36.18 26.lU

3.330.91 1,"33.2~

5.814.831) The.Cost {If ~w materIals Inventories recognised as ~e durilli the
ye-af/!
Carrying value of Inventor1es hypothecat~ as security by the SUbsld1ary

2) companies

(Also refer note 17)

3.19<4.73

lS Other non financlol assets

852.02

Aut
March 31.1023

AS It
March 31. 2012

112.13
8?Q.10

12.50
46.63

142.63
512.1.4

6.36
42.47

',041..36

16 Trade payable,

703.60

" Aut As It
Particulars March 31.2023 ",March 11, 2022

Total outstal}oing dues of mlqo enterprises lItld small enterprises t24,66 8.66
(refer foot note belOw)
Total outstanding doe$ Of c(editors other than micro enterpnses and 3.~1.3l 1.229.~
small enterp!1ses
Totil 3,705.99 1,238.50

The dlscloslires. under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpr1ses OevetopmenLAct, 2006 have ~ made In mpect
of stiCh vendOrs to the extent they coold be Identified lIS micro etlte."nses md small ent~rpr1se_s on the basts of
Information avatlabre with tbe Company.

Hote:
As at Alit

Particulars MaTCh31, 2023 March 3"1,20ll

Outstanding principal amount and Interest ~on 31st Marth.
. Pr1nclpal Amount 1i4.66 8.66

• Interest due thereon ~ 0.04

Amount of interest. paid along with the amounts of payment made 0.70 .
beyond thl"appolnted"day

A~t of fnter~st due and payable (wh~~'the pnndpal has al~ady ~O.2l 0.~1
beet! paid but Interest has not been paId)

,~Ct ~.
Ttie' amoUnt --of Interest accrued anc1 remalnlng lKlJ)a1<l at the end of 0.23 0.68
each accounting yea~

, ,C' _

The amount of further Interest remaining due lind payable ~en In
succ;eedlng ~ars, until such date when the Interest dues as above are
actljally pald for the pOi'pOse ot disallowance as a d~uc:tlble
expenditure !Jnder section 23 of the saId Act

.\¥;~ _-OlA ~ tl--7
~



SMAIt'NK. HOLDI~S LIMITtO
Mot" formIng part of the Consolidated Flnancla' Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AmOJ.ll}t In IN,~lak"s unless otherwise stat~)

Payable Hot Due
Le~~hlln 1 year
1·2 years
2·3:1g~rs

122.73
1.9l

As It
March 3t, 2022

),18
0.27

1,229.8"1



SMA~TIJNK HOL61NGHIMITEO
Note~ formlnl part of the Consolidated FinanCIal Statments for' the yllir ~ded 31 Mlrch 202.3
(Amount In It{Rta~hslunless otherwtse stat~

17 Borrowings(oth" than d,bt s,curlt/n)

AutParticulars March 3~, 2022:
lSorrowlnas measured at Amortised Cost
~
Bank Overdraft 205.82 6'''.33
Term Loan 206.98
Loan from Financialinstttution 1,~50.08 ,
Unsecured
Loans from director 1,263.37 1,730.00
Lease liabilitle, 3"0.'" 1~3.56
Total '3,366.66 1,527.89

Borrowings f" India 3,366.66 2,527.89
BorrowIngs outsIde India
Total 3,366.66 2,517.89

Terms and conditions:
$el;ures! LoaDi
Bank OVerdraft of Synegra EMS limited and that of Olalsdl Srstems Ltmlted Is secured bY charge ranklna pari
passu, by way of hypothecation of 1111 exlstlnl and futuro Inventory and trade l'Kelvables, Corporate Guarantee
from Parent Company of INR..300 lakhs, and lien on FlxeodDeposit of Parent Company of INR660 takhs.

1 Durlnll the year ended March 31, 202l, new term loan from SI061 was avened by SyneRra EMS LImited amo~ntlng
to INR206.8'" lakhs and carries Interest <p 8.25%. The term loan Is repayable In 30 equal monthly Instalments after
a moratorlum of 6 mOnths.
Term loan is secured by II first char'llel by way of hypotl1ecatlon of all movilble assets (&xcept Inventory and trade
receivables), lien on fixed deposit of INR 55 lakhs of Synellra EMS LImited and Corporate Guarantee from Par~t
Company of INR270 lakhs.
As por' the !oan sanctfon tatter, the SaId loan W~s taken for the purpose of purchase of Plant & Machinery. Thl!
Company has used such borrowings for the purpo~ as stated In the 10llnsanction letter.

2 During the year ended March 3:~, 2023, nliW'SMi't ter""revol~lrliloah from BaiaJ Finance LI~Ited was ivalled by
Digisol Systems Limited amountlnR to INR 1350.00 lilkhs and carries floatlnl Interest. The short term revolv1na
loan Is repayable In 90 days.
Short term revolving IQlln Is secured by way or lIen on fixed deposlr of jNR 1500 la~hs and Corporat. Guarante-I!
from Parent Company of INR2000 lakhs.
As per the loan sanction letter, the said loan was tal<en for the purpose of worldna capital. The Company hIS used
~uch borrow)"}s for the purposes IS stated In the lo~ sllrlCtlon letter.

Unsgcvred lOllo
toan from Director taken for II tenure of i365days

18 Ot"" f'na,!c'af Ifabffltl,s

Aut
March 31, 2023

Aut
March 31, 2022PartIculars

9.56
<1.1"
0.68

28 ... <17
1~iI.88

7.92

DeposIts
Unpaid dividend #
Interest accrued on delayed payment to MSME(Refer Note 16)
Cilpltal creqltors
Employee Payable

8.58
<1,.20

<100.97' .(55.65



SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

, . Not'" fdrltllng part o,{;;theConsolfcl.te!:irln~~II,t Stlt~n'!~b for th~,y,elr en~ 3{ ~r(h ~13
(Amount 1n INRlakhs; untess otherwise stated) ,

19 Provisions

70.n
36,&6
3~.62

Asat
March 31, 1023

144.25

\



SMARTLlNK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hotes formIng part of the Consolidated flnanct.1 Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In INR lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

20 Other non financial tfabilfr/ts

As at Aut
Partlculars . March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Statutory dues payable 33.62 21.66
Advances tron clients Icustomers 154.73 50.36
Advance rent received _' 6.34 0.45
Total ~ 194.69 72.47

,K ,'~
21 ~quit'y shart capital ""

+he Company has only one class of equItY share ca'tfttal having a par value of INR 2 per share" referred to herein as
equity shares.

. As at Aut
PartIculars March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022

"> ,~

AuthorIzed
3.50,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 21· each 700.00 700.00

700.00 700.00

Issued. Subscribed and [!ald U[!
99,75,000 (March 31, 2022 : 1,33,00,0(0) Equity Shares of INR. 21· eacn, 199.50 266.00
fully pate-up :II
Less: NIL (March 31, 2022 : 33,25,000) EqUIty Shares purchased under Buy· . 66.50

back scheme

Total ,,, 199.50 199.50

(a) ReconciliatIon of equity shares outstand1ng at the hll1llnnlna and at the end of the year

As at
March 31, 201%

As-at
,March 31. 20%3

99,75,000 1,33,00,000Outstanding at tlie beglnnlnll of the year
Add: Issued during the year I Bonus
less: Bought back during the year (33,25,000) .

99~75,000Outstanding at the end of the year 99,75,000

The Board of Directors of the Company at its ml!'etlng held on "Ith December, 2020 and the Shareholders of 'the
Company througll postal ballot on 10th February. 1021 had approved the proposal of the Company to buy·back upto
33,25,000 (ully pald·up equity shares of INR. 2/· each at a price of INR. 95/· per share (aggregating to 17."13" of the
fully paid-up Equity Share Capital and Free Reserves of the Company). payable In cash for an 3iiregate amount not
exceeding INR. 31,58,75,000/· from the exlsttng Shareholders of the Company und~ Tertder Offer MeChanism! The
offer was kept open from April 30. 2011 to May 14.2021. The Company had oought back 33,25,000 Equity Shares and
the shares were extinguIshed on May 27, 2021.

(b) RIghts, preferences and restrtcttens attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equIty shares having a par value Qf IflR 2/· per sf\are. Each sharehotder Is entitled
for one vote per share held. The dIvidend proposed by the board of directors j~ subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in the case of interim dividend. In the ~t of liquidation
of company, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company after distributions of
all preferential amounts. In proportion to theIr shareholdlnll.



SMARTI!.INK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Flnandal Statements for the year onded 11 March 2023
(Amount in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(C) Detalls of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggreJate shares In tho Company -
Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

No of shares " of holefin. Noo(sh~res " of holdlnl
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk 48,00,161 A8.12% 46,141160 46.86%
Ms. Arati K. Nalk 9,34,833 9.37X 9,3"\,833 9.37i
MIs. LakShana A. Sharma 7,94,608 7.97X 7,94,608 7.97X
Mrs. Sudha K. Naik 4,67,417 4.69% 4,67,417 4.69%

(d) Aggregate number of shares bought back during the period of five years Immediately precedlnl the reporting
d!te:

Ho of shares No of shares
Particulars bought~"'ack dUring outstandIng

., the year
31.03.2023 . 99/75,000
31.03.2022 33,25,000 99,(5,000
31.03.2021 "' 1,33,00',000
31.03.2020 36,50,000 1,33,00,000
31.03.1019 56,00,000 1,69,'50,000

\l'

(f) Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year --

Aut
Co March 31. 2023

Promoter name
No. Of Shar.s " of tobl stiares " "C".ns. dqrlna

the year
Mr. KamalakshaR. Naik " ~ i "'48)00,163 48.12% 2.7~
Ms. Aratll(' Nalk 9,34,833 9.37X ·
Mrs. Lakshana A. Sharma 7,94,608 7.97% ·
Mrs. Sudha K. Halll. 4,67,417 4.69% ·
Mr. Amlt Virendra Sharma' 17,891 0.181 100%
K R Naik HUF 1,00,493 1.01% ·

Total '" 71~1~,4()5 71.J4~
'l-.

As at
~ March 31, 2022

Promoter name
" Chan .. durin,Ho. Of Shares " of total shues the year

Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nalk -~

46)14,160 46.86% ·29.71%
I.Ms. Aratl K. Nalk 9,3~833 9.37X ·29.71%

Mrs. Lakshana A. Sharma 7,~<r,601f' :7.9"';' ·29.71~
Mrs. Sudha K. Na1k "',67,417 4.69% ·29.71%
K RNaik HUF 1,00,493 1.01" ·29.71%

Total 69,71,~' 1 6~.90"

22 Oth~r ~quity

As at Aut
Partfculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022., .~

General Reserve 5,567.20 5,567.20
'Capital Redemption Reserve 400.60 400.60

,?
t;apltal Contribution 92.95 92.95
mOet Reserve on rlnanelal Instruments 2.27
MOCI Reserve on defi~ed benefit plans (52.32) (.22.95,)
Statutory Reserv,e 1,254.32 &99.50
Surplus In Statement of Profit and Loss 10,888.05 9,361.00
Total 18,1,0.80 16,300.57



SMARTlINKHOLDINGSUMITED
NotM {onning part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for thecyear en~ 31 Marclr 2023
(Amount In tNR lakhs, unless otherWIse stated)

(A) General Reserve·
As at

March 31, 202:1
Particulars

Opening balance
Add I (Less): Transfer from Surplus In Profit and Loss account

5,567.20

Cl051nl balance 5,567.20 5,567.20
"General reserve is Iree reserve available for distribution as recommenCled by Board In accordance with requirements
of the Companies Act. 201)

(8) Capital Redemption Reserve·

Particulars As at As It
March 31, ZOU March 31. 2022

Opening balance .0400.60 334.10
Add: NIL(March 31,2022: 33,25,000) Equity shares of INR2/· each . 66.50
purchased under buyback scheme

Closing balance "00.60 400.60
'Thls is On account of transfer towards buyback of equity shares. It wllLbe utilized in accordance With the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

J

(C) Capital contribution-
As at As It

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Opening balance 92.95 92.95
Add I (less): Change durlng the year ~ .
Closing balance 92.-95 92.95 ~
" Represents Impact of Interest on loan to subsidiaries by promoters It lower than market rate of fnterMt.

(0) FVTOCIReserve on f'lnancfallnstruments·
Aut As It

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
j

Opening batance 2.27 2.27
Net fafr vatue gain! (loss) on financial instruments (2.27) .
Closing balance . 2.27
• Represents changes In the fair value of certain Investments in debt securities. These change are aCcumulated within
the FVTOCIreserve within equity. The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to retal~ earnings when the
relevant debt secunnes are derecognlSed.

(E) FVTOCIRnerve on defined ben.nt plans·
As at As at

Parflculllrs March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Opening balance (22.95) (9.27)
Net fair value galnf (\OSS) on flnanciat Instruments (29.m (13.68)
ClOSingbalance (52.32) (22.95)
• Represents, remeasurements I.e. actuarial Bains and losses and the return on plan assets, excludillS amounts
Included in the net interest expenses on the net defined benefit lIabllfty are recosnlsed In the oUTercomprehensive
Income Instead of profit and loss.



SMARnlNK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hotes forming part of the Consolldate,d FInancial 5tatementl for the year ,ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(F) Statutory Reserv~ (As per section.045 IC of the R@sl!rYeBank of India Act 193'_'-

Particulars

Opening balance
Add I (Less): Transfer from Surplus 1nStatement of Profit and toss
C10slnl balance 1,25".32 899.50
"This represents provisIon created under sectIon 4S·fC of the Reserve Bank of IndIa Act; 193<4. It wHl be utilized In
accordance with t!1e provisions of the Reservlt Bank of Ind1aAct. 193'4

(G) Retained Earnings I Surplus In Statement of Profit and loss·

Part1culan

9,361.00
1,923.94

12,765.00
1,031.60

OpenIng balance
Add : Net profit' (loss) for the year

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Amount available for appropriations 13,796.6011,234.9<4

ClosIng balance ,0,81111.05 9,361.00 ,
fRlls represents the cumulatIve profits of the Group WhIch can be ~tllzed II'!acc;ordance with tire provisions of tile
Companies Act, 20t3.

Less: Appropr:fatlons
Less: Transferred to StatutolY Reserve
(essl PaId to Sha,reholders (or putcflase of shares unoer buyback scheme
Less: Buyback Tax:
less: Adjustment on AmalgamatIon
Add : Share In Loss attributable to Mlnanty Interest

23 Han-control"n! ;nt~r~$t

PartIculars

1.98
(6.79)

Opening
d : loss for the period

(354.82) (579.07)
(3,158.7$)

(704.57)
("12.07)

6.79

Aut
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(4.81 )

4.8f
(4.111)

. "
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TlINK HOLDINGSLIMITED
ormln. part of the Consolidated Flnandal Stlt.mtrnt. for th.yelr .nded 31 March 2023
t In tNR lakhs,. unless otherwfse stilted)

On flnlnd.1 asSllts measur.d .t FVTOCI
nterest on bonds
nterest on preference shares

On Flnanctll ASHts m.lsur~ It AlTlortlsed Cost
nterest on deposIts With banks
nterest on deposits with flnllnclallmtltutlons
nterest Income on bonds
nterest Income on security depostts
nterest Income· others

2.53 ... 78
2.53 ".78

52.91 7'1.58
38.3" 6.2."

3"'9.68 ""2.2'"
1.32 0.80

0.26
....... 71 "99.20

"or thl! VI!•• nded "or the V.lr trnded
IA.lrch 31, zon March 31, Z023

)17.18 J~M8
317.71 3"'2.'"

Total

H.t gat"( (loss, mfa'r valcn chang~s·

Plrtlculars

686.28

On 11nanclal Instruments destgnated at fatr value through profit or loss
ot.1

Totol 317.7'

atr Value changes:
Realised
Unreollsed

199.....
111.3'"

FaIr value CMIlie5 In this schedule are other than those arising on accOIJIt of Intll'tst tncome/~ .

Plrtlculars

IItl! 01 goods
ale of servtces
oyalty Income

Other Oprrat!ns ActMtles
recess Scrap Income

ProductIon LInked Incentive Income (refer note 65)
EIS ScrIp Duty Income

For thl! V•• r I!nd.d For the y.ar encltrd
March 31,2023 March 31, 20U

''',332.19 5.987.68
698.07 569.72

''''.35 3<10.20

13.5<1 8.35
280.00 135.77

7.53 29.05
15,"".38 7,070.77Totat

The SubsIdIaries derives tts revenue from contract wlt~ customers for the transfer of loads and services at a poInt In Ume In a
mlllll'ler In wh'fChthe they trlln~'ers the con\l'O\ of BOodsand SIIrvtcn to e....\ome", T.,. Swbstdlar11!Sare ""I.ed mlltnl}' In the
IlIklncss of manUfacture, sale and servtclns of networ1llng products.

Contr.ct Balances

Mov.ment In contract LiabilitIes durlna th. year Currl!ncy VeAr Prnlousy.lr

Openlnl Bal.nce
Less: Revenue Recognised
Add: AmOUlltreceIved
CloslnB Balance

Advanc:. from CUitomen

31.71
30.13

"'8,79
50.37

50.37
"".32

1"5.68
15-4.73



SMAIm.INKJlOJ.OIHGS LIMlTEO
Not.tformlng part of the, ConlOildat~d Flnllttcl., Stat.m~nts ror the' year encS.iI l'i' ~ch 2023

.(AmoUlft In INR la~hS, unless other;w!se $tated)

2.7 Oth.rlncom,

.;,
For the V.ar .nct.d_~r,~~"2023

42.17
5.55
0.29

For the Y.ar .ndtd
Mlrl;fl,31,2023

For th, yelr .n~d'
March 31,20,22

0.26
4.78

30 P h f t k' t durc asCI 0 S oc .ItI· rtlJ (I '" ~j) ,'> -e. i' ,,'" ,":
'" For tM V.ar endtd For ~ yelr ."d.dp,artlCU:lars

:.l:~ ,lMardll1",tOn ,.March 31,2022.," .'11" . '*"~
NetworkIng pro<lucts 14m.sa P,"39.35

lotalti 7. 89,.88 ;439.3"5

31

Plrtfculart

For the ytlr,end.d,.
Mlrch 31, 20ll

• "J:raded
Work·in·progress

0.t1
435.19

O.~

Less: I'nventorles at'the end of'ih. y .. r
~nlsbed 1l0000s

· ManUfactured
• r,..d9CI

WOrlNn·progros;~

Changes In fnvenrortt' of flnlshlMllOods, work·ln·prolress and' ttldtd 166



SMARTLtNK'HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hotes formlnl part of the Con50lI<tat~ Flnanelll Stlt",eots:for the yelr ~~d 31 March 2023
(Amount1n INR lakin, unless otherwise Stilted)

FDrthe year end"d
March 31,2022

269.50
3.71

2~.39
298.60

1f:ortIM y .. r .n~
March 31, 2022

36.n 8.62

10.70
239.n

18.23
6.0'9

201.96 89.46
"!MO R70
26.904 2),33

355.28 192.82

36,47
130.78
54t60 25.41
38.1lI 9.8f
9.)0 4:2'4
56.00 3Ul
.i4l.H 27."6
1~ 10.$1 .

12;1,66', lI'Ul
11.).5& 62;65

1".87 10.004
13.86

0.22 1.31'

5.82 <4.96
12.89
1.2Q

38.35
945.23

lellse Rent lind ttceose Fees
RepalrS"and maintenance
• Ir'.a_chfnery

ward
Travel and conveyanCe expel1$es
AppliEatlon, Registration IiFiling Fees
Provision for advance paid to supptler
Bad cfebts written off
Expected Credit Lon on trade receivables (or time value of money

~Rendlture on Corporate SOc1a[responsibility IR~fettlote 63)
Sundry Balaoce written off
Production ltnlled 'ncentlve.'J~me written off
Miscellaneous Expense
Total

For the year .ncled
Aarch )1, 2021



SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED
..etes forming part of the Conso"dat~ flnancfal Statements for the year en~d 31 Mareh 2023
(Amount In INRlakhs. unless otherwise stat~)

36 IncorM talC

(A Deferred tax teletuto th~ fofldWfnfl"-
Partlcullp Ant ASlt

March 31, 2023 Mllrch 31, 2022

~ Deferred tax assets
On account of timing difference in retlralahd other employee benefits 23.62 17.l~
on account of fair value of flnanc'alllsset~ d~lgnated It MOC.I

I~
1.71 104.12

Provision for doubtful debts I advances 1.30 7:a4
On disallowance'u/s 40a of Income Tax Act, 1961 ''''.9~ 10.'18
On business losses 519.09 549051
On provision fOC" slow moving stock A2.n 26....6
On VRS Compensation l< a.~2 17.03
Others ".60 12.~1

633.51 656.06
Deferred tax lJabflltfe$
On property, plant ilnd equIpment 160.36 15,.78

lor on accou'lt:'Of fair value of {inanc1al assets designated at MPL 206.12 113.01
Other temporary differences

366•..a 328.85

fIr Deferrecl'tllx 1I.611'tY,(N&t:~' "j§ "t. I", s-. 267.03 327.21

(8) Rl!conc:fIJation of dererredhX aneW (Illbllltln) (ntt)·

Particulars For the Vear en~d For tM ywar ended
Marchl'1.1023 March l " 2022

Opening balanee 11$ of 1Apt'll 327.lt (81.89)
Tax assets I (UabfUtfesJ recognIzed In StlIteml!nt of Profit and Loss (65.68) 408.39
Tax assets I (liabilities) recognized In OCI
On re·measurements-gall'1/(losse3) of post-employment benefit obligations 5.49 0.71

On preference shares and bonds - .
iiJIi' Closlnl b.. lanc.'.s a~31 March , 267.03 327.21

(C) Deferred tax asseW (liabilities) to be retCOInlzed In Statement of Proflt and Loss

Partlcular.$
For the Y..,. ended For the year ~

March 31,2023 Mlrch 31, 2021
Ta»lfabllfty
Tax asset C~5.68) "08.39
Deferred tax assetts/ (lIabllltles) to 1M! recognlud In Statement of Profit and (65.611). "011.39Loss

(D) Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss

Partfculars For the Year ended for th. ~Ir ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

• Current tax 33<4.89 108.142
• Alljustments I'n respect of current f~ome tll)( of pre-nC)U1; year (49.n) 6.90
. Deferred tax charge I (Income) - 65.68 (:1108,39)
Income tax expl!nsl! reported In the sutem.nt of profit or less .- 350.115 (293.07)

(EI Income tax .xpetnse charge-d / (credit) to OCI
~,

PartIculars I"or-the V•• r etnded for the year en~
March 3,1, 2023 'Marchl1,2022

Net faIr value (galn)1I055 on debt securtttes . -
Net loss/(galn) on remeasurements Of deflo~ ~rtt plans (5.49J (0.71)
Incomt tax expense"cI'iBrled I (credIt) to OCI ,it ," ,(5."9) (0.71)



SMAR:TLlNK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Not~1formln!l~)'t of th eonsolldlt~d FlnanClalStattments,for the year tnde~3'~ MarchiZ023

(Am9Uflt In IHl\.llIkhs, unle&5'otherwlse'stated)

(FY it_conciliation of tax CharI!!
For the V.. r.ti1ded

March 31,2023
Particulars

2~2'7<4.79
25;1'68%

572.51toeeme tax expcl1$e at tax rates appUcabll!

., ttl( efr~~ of:
• Item nlSt (!I!dottible fOf tax
• brought1ONfard lOSsesadjustments
• dofe assets on tallable business losses
': CS'R dlture n15~1I1l6wed'{()1'tax p~e
· Leasehold land amonlsatlon not claimed in Income tax
-Others

105.07
(:13.3.52)

(3'44;7~t.
(1<41.11)

1.92
2.02

(53.38)

Effect of unrecognlied deferred tax assets (net)

3;'50.85



" ofcshareholdtnt

The effects of the 'Scheme' has been accounted for In the books of accounts 0( Dislsol SY'tems L1mtted tn accordance with the SCheme and Is In
• (fanee with the InClianAccounting Standards.

38 Eamingsl (loss) p.r shorp

BaStc earnings I(l~r~r share amounts are calcutated by dividing the profltf(!oss) for the }'I!ar a,ttr1butabte to equltyhoC~ by the weJiht~ am-aae
numj)er of equftylhllres outsUlndt"i dudnl the year.

shtcd average numbel' of ordtnar:y shares outstartdllli (lunna the period'is. the number naey ,sfiar~ Itil at the I.Ieililnlna of the,
, adjusted t1f the numbel' of ordinary shares booBht beck or Issued dur1!IBthe p.rIod mutt!pJl~ ,by I' tlme"we!Ijfft:ina factor. The tfm4!'Mlahtfna

factori$ the number of days that the shares are outstandlnll~s a proportion or the total number Of da~ tn the year.
The fotlOWlnllreflects the tncome and shane data used In tbe beslc and diluted EPScomputations:

Partlcul.",

1,923.94 1,038.7<4
99:75 10<4.9<4

1 2
19.29 9.90
19.29

em {or Wan:antr,;, .' . ., . •
~ystems' Llmlt~ 'alves warranties en actl~ products. undel'taktna to reRafr I rePlace l!r'oc(utiu~which fefl~I(~Orm satlsflOtot!ly dunn. the

warranty period. Warranty proviston Is made on the cost of material estimated tChbe Incurred on ~nt I ~acement of active products In future,
coosi<k-r1na the WlIrranty period of l-5 yeal$. The provision 1$ determined taldng filto consideration th~ hfstoriul data:of cost IlKumd Cfn sel'\lfdrli I
rectifying product failures.

Add: Additional provision created
Less: PrOVIsionwritt'1!II beck (net of additions)

27.32
9.30

Aut
Marcl13~. 2023

2'3.011
".24



Sw;RTlINK HOLDltlGS,LIMITED
Hates formlnl part of th~ Consolidated flnandal Stat_m.nts for tn_ )'Nf ."dotd 31 March 2023
(.wount In INRtekh~, unless othc~ stated)

<40 Conrfnimr lfabilltfrJ
fi

71.61

~.?- ';0;\
As It ~ •__ ::;.

March 31, 2021

-- ~ --
ASit

Mlrdl 31, IOn
Plrtlculln

Ban~ gUarantees,aiyen I~ f~~ur of Electljclty Department ~(jovemm~t of Goa

COf"jIOf"ate 81U1ranteesgiven In favour of banks on behalf of DlalSO!Systerm limited (Wholly owned subsfdlary)
I1DFCBank llmlt~d
BaJaj Finance Umlted

" Corporate gullrantees given in favour of banks on behalf ofSyneara EMSlimited (Wt1o!lYO\'lT1~dsubsidIary)
HDFCBank LImited
Smatllndustrles,;D~veIOPf11ent Bank Oflndfp,

71.61

3,000.00 1.000.00
2.000_00

1,300.00 1,300.00
270.00

6.6<41.61 3,311.61

<41 Capitol and othrr commftmfnts

" ,Pll'tlcolars AI at As at
March 31, 1013 March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remlllnins to be executed on capital account 275_004
Non-canceUatfoil tease liabilities (Refer Note 43) -, -- 719.96 73".22

(A) Denn!d Contribution Plans
"Ourtns,the year, the Group has r!!Cognized the ,following amounts In the Statement OfProfit lind Loss:

For the Year F«the~lr
Partlculan end~d ended

Mlrch 31, 1013 31st March, 2022

Empl~r's Contribution to Provident Fund and PensIon Fund <43.6<4 <10,71
Employe(s contRbIIt1on to Empl~ Sta~ InS\nll~ 4.47 5.011'
Employer's contribution to National Penson Scheme 2.39 2.17

Employe(s contribution to Professional TIIX 0.19 0.10
Total 51.09 48.06

-es

(B) O~f1ned benefit plans
" II) Gratul\}' payable to empl~s

Th~ Group has II deflnt!il'beneftt ,ratulty Ptan and governed by j)<IyrTJentof Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has Clompleted fIVe ~an or f1)9I'eof
servtces Is entitle<! to a gratuity on d~partu~ at 15 days of last drawn$lliaryfor each completed ~ar of servtces. The ~ Is f~ thi'ouIh a polIcy
w1th LIe.

,co

Partlculan Alit Alit
li!l ,"'. Mlrch: 31, 2023 Mlrch 31, 2022

I) Actuarlal assumptions
'i plscount rate (p,er annum)

- Smartllnk Holdings LImIted 7,2~ 7.271

• DlllfsotSystems limitM 7.12" 7.36~
i, •Synetra EMSUmlted 7.201 7_26~

• Telesmart SCSUmlt!d 6.86~
Rate of Increase In Salary
• Smartllnk Holdings limIted ~ .6.00$ 5.00"
- Dlgfsot Systems limited 6.00" S,OOl
- Synegra EMSlimited 6,<m 6.<m
•Telesmart SCSLImited 6.1m
MCKtaUty IAlM (2012-1<4) Utt IAlM(2012-14) Ult

iI . ~



SMARnlNK HOLDINGSLIMITED
Hotes (ormlnl Plrt of the Consolidated Flnanelal Statements for the year 'ended '31 March 2023,
(Amount In INRlailht. unless otherwIse stilted) I ~J

I,';: ON'. ,\). I
,,_~, rr-----------------------------~~=-~~------~~~~------~------~(\ /'

Aut -Aut 0~\.;':"
March 3'1. 2013 Mlrch 31, t02 - -~

Particulars

137.85 112.2"
U8 7.28

11.3~ 1t.65
(15.19) (6.99)
«l.1" 1l.().4
(.01) 1.63

18.1.31 137.85

1004.99 10<4.70
0.79

6,911 7.21
25.69

(15.19) (6.99)
0.57 o.n)

ttl.04 10<4.99

13.34 11.65

2.90 0.07
16.14 11.7

II) Chanles 1n the pres.nt:value of dlPflned b~njflt oblltltlon
Pnnenl value of oblfBatlon It the bealnnlnl of the year
Interest cost

Actuarial (sainI I loss on obllgatfons . Due to change In F1nandalAs~umptions
Actuarial (gafn)' loss on obligations· Due' to ex~ricnce
,Present value of 01) Illation .Itth. end of the year

1111 Ch~nae In the (aIr value o( plan assets:
Openlna fair value of ptan assets
Adjustment to Opening faIr Value 01 Plan As,.et
Ei<~ted retum On ptan assetS'
Contributions by employer
Benefits paid
Retum on plan assets excludIng Interest Income
ClosIng fair valu. of plan 'ass~s

Iv) Expense recoanlzed In th4l Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost
Total expemes recoahlzed In the Statement Proflt Ind Los~
• Included In Emptoyee benet'h expense (Refer Notl'!33).

l71
"or the Y,.r For th. ~•• r

Partlclila6' endta ended ,
Mlrch 31,1013 31st.~rch, 2012

v) EXP4HI5. rKOInlze<f In Other comprehenslv.lncome

Actuorlal (gain) I loss on ObHgatfon'for the pedod 35.<43 13.67",
Retum on plan amh excluding Interest Incoml'! (0.57) o.n'
Net Ictuarf.1 (gaIns) flosses recOlnlsed In OCI 34.16 14.39

, ~V

Alit Alit
March :", 2023 Ma(Ch 31.2011

vi) Assets Jncfllabllltles recoanlzed In the Balance Sheet:

~:t1
Present vetlle'or Obligation as at the end or the)'e.r (1$1.31, (137.115)
FaIr Val~ or Plan Asset3 lit the end o( the yellr lP·0<4 10<4.99
Nlrt asset I (Ihlblllty) recoanlzed In Balance Sheet· (511.27) (31.116).Included 10 prOVIsionfOf employee bene1lts (Refer note 15 and 19)

vII) Expected contribution to the fund In the n.xt yelr INR 17.37 Ilkhs

vIII) A qu.nHtatlve sensitIVIty analysIs for slgnlflclnt Issumptfon Is as shown below:
As It

Mlrch 31, lOll
ASit

March 31. 2022
PartIculars

S"lary MC,lltlon
rite Discount rate Si'11I!y esclllatlon

nt.,
152.""
121.'"

161.29 200.25 121.74
151.33

1~ Increase
11 decrease 200.17 160.99



SMARTlINKHOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes formlnl pert of U,. Consolidated Financial Statements for tHe yNr ended 31 March 2023
(Amountln INRlakhs, unlen otherwl$e stat~)

Ix}MaturIty profile of d(tflnl~d benefit obUlLatlon

"ut
.. ASitYear

Mirch 31, 2023 Mlrch 31, 2022

Year 1 2.11 2.11
Year 2 1.01 1.91
Year 3

0"
1.21 0,92

Year 1 '16.82 1.18
Year 5 <4.73 "'."8
Year 6 to 10 86.58 60.98

..3 Leosu
(A) Operatlnalease, where Group Is a IPSSN:

When the Intermediate lessor enters into the sublease wmcn Is claSSIfied 115Opefatlna lease, It retains tM lease liability and the Rlllht'-'o(·Useasset
(RaUl relatIng to the head lease In Its statement of financial posItion. Durina the term of the sublease, the IntermedIate lessor. RecOfnlsps a
dep:eclatlon ctiarae for the rlght·of-use lUsellind Interest on the lease liability and Lease Income from the sublease.

funner Ind I>S 116 requires InclusIon of variable lease payments based on Index or a fate.
Variable lease payments based on an Index or 8 rate: Variable leaSt' payments based on an Index or 8 rate (for example, linked to a consomer price
Index, a benchmark Interest rate or a mar~et ren~al rate) are part of the lease liability. From tl).e perspectM! of tM lessee. th~ payments are
unavoIdable, because any uncertaInty relates only to the measurement of the liability but not to Its exbtence. Variable lease paymt'nts based on an
Index or a rate are InItially m~asured usllll the Index or tlTe rate at the commencement date (Instead of fOfWlll'd rates/lndfces). This means that an
entIty does not fore'Cast future chan!!e~ of tile IndeK/rate»these dla"IIPS are tallen Into account at the point In time In which lease payments dlange.
However, based on management's e5tflMtes thct teese payment increases 1~, 'II1ter a period 0{ a period Of three ~"; Therefore, based on
management Judgement, estimates and conservative 8pproach It Is est'mat~, lease liability has been ca\wtated based on the$e estfma~ cash flows.

Foltowlna are the changes In the carrytng val~ of rtght of use assets for the year ended March )1, 2023:"

Particulars
c.t~ory of ROU Asset

.~ ,. ,lInd aclMldlnp ~td\lt."t Tobl
Balante as on AprIl 01, 2021 1040.10 1.93 1"1.03
AddItions .
De'precilltlon 28.SJ 0.63 29.<46
Deletions :.1" =. :l.i .
BalanCe as on March) " 2022 111.27 1.30 112.S7
Addltlons 220.21 7.59 227.80
D~f'ecl!ltlon <46.89 1.42 048.31

DeletIons 23.17 0.81 23.98
Balance as on March 31. 2023 261."2 . 6.66 268.08

1:.
The aggregate depredatiOf\ expense on ROUassets Is Included under depre'Cfatlon and amortizatIon e~e In the statement of Profit arid toss.

Thfll I I tIT II blUtl d r1 1 IT d d M rch 31 2023I Ieoown8S e movement n ease a es u nl or t e ~ar en e • 1>; , :
Particulars Amount

Batanc! as on AprIl 01,2021 209.95
AdditIons
Detetlon/De'ecognitlon
finance cost accrued durfng the period 15.87
Payment of lease lIabllltfes (12.26)
Balance es on 31 March, 2022 183.56

Particulars Amount
Balance as on 01 Aprfl 2022 111).56
Additions 220.H
~etfon/Derecognltlon (25.M)
Finance cost accrued during the period 25.....
Payment of I!llsc lI11billtles .(62.9<1)
Balance uon 31 March, 20n 3.co.~1

,f'
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SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted basis:

1,095.51

Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years

67.33
230.43
797.75

As at
March 31, 2022

Particulars As at
March 31, 2023

Total

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
obligations related to leas,.abilitles as and when they fall due.

lease rentals paid on short term leases for Current Year INRNIL (March 31, 2022 INRNIL)

(6) Operating leases where Group Is a lessor:

The Group has entered into cancellable operating leases on Its Investment property portfOlio consisting of certain office and
manufacturing buildings. These leases have terms of between 11 months to 60 months. Certain teases Include a clause to enable
upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing marilet condition's.

The total rental Income on assets given on operating leases amounts to INR69.32 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31,
2022 INR37.73 lakhs).

'. Future minimum rentals receivables under operating leases as at March 31 are, as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 20,23 March 31, 2022

Within one year 74.77 34.27
After one year but not more than five years 146.02 23.29
More than fIve years .

44 Related party disclosures:
(A) Names of related parties and descnption of relationship as identified and certified by the Group:

Enterprise over which key management person Is able to exercise significant Influence.
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Nafk (HUF)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik - Executive Chairman
Mr. Krlshnanand M. Gaonkar, Non Executive Independent Director
Mr. 6hanubhal R. Patel· Non Executive Independent Director
Mr. Pankaj M. Saliga· Non Executive Independent Director
Mr. Pradeep A. Rane - Non Executive Independent Director
Ms. Arati K, Nalk . Executive Director
Mr. Nitin A. Kunkolienkar • Non Executive Director (Synegra EMSLimited)
Mr. Ray Chang - Non Executive Director (Telesrnart SCSlimited)
Mr. K. G. Prabhu - Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Urjlta Damle . Company Secretary
Mr. Edlan Fernandes· Company Secretary - Synegra EMSlimited
Mr.Pradeep Pand~ . Non·Executive Direct.or (ceased w.e.f January 04, 2022 • Smartlink Holdings limited & Synegra EMSlimited)
Mr. Natarajan Sankara - Non·Executive Director (w.e.f. Apnl 01, 2021 upto June 30, 2021 • Synegra EMSLimited)
Mr. Prabodh Vyas - Non-Executive Director (retired w.e.f. August 31,2021· DlgisolSystems limited)

Relatives of key management personnel:
Ms. Arat! K.Nalk
Mrs. Sudha K. Nalk
Mrs. lakshana A. Sharma

35.85
72.30

809.69
917.84
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SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes formIng part of the Consolidated FlnZlnclal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount In INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(S) Details of transactions with related party In the ordInary course of busIness for the year ended'. . ,...
March 31, 202~ March 31, 2022 \

""1 ...
,

Enterprise over
Enterprise over

"

whIch key
Key Management which key

Key Management

Particulars management Personnel! Relative management
personnel! Relative

person is able to of Key management person is able to
of Key

exercise
personnel exercise sIgnifIcant

management
Significant personnel
influence.

influence.

Salary
Mr. K. G. Prabhu ~.

Short-term employee benefits 56.18 I 35.87

Post-employment 'benefits 0.22 0.22

Mrs. Urjlta Damle
Short-term employee benefits 16.28 13.59

Post-employment benefits 0.22 0.22

Mr. Edlan Fernandes
Short-term employee benefits 5.96
Post-employment benefits 0.20 -

DIrector Sitting Fees
Mr. Krishnand M. Gaonkar 10.55 7.00
Mr. Pankaj M. 6aliga 8.55 5.00
Mr. Pradeep A. Rane 5.50 4_50

Mr. 6hanubhal R_Patel 11.00 7.50

Mr. Pradeep G. Pande 3.00
Mr. Nitin A. Kuncollenkar 1.50 2.50
Mr. Nataranjan Sankara 0.50
Mr. Ray Chang 3.50 2.00
Mr. Prabodh Vyas 1.00
Rent Expense
Ms. Aartl K. Naik 2.40 2.40

Interest on Loan
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 65.71 4.91

Loan taken
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 430.00

Loan repaid
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik 480.00 · 500.00

ConsIderatIon paId for Buyback of Shares
Mr. Kamalakshi R. Naik 1,8n.OS
Mr. Kamalaksha R. Naik (HUF) 40.36
Ms. Aartl K. Naik · 375.41
Mrs. Sudha K. Naik · 187.70
Mrs. Lakshana A. Sharma · 319.10



SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED
Hates (ormln. part of the Consolidated Flnandal Statel'(1ents forlht yt.r ended 31 Much 101'3
(Amount In INRlakh$! unless otherwise stated)

e.llnCH due from Ind due to rellt~ parties
- " ~Slt A'lt

,
Partlcu'.rs

,.",\",' ,1;:, March 31,201) Mlrch 31 2022
Amount due to relattd party as on: ~
Key ManaBement Personnel
Mr. Kamalaksha RNa'''' 1,250.00 1,730.00

Terms and conditions of transactions with related p.rtles
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail In arm's lenllth transaetlom.

'I' F'alr valu" off/Mancral assets and fInancial Ifo~flltf"s

A. Accountfnl cllsslrtcltldn lind fafr VIIOl1
The following table shO'WSthe carrytng amounts and 'air values of flnancllli assm and financial liabilities. lnctudl". their levels In
the fair volue hierarchy. It does not InclUde fair value Informatton for financial anets and financfalllabllft1es not meesured at fatr
value If the carrying amount Is a reasonabie IIpprox1l'T1l1tlOllof fair value.

II. Measurement of fatr value
The fair VIIlues of the financial BSSeoUand liabilities lire Induded al the alTlMt at w1l1C1I tile tnstMTlt'llt could be e:«hanted In II
current transaction between willing parttes, ether than In a (orced or liquidation sale.

The fotlowlna methods end a~umptlons were used te estimate the fair valuesl
,. FaIr value of casll, bank bolances, short-term deposits, other short-term reocelvablCl, traCle pay.bltS, oth4Pl' c:urnnt U.bflltl~ Ind
other flnandalllabll1tles apProxfmate their carrytll8 llmounts la~ly Clue to short-term matur1t1es gf ~ InstMMnts.

2, The fair val()e of non-current flMncfalllsseots cO(11pr1sfnaof term deposits at amortlst<l cost using ~rtect~ Intemt Rate (E1R)are
not slgnlfl,antly dltrerent (rom the carrytlll'amount

3. Tile fair value of Leoaseliabilities are calculated based on cash flOW1 dIscounted ustna a current I,ndtnt rlt,. Th~ lire classified
at I('V('I3 In theofafr value hIerarchy due to the Inclusion 01 unobservable Inputs Including own lind counterparty credit mk.

46 Fair vatu, hierarchy
The followlni Is the hteorarchy for determinIng and dlscloslnll the f,lr valuo of flnanctallnstMne/1ts by valuatlon t¢ehnlque:'
.Levcl 1 • Quoted prices (unadjusted) In Ict~ marilets for Identic. I Issets ~UlbUltiCl.
·L('V('12 . Inputs other than quoted pr1ces Included w1tllfn I.rvet 1 that are observable for the IISset or liability, C'I~ dfrectly (t.e.
as prices) or Indirectly (I.ct. de~lved 'rom pric~) .
•Lovel 3 - InpOts for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable mar1iet data (unobservable Inputs).

The followlnll table preseonts fatr wlue hlet'llrchy 01 anets and liabilities mea$Ul'ed at faIr value on a rKum". basIs:

"air valu, lTleasurtm,nt hierarchy of .ss~s and 11.blllties

P.rtlcul.rs I'.lr v.lue As It A. at
hl ... archy March 31,2023 Mlrch 31, 1022

r:IHAHCIALASSETS
EIOllo£I!! assets !!l!!lJlI[!sllI~ a!!lo!:llztd SOlS I" ,,~
In~stments In Debt sec:ur1t1es Levit 3 ~.S~1.90 5,056.62
Fixed DeposIts Levet ) 1,537.31

SKUr1ty DeposIts Level) 28.13 29.24
Trade feocelvables 1.e.... 1) 04,(041).S'1 1,715.10

!tln.nctal_utH measured at Fair Vllult thrOUlh Otht( CornDrehenslve IncDmt
In~stments In Debt securities L~2 049.30

flnac~!~llI5Seots m~asu[ed It folr value throulh eroflt or loss
Investments In mutual fur1d~ Levell 6,191.'" 5,915.92

I'INANCIALLIABILITIES
"

Anandaillabllftfeos measured at amortised cost l.eYeI3 15.36 9.56
Lease Llabllltl~Sc LeYell 340.041 1al.56

- Asset retlremtlJt obligation , bvel ~, 1.58 7.92
There haw been no transfen between L~ 1 aOOLevel 2 durIng l~ pei'1od



PartIculars

The ~fOfrIll$' expo~~ t9 VlIrlo~kl~aI1CI~1 rts~,;; The~e rtsk$ are cat~ Into tIIlIrket rlsl\, cr~ft risk 'lid llqufdlty rfsj(. The
GfOUI)$ f,isls manage~f Is coordt113ted by t~BOard Of Dlre«on and fOOtlSeS 00 1ecuttnllool ftm a~ short tmn cash 1t~. Tilt
Group dOesl'lot enllage in tradln; of flnandal assets f« spe&!atlve purpose'S,

Marke~k

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash fl~·of a ffnanciallnstrumeotwlll fluctuate 6c!auw of chang!S In market
pr1ces. Market risk compr1ses -of rlslllnterest rate risk and prfl:e risk.

,(1) Inte(m fllte risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair VlIlu~or fliture cash flOl'lS of a financial r~ment will nJctuat~ tiedl& of CMifie$1n
market Interest rates. In order to optimIse the Group's posltloo with rl"gards to Interest Income, tn!asury team lM~ the fnt~est
rate rts!<..bydiversIfying Its portfolio across tenures.

(tI) Prtce rlsk

The Group's exposure to securltfes arises from Investmeou held by the Grow and classified In the Balance Sh~t:-aSt'lr value thl'OUlh OCI
(Ill) f'orefjo currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fil'lancl!lln;'trumen't Will fluctuate beCause of cbarites In
f«eign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk-of chanlles In (O(elgn excllange rates relates pr1marfty to the Company's
operating activities (when revenue Of expense Is denominated In a different cut~ frO'Tl the I)OIdlnll Company's runct!ooat
currenc}'l·

Particulars

Hotes formfng part of the Consolidated rlnanc'II' Statement3 forthe y.er enCfed 31 Mlrch '202)
(Amount In rH~takhs, unless otherwise Stated)

d ~ ~

47 FinanCia.l (Id; management obj~t1v,s and polic/'rs

(b) F~e!jIl currency ~n$'tMty
The following table (let'a!t$ the C~mpany's sehsltlVity to b '1% Increase .ana decreaSe a\laln~t the US l)'pllllr /.;JPY-. ,,,'Is the ~nsltlvlty
used Wht'n reporting fO(ellln currency risk Intermlly to key I):\ilnagementpersonnet and represents management's,assessmell'tj)'hhe
reasonably possible change In foreign exchallie rates. The sensitivity allalysls InctOdes ooly ~ outstendfnt f«etl" currency
denomtn~ted moneta~ltems In<hdjIJSU their tr:anslatloo aqlie perIOd ena fot II 11chan~ In f«eliR currency rates.

2.a.c
2.a.c

Asat
Merch 31, 2013

Aut
MIIt'dI 31~ 202%

12.70
12.70

(6) CredIt rtsk

Credit risk Is the rfsk of flnandalloss to the Company If a cus~ ~. counterparty· to a flnand4lln5trument fans to "'"tefts cootractual obIllations.
Credit risk prfmarlty arises from cash equlvalentsl trade recetvobh!s, ftnandal assetS:'II1elwred ~ antOlttsed cosnnd ftnandalissets measured at faJr
valul'! tlir,QUgtl' profit or loss. The malCimum exposure to. cr.edlt iisk Is eQlJal to \h~ea!)YfnQ val~ Of the 11nancfal.sseu. tbe obJecllYf! of man~gtl1l
counterparty credit risk Is to prevent losses In financial assetsL

F'or trade 1't'Celvablesp-c)'edlt rfsk is managed #lrough credtt approvals, estabilshlllK credit IImiU and coounuousty monltbl'1"1 the credftworthlnKS of
custom~,il to which the Group S1'anU credit terms in the !lonnal course of buSiness. The Groop establlsh~,4n allowance for doubtful debts and
impairment that repre.5ents Its estimate Of Incurred losses In respect of tradflllnd other. receivablfs~
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For other rrnandalassets and Investments, the Company nas an'fl!Ye1tment polley which allows the Company to InYeStonly with counterpartlfS having II
good cred(t l1It1ns. The Company rtoviews the cr~ltworth'''t'SS of th~e counterpartl~ on en on-loIl1I besk. Counterpalty IImlts maybe Updated as end
when reQ1lIred subject to approval d Board of DIrectors.

SMARnlNK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hotn tormlnl part ot {he Consolldatedfilnancial Statements for the year endedl1 Mareh 2013
(Amount In INR.lj!kl:ii,unlt'SS otherWise rtated)

"

The Company lfmlts Its exposur~ to credit rf.sk of ash held with banks by ~alfnt with highly I1Ited banks a!'ld Instltutlons and retafnfng sufficient
betences In bank accounts requIred to meet a month's opeq!.tlonal costs. The Mana~t rt!vlews the bank accounts on revu\ar basis and fund
drawdowns:are planned to ensuretba'tthf!re Is mInImal surplus cash 'In bank accounts. '

~. . ~
.' t

The CompaNY's ma)dmum expos~'to credIt nsk for the cOlTlf?Ql1efltsof lhe balance she'el: lit-March 31, 2023 lind March 31, 2022 Is the'ca,rI}ilOi a~ts
as mentfoned in Note 5, 6, 7, B, and 13.

(e) Liquidity risk

The GrotJp's-prtndpal sources of liquidity are 'cast) and cash equivalents' and cash ftowsothat are venerated from operations. The Group beUeves that Its
workIng capital Is sufficient to meet the ffnMcllll lfabillties within matur'ity pet1od".The Com!18ny hilS no, ~oWfnRS. Additionally, tne Group has
Invested Its surplus funds in fixed Income securities or In$lruments of sImilar profile: t~PY'~nr ~fety of aPlial and availability of liqUidity as and,
when retlUlred. Hence, tne Group eames a netlUi1ble UqUldltyilsk.



"

SMARTl.lNKHOLOIIlGSLIMITED
Not" ormlnl part of the Consolidated FinancIal Statements for the yNr endfll )1 March 2023
(Amount In INR lakh!, unlt'H other::wlse st.ated)

..8 $~gmimt In{ormaclon

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for Which dtscrete financial information Is avaftable that Is evaluated
regutarty by the chIef operattlli dedslon maker. ~ Group's chIef l'PMItlnt decision maker Is the Executive<halrman.

(A) Segment Information for I)limary reportilli (by business segment)
The group has two reportable business segments
(I) Investment: Earning Income through dividends, Interest, rentals and lalns on InYestment In ~ur1t1es,lnd ~fS,

(1I)Networldng products: DevelopinB, manufacturinB, l'(Iarketfng, distributing and servicing of networldna products.

InformatIon about prfmary spgments

Particulars Year Ended

" Mlrch 31, 2023 Mlreh 31, 2022
SHment Revrnue (net);
(a, InYestl'l1tnt 95<4.50 909.37
~b)Networking Products 15,190. ,8 7,103.23

Iil'otal 16,4-44.69 ',012.60
tess: Inter·segment Revenue;"" (139.~2' (62.~)
Tofallncome from Op~rations (net) 16,30,.U 7,950.11

S~mt'nt Profit' (Losstbt'foft' f1nll!]s;:es;:Q,ll, tax and mlnorl~l( !1!1~~~i
(a) Investment 1,8S4.28 115.4-4
!bl Networking Products 5049.-41 n".67
T~tal ~1<l03.n 8<10.11

Iik~lIl (Less)!. Other un-attocabte expenditure net·off un·allocable IncQlTlII 4l{Ol' (3M2)
operatln, Profit I (Loss) 2,<I<l6.rO '0'.~1Jf'l
Ada , (Less):

(7O.86j(i) Finance Costs (net) (171.91)
(Il) Income Taxes (350.115) 293.07
(1111 Share of lou attributable to Mlnorfty . 7.1-4

Profit I (Loss, aft~ ftnanc& cdst, ta~ lind minority Inter~t 1,913,94 1,038,14
,;. '*\ .Jl\t _",_

Ca~ltal Em~l!!:lctd
S~ment Assets
(a) Investmt'nt 15,360.61 14,67S.'-<I
(b) Networldng Products 9,785.67 4,765.59
(e) Un·allocated - 1,OI6.5f 1,+46.90

Total Assets 26,162.16 20,817.63

t:ess~5'§men~ 1I1~1211111~~ "II:
(a) Ir\Vestment 321.05 215.70
(h) l'Ietworltlng Products 7,464.3.1 ",102.97-

Ic) Un·allocated 27.20 13.70

Total LlablUtI., 7,"2.56 4,392.37

Total Capital Employed 18,350.30 16,495.26

caPital expenditure
ACfdltlO!) to fhct'd assets. U! 207,28 i~{Ill Investment 171.82

(bl NetwOl'klngProducts 518.06 418.73

(c) Un'IIUOCIIted .
Total "_ssets 639.88 626.01

Depreciation and ....morttsatfon
(a) Investment 102.22 1011.31

(bl Networking ProduGtS 196.311 131.15

(c1 Un·a1located . .
Total 298.60 239.46'



SMAltll.INK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hot~ form1na part of th~ Cofl$olldated flnane1a~Stat~mel1U for the year ended 31 Mlr(h 2023
(Amount In INR.lakhs. unltss otherwise stated)

Partl(Ullrs
YNrEnded

March 31, 2023 March 31.2022
MaterIal Don cash 'xeendftur. other than O'eredatlon and amortfsatlon
(II) Investment
(b) Networldng Products 6.73 (11.65)
(c) Un·allocated .
Totllf - 6.73 ,\i! (11.">

(8) Sejlment Information {or secondary segment ~na (by ~phlCllI 5efITlents)
The secondary reportIng st!iment for the Group fHhe ~phfcal sewnenl based on location of (UStomm, which h'M fo(lows:
I) Domestic
Ii) Export

Information about secondary segments

PartIculars V.lr Ended

""~ Mlrch 31.2023 MarCh 31.2.02.2.
RlNenu. from customer I 'ffl''''
• Domestfc 15,7604.67 7,320.67

• Export 540.59 619.51
Total 16,30'.2.6 7."0.18
S~Il!ner'lf ""stU
• Domestic 26,058.65 20,818.84

• Export 104.21 68.79
Total 26.161.86 20,817.63
~ddftlon to flx!d assets during the )It08r

• Domei;tlc - 6)9.88 616.01

• Export .
Total ~ 6l9.a8 626.01

"
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-49 The Group has nOl,lven lOlln1 or Advances In the nature oflceos'tO-Prornoten, Dtrector1, Key Mlnas.ment Per10nnellnd the (mted ~ 0;: GOf .~...'

partf~ (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either ~lly or jointly WIthIny other penon. ~;,..-

\
•

SMARn.IHKHOLDINGSLIMITED
Notes forml"i part of the Consolldattd Flnandal Statements for the year .n(led 31 March 202)
(Amount In INR Ilkhs, unless otherwise stated)

50 Capltal·work·ln protlr.ss (001')
(I) for Capital-work-In progress ••• Inl scMdul.
March 3I. 2023 -,. " Amoont In CWIPfor a pertod of

CWlP Tot.1Less t"an 1 year 1·2 years 2·3years More than' years
Prol~ts In progress ," .".;,,; '.
Projects temporarily suspended ., .

March 3I 2022•
CWip Amount In CWIPfor a period of

TertalLess than 1 year 1·2 ye.ars 2·3yt..rs lIore than l :ye.rs
ProJects In progress . .
Projects temporarlly SU$~ed . 215.70 . 215.70

51 Intantlbl •• ".ts under d.'Vt'lopm.nt
The Group d0C3not have any Intangible auets under development durinl the current year and 1M pr..-tOUl :year.

52 D.taUs of lI.naml Prop"rty held
The Group doe not have eny Benaml property, where any proceedln, has ~ Initiated or pendi"l apln1t the Group for heidi", .rry
Benami property.

53 Reconcfltatlon of quartorly rtturns or statements of current .sstlts filed with banks or ftnanct.llnstltutlons
MOnthlyr'tums f stat,menu are filed with such Banksl flnancl.al tostltutfons are In al"eemel1t with the books of account.

S4 Wltrul Dofaultor
The Group ha, I10t bt'en declared a wltful defaulter by arry bank-or (lnanc)allnslltutlon.

55 RelatIonshIp With Struck. off Companies under section 2~8 of the Companl., Act, 2013 or section 560 of GOl!lpanl•• Act, 1956.
The Group does not have ~ny tren51ctfons!Wlth cornpenfew!n.lck tiff ~SCttlon i..s Of the CompanIes Act, 2'013 or section 560 of
companies Act, 1956. .

56 Rt!ilstratlon of elllrs" or satisfaction with Reatstrar or Comp.nles
The Group does not hav.::any chal1~ or satisfactIon which Is yet'to.be retlstered WIthRealstrar of Companies beyond the statutory

57 Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Croup has complied with tho numb« of l:lyers prescribed under clauw (Sn of section 2 of th. Act read with till! Compa!lles
(Restriction on number of layers) Ruin. 20t7.

5a Utilisation of 80rro_d funds and sh.,.. premium:
(I) The Group has not edvanced or 1000ned or Irwested funds to eny ~ penon(,) or tntlty(les,. Includl"l fore"" .ntlt,"
(lntermedlarl~) with the undent.1ndl"l that the Intermedlery-shatl:
(e)dlreclly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persom or entitles IdenUffi!d rn any manlle!' whaUOt'll... by or on beh.1f of the Group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(blprovfde any 8uarantH. security or the Uke to or on behalf of theUtimate Beneflclarles

(II)The Group has not received any fun<!from any penon(S) or entlty(les), Includlna foreIgn entities (fundi", Party) wllh the
undentanding (whether recorded In writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:
(a)dlrectlyor Il')dlrectlyletid 0<' Irwest I" o~lier persons or~tltl~~deT>tlfie'CIlf'l a"y llIanner wII.t_r by or on behllf or the Fundln.
Party (Ultimate 8f!heflclarles) or
(~lprO'i'ldeBnyguarllntee, security or the like on behalf of the,Ultimate BenefiCiaries,

59 The Parent Company Is a Non Ban~'''i FinanCial Company • ~·Systemlcally Impoftlnt Non·Deposlt taklna Company as per the Res.~
Bankof India Circular RBflDNBRf2016·1710404 Master I)lrection DNSR.P'Q,.OO7fOl.10.119f2016.17. Thus. the folloWl"lanalYtlca1 r.tlosoate
not applicable to the Company.

1. Caplul to rlsk·wel,'hted assets r.tlo (CIlAR)
2. TIer ICRAR
3. Tier IICRAR
.c. liquidity CO\'OI'I9-Ratio.



SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hot~s formlnl part of th~ Conso"dat~ Flnandal St.t~m~nts fpr tho year end.d 3 I March 2023
(Amount In INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

60 Undisclosed lneeme

The Company does not have any undisclosed Income whICh Is not recorded In the books of account that has be'en surrendered or
dIsclosed as Income during the year (previous yellr) In tbe tax assessments IJIlder the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, stlrch or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

rr-ency or Vlttual Currency
t traded or Invested In Crypto currency or.Virtual Currency durlllll the floancfal year.

62 Cepltal Manlls.ment
For the perpose Of the Group's capItal management, capttallncludes I~suedequity capital and all other equity reservn Ilttr1butllble to
the equity holders. The Holdlog Company operates as an Investment Company and comequentty Is registered as a Non·Bankfng
F1nanclal Institution ·(Non PlJbllc DeposIt Accepting) wtth ~ Bank of IndIa (RBI).

The holdIng company does not have any borrowfngs In the nature of loans and advances from Baoks, flnanclal InstitutIons and others
and Is cash surplus. The subsidiary companIes In the group have borrowings from blinks and from directors. ~all the consot1dated
equtty of the Group is in excess of the borrowfngs. The cash surpluses of the HoldIng ComPAny are C\KrentIy Invested In Income
generating debt Instruments (IncludIng through mutu!!l funds) and money market lrutrum,nts dePmdll'll on economic conditions In U~
WIth Investment ROlley set by the Management. Safety of"capltal. Is of I)r1m~ImporWiCe to C!nsut~ avaRatllllty Of capital for O9!lfltl6nS.
Objective of Investment policy Is to provide safety and adeqllllte return on the surplus funds.

63 As per provisions-of section 135 of Companies Act 2013; tlie Group was required to spend INR 10.20 lakhs (March 31, 2022: tttR 13.76
lakhs) being 21 of a.verage ~l proftts made during the t~ immediately preceding flna.nclal years, rn punuanc~ of Its Corporate
Sodlll Responsibility Policy on the IIctlvltles SpKtfled In Schedule VlI of the Act. The Company has spent INR 10.91 lakhs {lnduding
excess of eartleryear) (March 31, 2022: INR"'.00 lakllS) towards Corporate Sodal Respons1btltty acttv1t1es lIS under:

Particulars
As It Asat

A. ~rCh 31, 2021 Mar'ch 31. 2022

Gross Amount' re<julfed to be s~nt as per Section 10.20 13.76
Add: Amount Uns~t from previous yean
Totlll Gross alT\ount required to be spont durin! 10.20 n.76

10.90 I 16.351B. IAmount IIpproved:pY, the Board to be spent during I
c. Amount spent during the yur on

(I) Construction/acquisition of lin asset
(II) On purposes other thlln (I) a~ 10.67 12.89

D. Det.ns related to amount spent
A, at A,.t

March 31, 2023 March 31, 1022

(I) Constructfon 1,,,'<IIcqulsltfonof any asset
(If) On purpose otWer than (I) abow

• Installation' of Networldng products In vftno 2.50
• Prime Minister's National Relief fund 0.25 1.5'
.Promoting healthcare 0.57
·Educatlon~ 10.,42 11.31

Tot.I 10.67 11.19

~,*.V~





Synegnl EMSlimited (Synegnl). subsidillry ComPII"Y hIId ~eIved approval under~-Production Linked Incentive (PU) to promote
ffetworklng Products manufact\n In India. (the Pll scheme) on October 1<4,2OL1from the Competent Authq(ity. Under the PU scheme SYll!S~li;ad
recognised an Income of Rs. 135.n lakhs In the preYIous flnancIal yMr ended March 31, 2022 on futfllment of the cond1tfons for ellglt>lllty of
Incentive unCler the PLI scheme.

O{)Urlngthe cur-ent year. on October31, '2022 Synegra had. received IIpproyal under the extended PlI Sthem~and the Board of Dl(ector:$ of~S~t<l at
their meetfng field, on November 2, 2022 had approved the exit from >tM entwblle Pll scheme and optina for the extended Pl.1scheme.
C-'OnseQuentl'¥,Synegra had derecognlsed the $aid Incentive of Rs. 135.17 Ia.'<hsand cha'1eci ttle amount to other expetJSeS In the qUlIrte' e!!ded
September.'30, 2022.
f~ {Or theyl!ar-eooed March 31, 2023 on fulfflmeot of the conditionS for ellglbtlfty of Incenttve uncIer the extell!led Pl.1scheme, the ComPllny
MIs rejiogtllsed Incentive of Rs. 280 lakhs.

As per rityriport of even date'
For Slirldhir ll''Asfodat~
Chartered Acco\Jntllnts
IcA, Firm Registratfon flo.l'<134427W

For lind on behalf of the Board of DIrectors of
Smartllnk Hold1~ limited
CIN : l67100GA1993PlCOO1341

ebW~
Abhlshek Pilchlangia
Partner
Membership No. 120593

Place: Mumbal
Date: May 17, 2023

Ptace: II'UnbiIf
Date: Mayi7,"iOD

Halk
Executtve~

O~\~69659r

~
Urjlta Oarnl.

COinPII"YSecretary
IGI Membenhlp Ho.2<46S4
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Smartltnk Holdings Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance other than cash and cash equIvalents
Receivables

<I)Other Receivables
Loans
Investments
Other financial assets

Non-financial assets
Tax assets (net)
Investment property
Property, plant and equipment
Other non-financial assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
FinancIal LIabilities
Trade payables 12

<i) total outstandfng dues of micro enterprises and small enterprtses
(II) total outstanding dues of creditors other than rnlcro enterprfses and
small enterprises

BorrowIngs (Other than debt securltles) 13
Other financial lIabflities 1'I

Non-Financial LIabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabUlttes (net)
Other non·financialliabilltles

EQUITY
EquIty share capItal
Other equIty

Total LIabilities and EquIty.

Note
No.

6
8
9
11

1
2

20,987.97

As at
December 31, 2023

28.97
780.58

3
'I
7
5

22.22
1,175.00

16,586.65
48,40

35.'51
770.50

185.77
1,250.33

827.64
82,41

55.36

17,522.12
42.46

147.21
1,280.03

875.44
77.61

.

32.28 115.64
145.41 147.31
66.53 77.27

5.64 5.07
404.64 365.70

7.35 10,48

199.50 199.50
20,126.62 19,885.27

20,987.97 20,806.24

15

16

17
18

20,806.24

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Smartllnk Holdings LImited
CIN : L67100GA1993PLCOO1341

~
KJt Haik
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00002013

Place: Vema Goa Place: Verna Goa
Date: February 09, 2024 Date: February 09, 2024



Smartllnk Holdings Limited
Statement-of Standalone Profit and Loss for the period ended December 31, 2023
(Amount in INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

-"
For the Period Ended

l
Particulars N_ote For the Year Ended'':::::;~

No, December 31., 2023 Mllrch 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 19 -431.79 427.97
Rental Income 159.00 196.50
Fees and commission lucerne 20 14.59 12.24
Net-gain on fair value changes 21 325.57 317.78
Total revenue from operations 930.95 954.-49
Otlier Income 22 4.34 150.69
Total Income 935.29 1,105.18

Expenses
Finance costs 23 10.44 16.69
Impairment on flnanclal:lnstruments 24 0.26-
Employee benefits expenses 25 222.58 285.91
Deprectatton and amortisation expense 26 79.45 102.22
Other expenses 27 299..048 679.13
Total expenses - 611.95 1,08-4.21

Profit I (Loss) before exceptional Items and tax 323.34 20.'97

exceptional Items 2,091.57

Profit I (Loss) before tax 323.34 . 2,112.54.

Tax Expense:
• Current Tax 47.91 334.89
- Deferred Ta.x 38.07 53.29
- Taxes adjustment for eartler year (1.40) (49.n)
Total tax expense 84.58 338..046

ProfIt I (Loss) for the year 238.76 1,774.08

Other Comprehensive Income
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains I (loss) on defined benefit plan 3.45 4.61

Income tax re\atlns t!l above (0.87) (1.16)

SuBtotal (A) 2.58 3.45 '

8. Items that will be r,eclasslfled to profIt or loss
Net fair value galnl (loss) on financial Instruments
Income tax relating to above

Subtotal (8) -
Other Comprehensive Income (A + 8) 2.58 3.45

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 241.34 1,777.53

Place: Vema Goa Place: Vema Goa
Date: February 09,2024 Date: February 09,2024



1 Cash and cash equIvalents

Smartllnl( H0101ngs L.tmtteo
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at As at

December 31,2023 March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 2.26 2.01
Balances with banks

On current accounts 26.71 33.50
Total 28.97 35.51

2 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equIvalent

PartIculars
Aut As at

December 31,2023 March 31, 2023
In Fixed deposIt with maturity (or more than 12 months n8.74 768.66
Unpaid dMdend accounts 1.84 1.84
Total 780.58 nO.50

3 Receivables

Partlculars
As at As at

December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Others ReceIvables
Considered good, unsecured zz.zi 55.36

From related partIes :
Olglsol Systems Limited 6.11 16.98
Synegra EMS Limited 5.02 30.1-1

11.13 47.09

From others: 11.09 a.27
Total Receivables 22.22 55.36

4 Loans

As at As at
Particulars December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Inter Corporate Deposit - DeposIt with Diglsot Systems Limited 1,175.00 -
Totlll 1,175.00 -

5 Other flnandal assets

As at Aut
Particulars December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

Security Deposits (Gross) 8.10 7.93
Less: Provision for Impalnnent loss
Security Deposits (Net) 8.10 7.93
Advance to employees 1.30 1.45
Accrued Interest on fixed deposit 28.30 33.08
Accrued il}terest on inter corporate Deposit 10.70 -
Total 48.40 42.46

6 Current Tax assets (Net)

PartIculars
As at

December 31, 2023
Aut

March 31, 2023

Total

185.77 147.21Advance Income tax (net of provisions for taxation of INR 1,051.50 lakhs (March 31,
2023: INR1,051.50 lakhs)



Notes forming part of the Standalone Financfal Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
particulars December 31, March 31, 2023

2023

Investments measured at Cost

Subsidiaries 7,041.45 7,031.71

Investments measured at amortised cost

Debt securities 5,162.53 4,,551.90
Fixed Deposits 1,079.42 1,537.31

Investments measured at Fafr Value through Proflt or Loss
Mutual funds 5,093.46 6,191.41

Tdtal - Gross (A) 18,376.86 19,312.33
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (B) (1,79Q.21) (1,790.21)
Total - Net (AHB) 16,51t6.65 17,522.12
Investments outside India - -
Investments In India 16,586.65 17,522.12

~
~-r..HO<POI~ 51
~ '"~ {::-
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7 Investments



Smortllnk Holdfnp limited
Kot .. formlnt port of the Standalone Fln'n(lal Statemenl1 for the per10d ..,,~ kern""" 31, 2023
(_t In IHRlIl<hs, unless oIherw1se staled)

a Investment Property
Gro.. blO(;k o.tpreclotlon Hetblock

Pott1cul ... ...... t ....cIcIItlonsI 0e0JctI0nsI
...... t

Ant AdcfttIomI - Alit ......t
Aut

ApttlOl,2023 Ad)UJ_ ....d)_ts _"-"31,
April 01,2023 Adj"-b ....djumnents

_btr31, ~)1, _31,2023
20U 102) tOl)

Land ,.,."" 78],,(.0 1)<I.~O 7.JJ 01.11'1 Ie. fJJ.l0

Butldlfll 957,95 957.95 ~".02 22.37 ~11.19 524.5() 546.93
Totol 1,1~ e,6 . , ~5.61 c6 •• ,. 29.70 4n.21 1,250.).' 1,210.0)

Gnmbtock ~on Hot blO(;k
P.rt'cul ... ...... t ....ddttloml 0educIfcm1 Au, ......, AddItIonsI - ...... t "".0' ..... t

April 01, 2011 Adjllttm_ ....dJ"'tmenl1 Morell " 2023 _AprIl 01, 2022 Adjustment. Adjus _ Morel! 31, ~023 Morch 31, 2023 April01,2022
Land 936.OC 148.31 787.66 44.82 9.74 54.56 733.10 891.22
BulId'n, 957.'5 957.95 381.32 29.10 41t.02 5"6.93 576.63

ot. 1,1_'~.99 . 1"'I.lI 1~1~5.61 416.14 n."" ~6'.'. ,ZlO.". 1.~6".U



9 PtOP«\y plant and equlpnt~t-
Greu block o.p-oclatlon Net block

P.rtleul .... Aut Ad<Iftlon'" DedUctIonsl A,a't
Asot Addttlom,l Deductlonsl

Aut AJOt
A.. t

April 01. 1023 AdJIKtm..,U Adlus_
o.c.mber 31,

Aprtl 01.2013 AdJ_ AdJUI_
Decem!>« 3 I, ~b"')I. Mon:h 31, 1023

2013 20U 013
La".HnoeI>otd 87.91 87.91 87.91 . .7.91
Buildl"1l"Own Ike 1.317.68 1.317.68 6+4.57 25.57 670.1~ 707.54 733.11
Furniture ancl Fixtures 206.85 0.66 206.19 '"98.64 0.93 0.66 198.91 7.28 a.21
Vehicle. 13l.Z7 OU1 2U8 19.01 ~.4S 83.82 101.89
Off tee Equi_t 121.62 121.62 119.n 0.58 120.30 1.32 1.90
ElOcll1c:allnsuU.ttans )95.63 I.~ 397.01 393.35 o.~ )93.69 ),)8 2.28
AIr cond1t1ono:B )51.09 0.51 lO.49 321.11 338.67 2.10 30.49 )10.28 10.83 12.42
Compute.. 22.20 22.20 20.01 1.03 21.04 1.16 2.19
Rlghl·of·lB e esse ts

16.87 16.81 4.43 0.13 ~.56 12.31 12.~
Totol 2,712.12 1.95 31." 2,682.92 1,836.68 ~9.75 31.15 1,&55.28 127.64 875.44

SmartUnk Holdings LImIted
Not .. (armln. PlOrt o( I'" Standalone Flno~1 St'I...,~ts (or the period ....., December 31, 2023
(Amount In INIt LakIts, unIes. ~ OUted)

Gtoss block Oepree"'tlon _block
Particulars Aut A_oml _sf Asat Aut Addltlonsl Deductlonsl ASiI Asat Asot

Ajlr1lOl,2022 AdJUltm..,1$ A","""""'U March l1,,~O2.1 ApI1I0,I,20,21 AclJu,t.rMntI Mjustments Morell )1, 2021 March 31, 2013 ~01,2022
uu,.Hre"hold 87.91 87.91 87191 81.91

8<11\<flnll.awn Ike 1,317.68 1,117.68 610.63 33.94 6+4.57 133.11 767.05
Fwntt..,. ..,., fb<ttJres 198.96 7.89 . 206.85 19LI9 0.45 198.64 8.11 0.17

Veltfcl .. 28.02 111.56 7.31 132.27 22.03 1.....66 7.31 29.38 102.89 5.99
Offlco Equipment 120.29 1.33 121.62 119.02 0.70 '119.72 1.90 1.27

EI<)clricelln5tllllations 395.63 39S.63 )92.3~ 1.01 )93.35 2.28 3.29

AlrcondlU_r1 3S0.05 1.04 ~~1.09 335.61 3.06 338.67 12.~2 14.....

ComputM 22.20 21.20 18.64 1.37 20.01 2.19 3.56

11111>1·0(·_ .... ts
73.34 56.47 16.87 2'1.32 7.59 32.48 4.43 12..... ..... 02

TOI.I 1,654.01 111.12 63.78 2,712.12 1,.8"13.69 62.7. 39.79 1,836.61 .75..... 840.39



Sm.rtllnk HoIdtn•• Umft.d
"ot~ fOl'ml".pert of the Stan""""" FI_I S_ for the ptf10d ended _ 31, 20ll
("",at,nt In IHR1.4""', unte.s oth.rwbe .tated)

Gn:!nblock Depntclttlon HIt block

Partlcul6l1 AS.t AddIt1Of111 Deducttohtl
AJat

"'It Addltloml Deductlonsf Alit Ant
'" at

AprIl 01, 2023 AdJ_ts Adjustments
Iloctmber 31,

AprIl 01, 20ll Adjustments AdjustmOftts
Decembe< 31, O'C .... ber 31, MW'Ch 31, 102320ll 2023 2023

Comptlter' Softw~re 95.96 9.5.9~ 95.96 .S.96
Total 95.96 9$.96 95.96 95.96

Gr-... block Depredation H.lblock

Portlcula" As It AcIc!Itlomf DwdUc:tIonIJ ASIIt Asot AddItIonsI ~ "'01 ASOI "'at
April 01, 2022 Adjustments AdJII$tments IMrch 31, 2023 April 0 I, 2021 AdjustlMnis AdjUit", .. ,tf ~cbll,2013 IMKh 31. 2013 Apr1\ 01, 1022

Computer Software 95.96 95.96 95.96 95.96
Total 95.96 95.96 95.96 95.96

IIote:
(a) TheComponyhas not """'h~ any of lis lntMcI>Ie_cIIJr1nt tneyealHndedMa1d> 31,2024 """MardI 31,2023.



Particulars As at As at t\:
December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

PrepaId expenses 14.43 6.61
Surplus fn Gratuity fund (funded) 14.75 12.50
Advance to vendor 7.19 7.33
Balance with government authorities, 46.04 51.17
Total 82.41 77.61

Smartlfnk Holdings LImited
Hotes forming part of the Standalone Flnandal Statements for the period en~d December 31, 2023
(Amount in INRLakhs. unless otherwhe stc1led)

11 Othl!r Non financial Assets

12 Trade Payables

Partfculars As at As at
December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

Borrowing measured at amortised cost
Unsecured

lease lIabllftles 145.41 147.31
Total 145.41 147.31

Particulars As at As at
December 31,2023 March 31,2023

Total' outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises .

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 32.28 115.64
Total 32.28 115.64

13 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

Particulars
As at As at

December 31,2023 March 31, 2023
Deposits 21.23 20.17
Employee Payable 26.49 33.97
Unpaid dividend' 1.&4 1.84
flnancfal Guarantee Obligation 7.85 12.71
Asset Retirement Obligation 9.12 8.58
Total 66.53 77.27

14 Other flnandalllabll1t1es

15 Provisions
As at As at

PartIculars December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Provision for gratuity (funded)
Proviston for leave encashment (unfunded) 5.64 5.07
Total 5.64 5.07

16 Other Hon finandal nabUlties

Particulars

2.18
5.17

4.14
6.34

As at
December 31, 2023

As at
March 31,2023

Statutory dues payable
Rent received In advance
Total 7.35 10.48



17 Equity Share Capital
The Company has only one class of equity share capital havfng a par value of IHR2/- per share .

Particulars As at As at "~:
D«ember 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 I'"

Authorized
3,50.00,000 Equfty Shares of INR2/- each 700.00 700.00

700.00 700.00

Issued, Subscribed and paid up
99,75,000 Equity Shares of IHR2/- each, fully paid-up 199.50 199.50

less: NIL(previous Year: Nil) Equity Shares purchased UI"lderBuy-back scheme -
Total 199.50 199.50

Smartllnk Holdings Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Flnancfal Statements for the period ended Deeember 31, 2023
(Amount In INRtekhs, unless otherwise stated)

18 Other equIty

Particulars
As at As at

December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

General Reserve 5,567.20 5,567.20
Surplus In Statement of Profit and Loss account 12,757.20 12,566.18
Statutory Reserve 1,302.07 1,25".32
Capital Contribution 92.95 92.95
oCaplt\llRedemption Reserve <400.60 <400.60
rvroo Reserve on Financial Instruments
MOCI Reserve on defined benefit plans 6.60 ".02
Total 20,126.62 19,11115.27

(A) General Reserve (GR)'

Particulars As at As at
~cember 31.2023 March 31, 2023

Opening balance 5,567.20 5,567.20
Add: Transfer from Surplus In Profit and tess account - -
Closing balance 5,567.20 5,567.20

• General reserve Is free reserve available for distribution as recommended by Board In accordance wfth requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013

(8) Surplus 1 (deflclt) In the Statement of Profit and loss •

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2023 March 31,2023

Opening balance 12,566.19 11,146.92
Add : Net profit 1 (loss) for the year 238.76 1,n4.08
Amount available for appropriations 12,80".95 12,921.00
llfss : Appropriations
Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve (47.75) (354.82)
Closfng balanCe! 12,757.20 12,566,18

• this represents the cumulative profits of the Company. It wfU be utltlz.td::M=Rt:DCd
2013.



Smartlfnk Holdings LImIted
Notes forming part of the Standalone FinancIal Statements forthe perIod ended December 31,2023
(Amount In INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(C) Statutory Reserve (As per section 4.5 IC of tbe Reserve Bank of IndIa Act 1934)·

PartIculars Asat As at ~
December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

OpenIng balance 1,254.32 899.50
Add: Transfer from surplus In statement of profit aM loss a.!:count 47.75 354.82
ClosIng balance 1,302.01 1,254.32

'Tnls represents provision created under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. It will be utilized In accordance with
the provisions of the Reserve Bank of IndIa Act, 1934

• Represents Impact of Interest on loan to subsidIaries by promoters at lower than market rate of Interest.

(D) ClIpltlll Contrfbutlon"

Particulars
As at As at

December 31, 2023 March 31,2023
Opening balance 92.95 92.9S
Add / (less): Change during the year .
Closing balance 92.95 92.95

(E) Capital· Redemption Reserve·

Particulars
Ant As at

December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 400.60 400.60
Add: NILEquity Shares (March 31, 2023 NIL) of INR2/· each purchased under buybacK
scheme .
Closing balance 400.60 400.60

-ThIs Is on account of transfer towards buyback of equity shares. It will be utilized In accordance with the provisions of the CompanIes.
Act. 20ft.

(F) FVTOCIRese'rve on financial Instruments·

Particulars
As at As at

December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

Opening balMce · 2.27
Add I (less): Change during the year · (2.27)
Closllll! balance · .

• Represents changes In the fair value of certaIn Investments In debt securities. These changes are accumulated withIn the MOCI
reserve- withIn equity'. The C-ompany tcansfers amoUnts from this reserve to Sufplus In the StAtement' of Profit and Loss when' the
relevant debt securitIes are derec~nlsed.

(G) MOCI Reserve on defined beneftt plans·

Particulars
As at As at

DltCember 31,2023 March 31, 2023
OpenIng balance 4.02 0.57
Add / (tess): Change dunng the year 2.58 3.45
Closlng'balance 6.60 4.02



19 Interest Income

Itr
SmartUnk Holdings Limited
Notes forming part of tfre Standalone Financial Statements f()r the period ended December 31, 2023
(Amount In INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

P-arttculars For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

On financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Interest on preference shares . 2.53

. 2.53
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on bonds' 267.08 ~49.68
Interest on deposits with banks 41.45 37.18
Interest on deposits with financial Institutions 84.53 38.34
Interest on Inter Corporate Deposit 38.13 .
Other Interest Income 0.24

431.79 425.44
Total "'31.79 427.97

Particulars
For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

On financial Instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 325.57 317.78
Total 325.57 317.78

20 Fees and commission Income

Particulars For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
DecfitTiber 31, 202'3 March, 31, lQ:U

Guarantee Commission Income 14.59 12.24
Total 14.59 12.24

21 Net Gain On Fair Value Changes·

22 Other Income

Particulars
For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023 March 31,2023

Gain on derecognitton of RoUassets 2.72
Interest on Income tax refund . 0.44
Profit on Property, plant and equipment sold I written off (net) 1.07 3.57
Sale of Scrap 1.63
Foreign Exchangegain· (net) 0.04 0.01
Reversalof Impairment on financial Instruments (refer fool note) 143.95
Security Deposit wrItten off now received 0.32
MiscellaneouS'Income 1.28 .
Total 4.34 150.69
footnote i-

During the previous year reversal of INR 143.95 la!(hs pertain to Impairment on financial Instruments pursuant to the approval of
scheme of amalgamation of subsIdiary Company.

23 Finance Costs

Particulars

1.06 1.13
8.78 12.59
0.60 2.97

10.44 16.69

For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
~cember 31,2023 March 31, 2023

On Financialltablllties measured ,at Amortised Cost
Interest on deposits
Interest on borrowings

Other Interest expense
Total



24 Impairment on financial Instruments

Smartllnk Holdings LimIted
Hotes forming part of the Standalone Flnandal Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023
(Amount In INRLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Partlculars
For the Period Ended For the Vear Ended
December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

On Financial Instruments measured at FVTOCI
Investment In Preference Shares (Interest) . 0.26
Total · 0.26

25 Employee Benefits Expenses.

PartIculars
For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

Salaries and wages 205.65 264.97
Contribution to provident and other funds 5.37 6.81
Gratuity expenses 1.35 1.79
Staff welfare expenses 10.21 12.34
Total 222.5S 285.91

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars
For the Period Ended For the Vear Ended
December 31, 2023 March 31, .2.023

Depreclati'on on property., plant and equipment (refer note 9) 49.75 62.78
Depreciation on Investment Property (refer note 8) 29.70 39.44
Total 79.45 102.22

27 Other expenses

Particulars
For the Period Ended For the Vear Ended
December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Rent, rate and taxes 7.86 29.63
Repairs and malrrtenance 36.89 222.29
Communfcatlon expenses 3.30 6.27
Printing and stationery expenses 1.60 1.90
Advertisement expenses 10.86 12.18

DirectorS fees 14.82 22.45
Audltor'sfees and expenses 10.70 15.28
Legal and professional charges 37.66 79.07
Insurance 8.20 7.98

Annual maintenance expense 10.04 12.54
Software connectivity ucense Imaintenance expenses 31.28 42.67

Travelling and conveyance expenses 35.15 29.76

Power and fuel expenses 63.37 89.18

Membership and subscription fees 0..81 0..010

SUndry balance written off (net) · 8.18

Bad Debts Written orr · 58.16

Offfce Expenses 9.00 13.54
ForeIgn Exchange toss- (net) ·
Application. 'regIstration· & flilng Fees 0.11 o.n
EXpenditure on corporate socIal respcmslbltlty 7.65

Miscellaneous expenses 16.50 19.02

Bank charges 1.33 0.26

Total I-- 299.48 679.13

~
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

BETWEEN

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED (TRANSFEROR COMPANY)

AND

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED (TRANSFEREE COMPANY)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

"

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES

ACT,2013

~
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This Scheme of Amalgamation is presented pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for amalgamation between SYNEGRAEMSLIMITED {,SEL' or

'Transferor Company') and SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED ('SHL' or 'Transferee Company') and their

respective shareholders under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 ("the Scheme")

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are hereinafter collectively referred to as the

"Companies" .

1. DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions shall

have the following meanings:

1. 1. "Act" or "the Act" means the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013, as

applicable and rules and regulations made thereunder and shall include any statutory

modifications, amendments or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

1.2. "Appointed Date" shall mean 1st April, 2024 or such other date directed by or stipulated by

the National Company Law Tribunal as may be applicable.

1.3. "Board of Directors" or "Board" means the respective Board of Directors of the Companies

and shall include a committee of directors or any person authorized by such board of directors

or such committee of directors duly constituted and authorized for the matters pertaining to

this Scheme or any other matter relating hereto.

1.4. "Effective Date" means the last of the dates on which the conditions and matters referred

to in clause 19 hereof occur or have fulfilled.

Any references in this Scheme to the date of "coming into effect of this Scheme" or "the

Scheme coming into effect" or "Scheme becoming effective" shall mean the Effective Date.

1.5. "Governmental Authority" means any applicable Central, State or local Government,

legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or commission or any court,

jurisdiction over the territory of India.



1.6.
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"Income-tax Act" means the Income-tax Act, 1961 including any statutory modifidtio·M.~re: D.~ (~.f·;
~.:. '. 1"'.- .....O~....'/

enactments or amendments thereto. .;~~~~~

1.7. "National Company Law Tribunal" or "NCLT" or "Tribunal" means the Mumbai bench of
National Company Law Tribunal constituted under section 408 of the Companies Act, 2013.

1.8. "ROC" means the Registrar of Companies, Goa.

1.9. "Scheme" or "the Scheme" or "this Scheme" means this Scheme of Amalgamation in its
present form or with any modification(s) approved or directed under Clause 18 of this Scheme
or any modifications approved or directed by National Company LawTribunal pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

1.10. "Transferee Company" means SMARTLINKHOLDINGSLIMITED,a public limited company
listed on recognized stock exchanges in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
on March 31, 1993 with CIN - L67100GA1993PLC001341and validly existing under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and having its registered office at L-7, Verna Industrial
Estate, Verna, Salcete, Goa, India - 403722.

1.11. "Transferor Company" means SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED, a public limited company
incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 on August 17, 2016 with
CIN- U31909GA2016PLC012969and having its registered office at Plot No. L·5A, Verna
Industrial Estate, Verna, South Goa, Salcette, Goa, India - 403722.

1.12. "the Undertaking" shall mean the entire business of the Transferor Company, all their
assets, rights, licenses and powers, and all of their debts, outstanding liabilities, employees,
duties and obligations as on the Appointed Date including, but not in any way limited to, the
following:
(a) All the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible,

real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent) of the
Transferor Company, including, without being limited to, buildings and structures,
offices, sundry debtors, furniture, fixtures, office equipment, appliances, vehicles,
accessories, power lines, depots, deposits, all stocks, assets, investments of all kinds
(including shares, scrips, stocks, bonds, debenture stocks, units or pass through
certificates), cash balances or deposits with banks, loans, advances, contingent
rights or benefits, book debts, receivables, actionable claims, earnest moneys,
advances or deposits paid by the Transferor Company, financial assets, leases



nature whatsoever, rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email,

internet, leased line connections and Installations, utilfties, electricity and other

services, reserves, provisions, funds, ben.efits of assets or properties or other interest

held in trust, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of all kind,

privileges and all other rights including sales tax deferrals, tax deducted at source

(eTOS'), tax collected at source, advance tax, title, interests, other benefits

(including tax benefits), easements, privileges, liberties and advantages, if any of

whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated belonging to or in the ownership, power

or possession and in the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by

the Transferor Company or in connection with or relating to the Transferor Company

and all other interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power,

possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefit

of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company, whether in India or abroad.

(b) All agreements, rights, contracts, entitlements, licenses indudlng (but not limited

to) No Objection Certificate from any authorities, including the Municipal

Authorities, if any, permits, permissions, incentives, approvals, registrations, tax

deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy

rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges and claims as to any

patents, trademarks, copyright, designs, quota rights, engagements, arrangements,

authorities, allotments, security arrangements (to the extent provided herein),

benefits of any guarantees, reversions, powers and all other approvals of every kind,

nature and description whatsoever relating to the Transferor Company's business

activities and operations.

(c) Entitlements held by the Transferor Company or which may accrue or become due to

it as on the Appointed Date or may become so due or entitled to thereafter.

(d) All intellectual property rights, records, files, books, papers, process information,

computer programs, manuals, data, catalogues, sales and advertising material,

quotations, lists of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit

information, customer pricing information, other customer information and all other

records and documents relating to the Transferor Company's business activities and

operations whether in physical or electronic mode.

(e) Amounts claimed by the Transferor Company whether or not so recorded in the books

of account of the Transferor Company from any Governmental Authority, under any

law, act or rule in force, as refund of any tax, duty, cess or of any excess payment.

(f) Right to any claim, whether preferred or made by the Transferor Company or not, in
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with regard to any law, act or rule or Scheme made by the Governmental Autho 't.~

and in respect of set-off, carry forward of un-absorbed losses availability of Minimum

Alternate Tax credit, deferred revenue expenditure, deduction, exemption, rebate,

allowance, amortization benefit, if permitted under the provisions of Income·tax Act,

1961, and the applicable value added tax including but not limited to VAT, Service

Tax, Goods and Service Tax or any other or like benefits under the said acts or under

and in accordance with any law or act.

(g) All debts (secured or unsecured), liabilities including contingent liabilities whether

disclosed or undisclosed, duties, obligations, debentures, etc. of the Transferor

Company along with any charge, encumbrance, lien or security including leases

forming part of / relating to the Transferor Company and all other obligations of

whatsoever kind, nature and descrtption whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised
, ,

or incurred or utilized. Provided that, any reference in the security documents or

arrangements entered into by the Transferor Company and under which, the assets

forming part of / relating to the Transferor Company stand offered as a security, ror

any financial assistance or obligation, the said reference shall be construed as a

reference to the assets pertaining to that the Transferor Company only as are vested

in the Transferee Company by virtue of the Scheme. Provided always that the Scheme

shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or facUity created by

the Transferor Company which shall vest in the Transferee Company by virtue of the

amalgamation and the Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any further

or additional security therefore after the Effective Date or otherwise.

(h) All other obligations of whatsoever kind, including liabilities in respect of the

employees of the Transferor Company with regard to the payment of gratuity.

(i) All staff, workmen, employees or other labour of the Transferor Company.

Word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined In the Scheme will have the meaning(s)

respectively ascribed thereto. The expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined

in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning hereof, have

the same meanings ascribed to them under the Act, Income-tax Act and other applicable

laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be including any statutory modification

thereof from time to time.

2. DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

2.1. The Scheme shall be effective from the Appointed Date mentioned herein but shall be

operative from the Effective Date. The amalgamation between the Transferor Company and

the Transferee Company and their respective shareholders shall be in accordance with



as applicable.

3. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

3.1. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of Transferor Company as at

March 31, 2023, is as under:

Particulars Amount (lNR)

AUTHORISED SHARECAPITAL

2,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 25,00,00,000

Total 25,00,00,000

ISSUED1SUBSCRIBEDAND PAID UP SHARECAPITAL

2,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 25,00,00,000

•Total 25,00,00,000

Subsequent to March 31, 2023 there has been no change in its issued, subscribed and paid up

share capital.

As on date, the entire share capital of the Transferor Company is held by the Transferee

Company. Accordingly, the Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee

Company.

3.2. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of Transferee Company as at

March 31, 2023 is as under:

Particulars Amount (INR)

AUTHORISEDSHARE CAPITAL

3,50,00,000 Equity Shares of INR2/- each. 7,00,00,000

Total 7,00,00,000

ISSUED1SUBSCRIBEDAND PAID UP SHARECAPITAL

99,75,000 Equity Shares of INR 2/· each. 1,99,50,000

Total 1,99,50,000

Subsequent to March 31, 2023 there has been no change in its issued, subscribed and paid up-
5

share capital.
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4. RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

4.1. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are part of the same group and the

Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company. The rationale for

the Scheme is as under:

(a) To foray into design, development, research in the field of Information Technology for

networking products at the Holding company level

(b) Reduce managerial overlaps, regulatory compliances which are necessarily Involved in

running multiple entities and elimination of duplication of administrative expenses,

consequently enabling cost savings

(c) Ease in raising funds at Holding company level

(d) Economies of scale, greater integration, flexibility and market reach for the

amalgamated entity

(e) Achieve simplified corporate structure and ensuring more productive and optimum

utilization of various resources

4.2. Accordingly, this Scheme is being presented for amalgamation between the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company and their respective shareholders and for various other

matters consequential, inddental, supplemental and I or otherwise integrally connected

therewith pursuant to sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

5. TRANSFERAND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING

5.1. With effect from the Appointed Date and upon coming into effect of the Scheme and subject

to the provisions of the Scheme, the entire Undertaking of the Transferor Company shall be

transferred to and vested in or be deemed to be transferred to and vested as a going concern

in the Transferee Company.

5.2. For avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified

that upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, in

accordance with the provisions of relevant laws, all consents, permissions, licenses,

registrations, certificates, authorities (including for the operation of bank accounts), powers

of attorneys given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferor Company, and the



Company under the same terms and conditions as were applicable to the Transferor Company

immediately prior to the Effective Date. In so far as the various incentives, sales tax, deferral

benefits, subsidies (Including applications for subsidies), available tax credits (including

Minimum Alternate Tax credit, if any), rehabilitation schemes, grants, special status and

other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by any government body, local authority or by

any other person, or availed of or to be availed of by the Transferor Company are concerned,

the same shall, without any further act or deed, in so far as they relate to the Transferor

Company, shall be transferred and I or deemed to be transferred to or vest with and be

available to the Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions as were applicable

immediately prior to the coming into effect of, this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall

make applications to and obtain relevant approvals from the concerned Governmental

Authorities and I or parties as may be necessary in this behalf and the Transferor Company

shall co-operate and provide the required support wherever required.

5.3. The transfer and vesting of movable assets and other assets shall be effected as follows,

unless Board of Directors of the Transferor and the Transferee Company decides otherwise:

(a) All the movable assets of the Transferor Company, and the assets which are otherwise

capable of transfer by physical delivery or endorsement and delivery, shall be so

transferred to the Transferee Company and deemed to have been physically handed

over by physical delivery or by endorsement and delivery, as the case may be, without

the need to execute any separate instrument, to the Transferee Company to the end

and intent that the property and benefit therein passes to the Transferee Company

with effect from the Appotnted Date. Such delivery and transfer shall be made on a

date which shall be mutually agreed upon between the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company on or after the Effective Date.

(b) In respect of any movable assets of the Transferor Company other than those

mentioned in sub-clause 5.3.(a) above, including investments, intangible assets,

actionable claims, sundry debtors, outstanding loans, advances recoverable in cash.
or kind or for value to be received and deposits with the Government, semi-

Government, local and other authorities and bodies and customers, the Transferor

Company shall if so required by the Transferee Company, and the Transferee

Company may, issue notices in such form as the Transferee Company may deem fit

and proper stating that pursuant to the NCLT having sanctioned this Scheme under

Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, the relevant debt,

loan, advance or other asset, be paid or made good or held on account of the

Transferee Company, as the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the

7 ~
'7
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respective books to record the aforesaid changes.

5.4. In relation to the assets, if any, belonging to the Transferor Company, which require separate

documents of transfer, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company will execute

necessary documents, as and when required.

Provided that for the purpose of giving effect to the vesting order passed under Sections 230

to 232 in respect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall at any time pursuant to the

orders on this Scheme be entitled to get the record of the change in the title and the

appurtenant legal right(s) upon the vesting of such assets of the Transferor Company in

accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, at the office of the

respective Registrar of Assurances or any other concerned authority, where any such property

is situated.

5.5. Upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Appointed Date, and subject

to the provisions of the Scheme, all debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and

obligations of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date whether provided for or not

in the books of accounts of the Transferor Company, and all other liabilities which may acctue

or arise after the Appointed Date but which relate to the period on or up to the day of the

Appointed Date shall, pursuant to the orders of the Hon'ble NCLTor such other Governmental

authority as may be applicable under the provisions of the Act, without any further act or

deed, be transferred or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company,

so as to become as from the Appointed Date the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities,

duties, and obligations of the Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions as were

applicable to the Transferor Company. Provided however that any charges, mortgages and/ or

encumbrances shall be confined only to the relative assets of the Transferor Company or part

thereof on o~ over which they are subsisting on transfer to and vesting of such assets in the

Transferee Company and no such charges, mortgages, and/or encumbrances shall be enlarged

or extend over or apply to any other asset(s) of the Transferee Company. Any reference in

any security documents or arrangements (to which any of the Transferor Company is a party)

to any assets of the Transferor Company shall be so construed to the end and intent that such

security shall not extend, nor be deemed to extend, to any of the other asset(s) of the

Transferee Company and Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any further or

additional security.

5.6, On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to



contracts and transactions.

5.7. The resolutions, if any, as approved and passed from time to time, under the Act, by the

Board of Directors, shareholders of the Transferor Company, which are valid and subsisting

on the Effective Date, shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be considered as

resolutions of the Transferee Company until the Board of Directors or the shareholders of the

Transferee Company, as applicable, passes resolution(s) which has the effect of modifying or

changing aforesaid resolutions of the Transferor Company. If any such resolutions of the

Transferor Company have upper monetary or other limits being imposed under the provisions

of the Act or any other applicable provisions, then the said limits shall be added and shall

constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the Transferee Company.

5.B. This Scheme shall not, in any manner, affect the rights of any of the creditors of the

Transferor Company or the Transferee Company.

6. CONTRACTSAND DEEDS

6.1. From the Effective Date, subject to the provisions hereof, without any further act of the

parties, all memorandum of understanding, contracts, including contracts for tenancies and

licenses, deeds, bonds, agreements, incentives, benefits, exemptions, entitlements,

arrangements, engagements, registrations, schemes, assurances, insurance policies,

guarantees and other instruments of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor Company is

a party or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company may be eligible and which are

subsisting or have effect on the Effective Date, shall be in full force and effect on or against

or in favour, as the case may be, of the Transferee Company and may be enforced as fully

and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been

a party to or beneficiary of or obliged under the same.

6.2. Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that

the vesting of the Transferor Company occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, the Transferee

Company shall, if and to the extent required by law, enter into and / or issue and / or execute

deeds, writings or confirmations, to give formal effect to the provisions of Clause 6.1. To the

extent that the Transferor Company is required prior to the Effective Date to enter into and
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It is hereby clarified that if any contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, registrations, licenses, ~l h
assets (including but not limited to any estate, rights, title, interest in or authorities relating

the Transferor Company.

to such assets), schemes, arrangements or other instruments of whatsoever nature to which

the Transferor Company is a party, cannot be transferred to the Transferee Company for any

reason whatsoever, the Transferor Company shall hold such contracts, deeds, bonds,

agreements, registrations, licenses, schemes, arrangements or other instruments of

whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of the Transferee Company, on and till the

Effective Date.

7. EMPLOYEESOF THE TRANSFERORCOMPANY

7.1. All the employees of the Transferor Company, who are in service as on the Effective Date

shall on and from the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, become and

be engaged as the employees of the Transferee Company, without any break or interruption

in service as a result of the transfer and on terms and conditions not less favourable than

those on which they are engaged by the Transferor Company immediately preceding the

Effective Date. Services of the employees of the Transferor Company shall be taken into

account from the date of their respective appointment with the Transferor Company for the

purposes of all retirement benefits and all other entitlements for which they may be eligible.

For the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, if any, such past services

with the Transferor Company shall also be taken into account.

7.2. On and from the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, the services of the

employees of the Transferor Company will be treated as having been continuous, without any

break, discontinuance or interruption, for the purpose of membership and the application of

the rules or bye-laws of provident fund or gratuity fund or pension fund or superannuation

fund or other statutory purposes as the case may be.

7.3. It is expressly provided that, on the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the

Appointed Date, the provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund or any other special

fund or trusts created or existing for the benefit of the staff, workmen and other employees

of the Transferor Company shall become trusts / funds of the Transferee Company for all

purposes whatsoever in relation to the administration or operation of such funds or trusts or

in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said funds or trusts in accordance

with the provisions thereof as per the terms provided in the respective trust deeds or other



of the Transferee Company.

employees of the Transferor Company which are employed with the Transferee Compan\!i'Am1:=:;;:::;;;"

be treated as having been continuous for the purpose of the said fund or funds. The trustees

including the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company or

through any committee / person duly authorised by the Board of Directors in this regard shall

be entitled to adopt such course of action in this regard as may be advised provided however

that there shall be no discontinuation or breakage in the services of the employees of the

Transferor Company.

8. BOARDOF DIRECTORSOF THE TRANSFERORCOMPANY

8.1. The Board of Directors (or any committee/ sub-committee thereof) of the Transferor

Company, upon this Scheme becoming effective, shall without any further act, instrument

and deed stand dissolved. All directors of the Transferor Company shall cease to be directors

of the Transferor Company on coming into effect of this Scheme. However, if any such

director is a director of the Transferee Company, he will continue to hold his office in the

amalgamated Transferee Company.

9. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

9.1. If any suit, appeal, petition, complaint, application or other legal proceedings of whatsoever

nature (hereinafter referred to as the "Proceedings") by or against the Transferor Company

is pending as on the Effective Date, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any

way be prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation between the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company or by anything contained In this Scheme, but the

Proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee

Company In the same manner and to the same extent as It would or might have been

continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company in the absence of

this Scheme.

9.2. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall, if required, initiate any legal

proceedings in relation to the present and past business, undertakings, properties and assets

of the Transferor Company.

10. CONDUCT OF BUSINESSBY TRANSFERORCOMPANYTILL EFFECTIVE DATE

10.1. Unless otherwise stated herein, from the Appointed Date until the Effective Date:

(a)
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Company hereby undertakes to hold the assets, properties. and liabilities with utm~st- t2}'\. ~
prudence until the Effective Date.

(b) The Transferor Company shall carry on its business and activities with reasonable

diligence and business prudence and shall' not, alter or diversify its respective

business nor venture into any new business, nor alienate, charge, mortgage,

encumber or otherwise deal with the assets or any part thereof except in the ordinary

course of business.

(c) All the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company or expenditure

or losses arising or incurred or suffered by the Transferor Company, shall for all

purposes be treated as the income or profits or losses or expenditure as the case may

be of the Transferee Company.

(d) The Transferor Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of employment of

any of the employees except in the ordinary course or pursuant to any pre-existing

obligation undertaken by the Transferor Company as the case may be.

(e) The Transferor Company shall not make any change in its capital structure (paid-up

capital), whether by way of increase, decrease, reduction, re-classification, sub-

division or consolidation, re-organisation, or in any other manner, except by and with

the consent of the Board of Directors of SHL.

10.2. The Transferor Company either individually or jointly with the Transferee Company shall be

entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the Central Government and lor
other agencies, departments and authorities concerned as may be necessary under any law

'for such consents, approvals and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require to carry

on the business of the Transferor Company and to give effect to the Scheme.

11. SAVING OF CONCLUDEDTRANSACTION

11.1. The transfer of the entire business, properties, assets and Undertaking of the Transferor

Company to the Transferee Company and the continuance of all contracts or proceedings by

or against the Transferor Company shall not affect any transaction, contracts or proceedings

already concluded by the Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date till the

Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and adopts all

acts, deeds, matters and things done and I or executed by the Transferor Company in· regard
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The entire issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Transferor Company i~ ( e-..-.f/
held by the Transferee Company. In other words, the Transferor Company is WhOllY"~~R~:~ G.~/~---.
subsidiary of the Transferee Company. Accordingly, upon this scheme becoming effective,

the Transferee Company would not be required to issue and allot any shares to the

shareholders of the Transferor Company.

12.1.

13. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

13.1. On the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Transferee

Company shall account for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company in its books of

account in accordance with "Pooling of Interest Method" laid down under Appendix C of IND

AS 103 (Business combination of entities under common control) and! or any other applicable

IND AS, as the case may be, as notified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules

issued thereunder.

14. TREATMENT OF TAXES

14.1. Any tax liabilities under the Income-tax Act, 1961, Customs Act, 1962, The Central Good and

Service Tax Act, 2017, stamp laws, if any as amended from time to time or other applicable

laws! regulations dealing with taxes! duties! levies (hereinafter in this Clause referred to as

"Tax laws") allocable or related to the business of the Transferor Company to the extent not

provided for or covered by appropriate tax provisions in the accounts made as on the date

immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the Transferee Company.

14.2. All taxes (including but not limited to Income-tax, Good and Service tax etc.) paid or payable

by the Transferor Company in respect of the operations and ! or the profits of the business

on and from the Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Transferee Company and, insofar

as it relates to the tax payment (including without limitation Income-tax, service tax, etc.),

whether by way of deduction at source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by the

Transferor Company in respect of the profits or activities or operation of the business on and

from the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to be the corresponding item paid by

the Transferee Company, and shall in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

14.3. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company (if required) and the
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alternate tax, advance taxes, TDS, etc.), as may be recurred to give effect to the provis~

of the Scheme.

The relevant authorities shall be bound to transfer to the account of and give credit for the,
same to Transferee Company upon the passing of the order on this Scheme by the Hon'ble

NCLT or any other appropriate authority and upon relevant proof and documents being

provided to the said authorities.

14.4. All tax assessment proceedings I appeals of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor

Company pending and I or arising at the Appointed Date and relating to them shall be

continued and I or enforced until the Effective Date by the Transferor Company. As and from

the Effective Date, the tax proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or against the

Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have

been continued and enforced by or against the Transferor Company. Further, the

aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be discontinued nor be in any way

prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the

Transferee Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

14.5. Any refund under the Tax Laws received by I due to the Transferor Company consequent to

the assessments made on the Transferor Company subsequent to the Appointed Date and for

which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed

Date shall also belong to and be received by the Transferee Company.

14.6. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, all benefits Including but not limited to

benefits relating to Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax etc., to which the Transferor

Company is entitled In terms of the applicable tax laws of the Union and State Governments,

shall be available to and vest.in the Transferee Company.

14.7. Further, any tax deducted at source by the Transferor Company I the Transferee Company

on inter-company transactions between the Transferee Company and the Transferor

Company, if any (from Appointed Date to Effective Date) shall be deemed to be advance tax

paid by the Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings, be dfllt with accordingly.,

Transferee Company.

14

14.8.
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Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the Transferee

Company shall automatically stand increased without any further act, instrument or deed on

the part of the Transferee Company including payment of stamp duty and fees payable to

ROC, by the authorised share capital of the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date.

The Authorised Share, Capital of the Transferee Company stands increased to

INR 32,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Two Crores Only) divided intQ 16,00,00,000 (Sixteen Crore)

equity shares of INR 2/- each and the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association

of the Transferee Company (relating to the authorised share capital) shall, without any

further act, instrument or deed, .be increased and stand altered, modified and amended, and

the consent of the shareholders of the Transferee Company to the Scheme (in case

dispensation for holding meeting of shareholders of the Transferee Company is not granted)/

the approval of this Scheme by the NCLT (in case dispensation for holding meeting of
, l .

shareholders of the Transfer~e Company is granted) .shalt.be deemed to be sufficient for the

purposes of effecting this amendment, and no lie.solution(s), under jections 13, 14 and 61 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and Section 230 of the Act and other ap licable provisions of the

Act would be required to be separately passed, as the case may be and for this purpose the

stamp, duties and fees paid on the authorised capital of theTran 1eror Company shall be

utilized and appli:9- to the increased authorised share capital of, the Transferee Company and

there would be no requirement for any further payment of stamp duty and / or fee by the

Transferee Company for increase in the authorised share capital to that extent and the

Transferee Company shal( pay the differential fees/ stamp duty, if any, on the enhanced

authorised share capital pursuant to the amalgamation after set-off the fee/stamp duty paid.
by the Transferor Company on its authorised capital prior to amalgamation.

'" '

15.2. It is clarified that the consent of the shareholders of t¥ TransfereeCompany to the Scheme

(in case dispensation for holdjng 'rneettag of shareholders of the Transferee Company is not

granted)/ the approval of this Scheme by the' NCLT (in case dispensation for holding meeting

of shareholders of the ,irransferee Company IS granted) shall be deemed to be the consent of

shareholders of the Transferee Company to the alteration of/the Memorandum of Association

of the Transferee Company as may be required under the 'Act, and Clause V of the

Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company, shall stand substituted by virtue of

the Scheme to read as foltows:
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16. DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFERORCOMPANY

16.1. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferor Company shalt stand dissolved without being

wound up.

17. APPLICATION TO THE NCLT

17.1. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company as may be directed by the NCLT shall

make and file necessary applications and petitions to the NCLT or any other appropriate

authority, under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,

2013 for sanctioning this Scheme and for dissolution of the Transferor Company without being

wound up.

18. MODIFICATIONS I AMENDMENTSTO THE SCHEME

18.1. The Transferor Company (by its Board of Directors) and the Transferee Company (by its Board

of Directors) or such other person or persons, as the respective Board of Directors may

authorize, including any committee or sub-committee thereof, may consent, on behalf of all

persons concerned, to any modifications or amendments of the Scheme or to any conditions

or limitations that the NCLT or any other Governmental Authority may deem fit to direct or

impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by the

NCLT or such other Governmental Authority, whether in pursuance of a change in law or

otherwise. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company by their respective Board

of Directors or such other person or persons as the respective Board of Directors may

authorize, including any committee or sub-committee thereof, shall be authorised to take all

such steps as may be necessary, desirable or proper to resolve any doubts, difficulties or

questions whether by reason of any directive or orders of any other authorities or otherwise

howsoever arising out of or under or by virtue of the Scheme and I or any matter concerned

or connected therewith. All modification I amendments in pursuant to this Clause shall be

subject to approval of NCLT.

18.2. For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modification or amendments thereof

or additions thereto, the detegate(s) and I or the directors of the Transferor Company and I

or the Transferee Company may give and are hereby authorised to determine and give all

such directions as are necessary including directions for settling any question of doubt or

difficulty that may arise and such determination or directions, as the case may be, shall be
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The Scheme, in relation to the amalgamation between Transferor Company and Transfer~~"

Company, is conditional upon and subject to the following: .

CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME

19.1.

(a) The requisite consent! intimation/ approval/ permission / waiver, as may be required

of the Central Government or any other statutory or regulatory authority, including

Stock Exchange(s) and/or Securities and Exchange Board of India and/or Reserve Bank

of India, if any, which by law may be necessary for the implementation of this Scheme

or as may be directed by the jurisdictional NCLT.

(b) The Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of the

shareholders andl or creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee

Company as may be directed by the jurisdictional NCLT.

(c) Sanctions and orders under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable

provisions of the Act being obtained by the Transferor Company and the Transferee

Company from the NCLT.

(d) Filing of Certified copies of Orders of NCLT sanctioning this Scheme pursuant to

Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act with the ROC, Goa by

the Companies.

(e) Intimation to the Project Management Agency for obtaining requisite approval /

waiver of the Competent authority on account of change in shareholding (due to the

said amalgamation), pursuant to the Approval Letter no. PU/GSCV/OUT/17203/M14

dated October 31, 2022 issued by the Small Industries Development Bank of India

(SIDBI), the Project Management Agency ('the PMA') read with Production Linked

Incentive scheme ('the PLI Scheme') Guidelines for Telecom and Networking Products

manufactured in India dated June 03, 2021 issued in favour of Transferor Company.

20. EFFECT OF NON·RECEIPT OF APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS

20.1. In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in Clause 19 are not being

obtained and / or complied with and / or satisfied and I or the Scheme not being sanctioned

by the NCLT, this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect and in that

event, no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred between the

Transferor Company and the Transferee Company or their respective shareholders or

creditors or employees or any other person save and except in respect of any act or deed

done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation

which has arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved

or worked out in accordance wlth the applicable law and in such case, each party shall bear



-... c..
declare this Scheme of no effect if such Board of Directors are of the view ~hat the coming ~ :' /.:!..!:
into' effect of this Scheme in terms of the provisions of this Scheme or filing of orders Wit,h, ~~::~,>~.'
any authority could have adverse implications on either or both the Transferor Company and -~, ;jY-

""' " \ .. _,'
the Transferee Company. ~--=:_ ._~~.,

21. COSTS,CHARGESAND EXPENSES

21.1. All costs, charges, taxes including duties (including the stamp duty, if any, applicable in

relation to this Scheme), levies and all other expenses, if any (save as expressly otherwise

agreed) arising out of or incurred in carrying out and implementing this Scheme and matters

18
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CERTIFIED TRUE COpy OF THE RESOLUTION Pb.BSED BY THE BO~~F C.~}J:X '"'
DIRECTORS OF SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD AT PLOT NO'. --_ (2... 0~
7, VERNA INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, VERNA, SALCETE GCA 403722 ON FRIDAY, THE .._) ~
09TR DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024

EXHlSr-r· .. 'l'~-_,if"

§VNEGRA

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any to tatutory modification or
replacement thereof for the time being in force or any amendmen. thereof and Clause III
B (11) of the Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of Synegra EMS Limited
(hereinafter referred to as "the Company" or "Transferor Company") and subject to the
requisite approval, consents, sanctions and permissions of the concerned regulatory
authorities if any and the sanction of the jurisdictional Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal ("NCLT") and/ or such other appropriate authority, as may be applicable and
requisite approval. of the shareholders and/ or creditorJ of the Company as may be
directed by the jurisdictional NCLT, the approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company ('Board') be and is hereby accorded to the Scheme of Amalgamation between
Synegra EMS Limited( "Transferor Company") and Smartlink Holdings Limited (
"Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders (lithe Scheme") placed before
the Board and initialed by the Chairman for the purpose of identification.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT as the Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary
of the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company would not be required to issue and
allot any shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. K. R. Naik, Wholetime Director, Mr. K. G. Prabhu,
Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Edlan Fernandes, Company Secertary and Ms. Urjita Damle,
Authorised Signatory of the Company be and are hereby authorised individually and!
or severally to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed
necessary, expedient, desirable, usual or proper and to settle any question or difficult}'~
that may arise with regard to execution and implementation of the Scheme and for this
purpose take all necessary steps for, including but not limited to:
(a) Finalizing the draft Scheme of Amalgamation;
(b) Filing of applications/affidavits with the concerned jurisdictional NCLT or such

other competent authority and seeking directions as to holding/ dispensing with
meeting of the shareholders/creditors of the Company as may be directed by the
jurisdictional NCLT to give effect to the Scheme and where necessary to take steps
to convene and hold such meetings as per the directions of the jurisdictional NCLT;

(c) Filing of petitions for confirmation of the Scheme by the jurisdictional NCLT's or
such other competent authority;

(d) For the above purposes to engage advocates, consultants, Company Secretary,
Chartered Accountants, and if considered necessary, also engage services of

~
SYNEGRA EMS UMITED
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counsehs), declare and file all pleadings, J.'eror~s,'ij:.,:l sign and
advertisement; and notices; . -'i

(e) Obtaining approval from such other authorities (ltd parties including- the
shareholders and creditors. a~ play be directed by ti~~".:11risdktional NCLT, to the
said Scheme; , .

(f) To settle any question or difficulty that may .~1__'sewith regard to the
implementation of the above Scheme, and to give effect tQ the above resolution:

(g) To make any alterations/ changes to the Scheme (to ml)~' b,e expedient or necessary
which does not materially change the ~UbSlarcf.· ':: ~!e Scheme; and also
particularly for sa-tisfying the requirements or condidoi.s lmPJd by the Central
Government or the jurisdictional NeLT or any other a~:i:qri;:y;
To suspend, withdraw or reY...ive the scheme from liine '~~t.me .nlay be specified
by any statutory authoritv .0.1:' asmay I'c s~~') .o:tO.~'J•.. ':;':~~:~ l y the 'Board in its

(11)

absolute discretion;
0) To sign all applications, petiti.c':1s,· docum 7.nts.. ~'~r;tl.:f.; . to the Scheme and

jurisdictional NCLT process or delegate ~i!~"::';l1t}.;l._:-::~~,to anqther rerscn by n
valid Power of Attorney; and '. '\' : I

G) To do all acts and things as may be considered'necessrz ,. and expedient in relation
to the Scheme including necessary submissions to the regulatcry authorities to.give
effect to the Scheme and for matters connected frl~rew1a~ Of in~id~ntal tile~eto./I

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT this resolution ~~\aUremain 'i1'1. full force and effect until
otherwise amended or rescinded by the Board of [,~~ci.ur.;,;.

RESOLVED :aJ'"R'LHER THAT fl certified true extract otJ_J~eabove resolutions duly
signed by anyone of the Directors, De sent to tae concen ..~:~authorities / regulatory
bodies to enablethem to give effect i:olite above resolutious.''.

Certified To Be True Copy
J.

For SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

~
K. R. NAIK
WHOLETIME DIRECTOR
DIN: 00002013

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED
Registered Office: Plot No. L·5A, Verna Industrial Estate. Verna, Salcette, South Goa, GA, 403722,IN
Land Phone: +91 8322885433 I Fax: +91 8322783395 I helpdesk@synegra.com I www.synegra.com

CIN: U31909GA2016PlC012969 A Subsidiary of Srnartlink Holdings Ltd.
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BO~' (YIPS O~·· ~~
DIRECTORS OF SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HEC~tF GOp..
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT L-7, VERNA INDUSTRIA
ESTATE, VERNA, SALCETE - GOA, 403722 ON FRIDAY THE 09TH DAY OF
FEBRUARY, 2024

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification or
replacement thereof for the time being in force or any amendment thereof and clause III
B (15) of the Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of Smartlink Holdings
Limited (hereinafter referred to as lithe Company" or "Transferee Company") and
subject to the requisite approval, consents, sanctions and permissions of the concerned
regulatory authorities if any and the sanction of the jurisdictional Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") and/ or such other appropriate authority, as may be
applicable and requisite approval of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company
as may be directed by the jurisdictional NCLT, the approval of the Board of Directors of
the Company ('Board') be and is hereby accorded to the Scheme of Amalgamation
between .Synegra EMS Limited ("Transferor Company") and the Company and their
respective shareholders ("the Scheme") placed before the Board and initialed by the
Chairman for the purpose of identification.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT as the Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary
of the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company would not be required to issue and
allot any shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company on account of merger of
wholly owned subsidiary with the Transferee Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT report of the Audit Committee recommending the draft
Scheme and the certificate issued by the Statutory Auditor M/ s Shridhar and Associates,
Chartered Accountants for accounting treatment as placed before the Board be and is
hereby noted, accepted and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of the Regulation 37(6) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015, the Company is not
required to obtain prior approval of Stock Exchanges for filing the Scheme with
jurisdictional NCL T and the Company is not required to comply with the provisions of
SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023
provided that draft Scheme is filed with Stock Exchanges for disclosure purposes.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. K. R. Naik, Executive Chairman, Ms. Arati Naik,
Wholetime Director, Mr. K. G. Prabhu, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Urjita Damle,

SMARTLlNI{ HOLDINGS LIMITED
Registered OFFice: L-7. Verna Industrial Estate. Verna, Salcete. GA. 403722,IN I Land Phone: +91 8322885400 I Fax: +91 8322783395 ,
investors@smartlinkholdings.com 1 www.smartlinkholdings.com &. '\

Corporate Office: CITIPOINT. 7th Floor. Unit No. 8-702. Andheri-Kurla Road. l. S, Nagar. Andheri (East), Murnbai - 400059, INDIA ~
Land Phone: +91 224961 7068

I:UGlstn': CIN: L67100GA1993PLC001341
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Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorised indiVidu~-a.4~
severally to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things as .may be deemed
necessary, expedient, desirable, usual or proper and to settle any question or difficulty
that may arise with regard to execution and implementation of the Scheme and for this
purpose take all necessary steps for, including but not limited to:
(a) Finalizing the draft Scheme of Amalgamation; .
(b) Obtaining requisite consent/ intimation/ approval/ permission, as may be required

of the Central Government or any other statutory or regulatory authority, including
Stock Exchange(s) and/or Securities and Exchange Board of India, if any, or any
other regulatory authority, which by law may be necessary for the implementation
of this Scheme

(c) Filing of applications/affidavits with the concerned jurisdictional NCLT or such
other competent authority and seeking directions as to holding/ dispensing with
meeting of the shareholders/creditors of the Company as may be directed by the
jurisdictional NCLT to give effect to the Scheme and where necessary to take steps
to convene and hold such meetings as per the directions of the jurisdictional NCLT;

(d) Filing of petitions for confirmation of the Scheme by the jurisdictional NCLT's or
such other competent authority;

(e) For the above purposes to engage advocates, consultants, Company Secretary,
Chartered .Accountants, and if considered necessary, also engage services of
counsel(s), declare and file all pleadings, reports, and sign and issue public
advertisements and notices;

(f) Obtaining approval from such other authorities and parties including the
shareholders and creditors, as may be directed by the jurisdictional NCLT, to the
said Scheme;

(g) To settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regard to the implementation
of the above Scheme, and to give effect to the above resolution;

(h) To make any alterations/changes to the Scheme as may be expedient or necessary
which does not materially change the substance of the Scheme; and also particularly
for satisfying the requirements or conditions imposed by the Central Government or
the jurisdictional NCLT or any other authority;

(i) To suspend, withdraw or revive the scheme from time to time as may be specified
by any statutory authority or as may be suo moto decided by the Board in its
absolute discretion;

0) To sign all applications, petitions, documents, relating to the Scheme and
jurisdictional NCLT process or delegate such authority to another person by a valid
Power of Attorney;

(k) To sign the consent affidavit as a shareholder and/or creditor of the Transferor
Company (as applicable); and

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Registered Office: l-7, Verna Industrial Estate, Vema, Salcete, GA. 403722, IN I land Phone: +91 8322885400 I Fax: +91 8322783395
investors@smartlinkholdings.com I www.smartlinkholdings.com

Corporate Office: em POINT, 7th Floor, Unit No. 8-702. Andheri-Kurla Road, I. B. Nagar. Andheri (East). Mumbai . 400059. INDIA ~.l
land Phone: +91 224961 7068 jt-

OIGIBOL CIN: L67100GA1993PlC001341
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(1) To do all acts and things as m!}), be considered nece~aary and expedient in relation
to the Scheme including necessary submissions to the regulatory authorities to vve
effect to the Scheme and for matters connected therewith cr incidental thereto."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT this.resolution shall remain in full force and effect until
otherwise amended or rescinded by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER tHAT a certified true extract of the above resolutions duly
signed by anyone of the Directors, be sent to the concerned authorities / regulatory
bodies to enable them to give effect to the above resolutions."

Certified To Be True Copy

For SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

~
K. R. NAIK
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
DIN 00002013

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Registered Office: L-7. Verna Industrial Estate, Vema, Salcete, GA. 403722, IN I Land Phone: +91 8322885400 I Fax: +91 8322783395
invcstors@smartlinkholdings,com I www.smartlinkholdings.com

Corporate Office: CITIPOINT, 7th Floor. Unit No. 8-702, Andheri-Kurla ROOld.I, B. Nagar. Andheri (East). Mumbai - 400059. INDIA
Land Phone: .·912249617068

elN : L67100GA1993PLC001341CIGISCt.: !§VNEGRA'



EXHIB1T-' H

Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

To,
The Board of Directors,
Smartlink Holdings Limited
L-7 Vema Industrial Estate, Vema,
Salcete, Goa, India - 403722

Dear Sir,

Sub: Independent Auditor's Certificate certifying the accounting treatment in the books of
Smartlink Holdings Limited as mentioned in Clause 13 of the proposed Scheme of
amalgamation between Synegra EMS Limited ("Transferor Company") and Smartlink
Holdings Limited ("Transferee Company")

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms and conditions of letter dated
February 2,2024 with the Smartlink Holdings Limited.

2. We, Shridhar and Associates, the statutory auditors of Smartlink Holdings Limited
(hereinafter referred to as "the Company"), have examined the accounting treatment
specified in Clause 13 of the proposed Scheme of amalgamation between Synegra EMS
Limited ("Transferor Company") and Smartlink Holdings Limited ("Transferee
Company") and their respective shareholders in terms of the provisions of Sections 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with applicable rules made thereunder,
with reference to its compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
accepted in India. The extract of the clause 13 of the proposed scheme of Amalgamation
which has been prepared by the Management is attached as Annexure 1.

Management's Responsibility

3. The responsibility for the preparation of the proposed Scheme including the accounting
treatment therein as specified in Clause l3 of the Scheme and its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid,
is that of the Board of Directors of the Companies involved. This responsibility includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Scheme and applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and
making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

4. The Management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other laws time being in force.



Auditor's Responsibility

Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

5. Pursuant to the provisions of sections 230 to 232 of the Act read with the Rules made
thereunder, our responsibility is to obtain reasonable assurance and form and opinion as to
whether the accounting treatment as specified in the proposed Scheme complies with the
applicable Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and Other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles accepted in India.

Nothing contained in this Certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of, or in
connection with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend any duty of care
that we may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of the
Company.

6. We have verified the following documents furnished by the Company:
a) The proposed Scheme containing clause 13 dealing with the accounting treatment.
b) Audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023.

7. Financial statements ('PS') of the Company for the year ended March 3J, 2023 were
prepared in accordance with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, we
have audited those financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('lCAl'), those standards require that auditor plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, on which we had issued an unmodified audit opinion dated May 17,2023.

8. We carried out our examination in accordance with the "Guidance Note on Audit Reports
and Certificates for Special Purposes" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the "Guidance Note"). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAl.

9. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

10. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we confirm that the accounting treatment contained in the aforesaid proposed scheme is in
compliance with Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and
Other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles accepted in India.



Restriction on use

Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

11. This Certificate is issued at the request of Smartlink Holdings Limited pursuant to the
requirements of circulars issued under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for onward submission to the BSE Limited, National
Stock Exchange of India Limited, Securities and Exchange Board of India, National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, Regional Director and any other statutory/
regulatory authority for the purpose of obtaining their approval for the proposed Scheme.
This Certificate should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

12. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other
purpose to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may
come without our prior consent inwriting.

For Shridhar and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Finn Registration Number: 134427W

ABHISHEK
PACHLANGIA

tally signed by ABHISHEK
HLANGIA
: 2024.02.08 21:19:48 +05'30'

Abhishek Pachlangia
Partner
Membership No. 120593
UDIN: 24120593BKCAFU7879
Place: Mumbai
Date: February 08, 2024

Mumbai Office: 101, I" Floor, Vaibbav Chambers, Madhusudan Kelkar Marg, Bandra East, Mumbai-400052
Bead Office Tel: +91 (22) 2604 3028/2604 4363/6741 1399; Email: info@shridharandassociates.com
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Annexure 1

Extract of Clause 13 on accounting treatment of the proposed Scheme of the amalgamation
between Synegra EMS limited (''Transferor Company") and Smartlink Holdings limited
(''Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders in terms of the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Scheme")

13. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

13.1. On the Scheme becoming effective and with etrect from the Appointed Date, the

Transferee Company shall account for the amalgarr:ation of the Transferor Company in

its books of account in accordance with "Pooling of Irterest Method" laid down under

Appendix C of IND AS 103 (Business combination of entities under common control) and/

or any other applicable IND AS, as the case may be, as notified under Section 133 of the

Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

For Smartlink Holdings Umited

Karkala ~Oi9.i"IIY'ignodbYKafkal. Gurvpr... d
Guruprasaj ~..bhu

.~·o)tl!.:z024.02.oa
Prabhu / 20:03,07+05'30'

"
I,
I

By: K.G. Prabhu

Chief Financial officer

Date: February 08, 2024

Place: Verna, Goa

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Registered Office: l-7. Vema Industrial Estate, Vema, Salcete, GA,40372.2, IN I land Phone: +918322885400 I Fax: +918322783395
investors@smartlinkholdings.com I _.smartlinkhoklings.com

Corporate Office: CITlPOINT,7th Floor. Unit No. 8-702. Andheri-Kurla Road, J. B. Nagar. Andherl (East). Mumbal- 400059, INDIA
Land Phone: +91 224961 7068

€J DIGISCL S:SYNEGRA' CIN: l6<ll00GA 1993PlCOO1341
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BSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Acknowledgement Number 6830376

Date and Time of Submission 2/9/2024 2:10:31 PM

Scripcode and Company Name 532419 - Smartlink Holdings Ltd

Subject 1 Compliance Regulation Board Meeting Outcome for Outcome For Board Meeting

Submitted By URJITA DAMLE

Designation Company Secretary &Compliance Officer

Disclaimer: - Contents of filings has not been verified at the time of submission.



From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Guruprasad Prabhu
16 February 2024 15:08
Company Secretary; investors; bse.schemes@bseindia.com
Fwd: Scheme of Amalgamation - Smartlink Holdings Umited
SmartlinkStockExchangelntimationSchemeofAmalgamation.pdf; FT402156906666
_Payment Advice.pdf

investors

Dear Sir/Madam

Company Name: Smartlink Holdings Limited
BSEScrlpCode: 532419

In accordance with the provisions of Regulations 37(6) of the listing Regulations read with the SEal Circular, please find
attached herewith the Scheme of Amalgamation between Synegra EMS limited (''Transferor Company"), Wholly-
owned Subsidiary with Smartlink Holdings Limited ("Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders under
sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of disclosures and
dissemination on website.

Also please find attached herewith the Payment advice for the processing fees paid for the Scheme of Amalgamation.

Thanks and Regards,

K. G. Prabhu
Compliance officer
Smartlink Holdings limited

From: Tanmayi Lele <tanmayl.lele@bselndla.com>
Sent: 15 February 2024 16:03
To: investors <investors@smartlinkholdings.com>
Cc: Guruprasad Prabhu <Guruprasad.Prabhu@smartlinkholdings.com>; SSESchemes <bse.schemes@bseindia.com>;
Company Secretary <Company.Secretary@smartlinkholdings.com>
Subject: RE:Virtual Account Number - Smartllnk Holdings limited

DearTeam,

Please find below are the virtual bank account details:

RTGSI NEFT Beneficiary Name: BSE Limited
Credit Account Number: BSEALOD8987L
Bank: ICICI Bank Limited
IFSC Code: ICIC0000104
Branch: CMS Branch
sank Address: 1ST FLOOR EMPIRE COMPLEX 414 S.B MARG LOWER PAREL MUMBAI400 013
Note: While remitting the funds through RTGSI NEFT please incorporate the following Beneficiary details. Kindly
note account numbers given above are company specific and company should be careful while transferring the
funds using company code or the same will be credited In wrong company's account

Regards,
Tanmayi lele
Assistant Manager
Listing Operations
BSELimited, MUMBAI
Mobile: 9833654806
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This mail is classified as 'BSE· PUSLIC' by tanrncry;.lelo on Februa~1;,"2024 at 16:02:32. ~'*i ~+.,;~
From: investors <in'le.m.OJs(cl)smUt$ll.QldjDr{s"'c.o.m> "f R~~l "10. 1451 *'
Sent: Thursday, February 15, 20243:49 PIVl - . ~.'"" - T4l~J2KT1- C)

T \\...." t1 ~0: BSE Schemes <bse.scbemes@J;>sein(Jia.kQID> - ~ q ~? ~~ ,
Cc: Guruprasad Prabhu <Gurupra5ad.Prn.b.h!.!_@rma.tllinkb..Qkli_l_ut~>; companYS,€0re1~1:S'C~J;'\()~~W~
<.c_o..r:n.p_any.Secretary@~rnartlinkholdlng~cm> ~. ,)~~~\ .~<:>

• • ~ - 1" 'J p.. \Subject: Virtual Account Number - Smartlink Holdings Limited ~.:::: __ ----

70AQ'l10N*: THIS EMArL ORIGINATED ,FROM OUTSIDE OF 'THE-ORGANIZATION. DO NOT CLICK LINKS
OR'OPW'ATTACHMENTS UNLESS YOU RECOGNIZE THR SE:ND~R AND KNOW THE CONTENT IS SAFE.

Dear Sir/Madam

Company Name: Smartlinl< Holdings Limited
BSEScrip Code: 532419

As discussed over call request you to kindly provide virtual account f1tl!l1','erfor transfer of SSEProcessing fees for
Scheme of Amalgamation of wholly owned subsidiary with the Holding f::ornpany.

Thanks and Regards,
Edlan Fernandes
Legal & Secretarial
Smartlink Holdings Limited

DiSCLAIMER: The contents of this message may be legally privllegeil and confidential and are for the use ofthe
intended recipient(s) only. It should not be read, copied and used by anyone other than the intended recipient(s). If you
have received this message in error, please immediately notify the sender. preserve its confidentiality and delete it.
Before opening any attachments please check them for viruses and detects. DISCLAIMER: The contents of this message
may be legally privileged and confidential and are for the use of the intended recipient(s) only. It should not be read,
copied and used by anyone other than the intended recipient(s). If vou have received this message in error, please
immediately notify the sender, preserve its confidentiality and delete it. Before opening any attachments please check
them for viruses and defects.

[@]
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NSE
NationaL Stock Exchange Of India Limited

Date of 09-Feb-2024

NSE Acknowledgement

Symbol:- SMARTLINK

Name of the Company: .. Smartlink Holdings Limited

Submission Type:- Board Meetings

Short Descriptlon:- Outcome of Board Meeting

Date of Submission:- 09-Feb-2024 02:12:15 PM

NEAPS App. No:- 2024/Feb/8336/8419

Disclaimer: We hereby acknowledge receipt of your submission through NEAPS. Please note that the content and information
provided is pending to be verified by NSEIL.



From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Guruprasad Prabhu
19 February 2024 14:32
investors
Fwd: Application Number 249 for Scheme of Amalgamation with Wholly owned subsidiary
Allocated

investors

Get Outlook for iOS

From: neaps@nse.co.in <neaps@nse.co.in>
Sent: Monday, February 19, 20242:31:35 PM
To: Company.Secretary@smartlink.co.in <Company.Secretary@smartlink.co.in>; Company Secretary
<Company.Secretary@smartlinkholdings.com>
Subject: Application Number 249 for Scheme of Amalgamation with Wholly owned subsidiary Allocated

Dear Sir/Madam,

We acknowledge the receipt of your Application Number 249 under Scheme of Amalgamation with Wholly owned
subsidiary.
Your application is being handled by Ms/Mr. Kishan Rastogi ( ).
You may contact her/him at 022-26598100-( Ext: ) and email id : for query if any.

Regards,
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

1



EXHIB T-' tJ

~YNEGRA
~~ .~. <SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED S ON: ,\~. Q'

LIST OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERSAS ON MARCtJ04, 2024 GOp... \\~

Sr. Name & address of Equity Face Value
No. shareholders Address Shares Per share

Held {Rs.}

Smartlink Holdings L-7, Verna Industrial

1 Limited Estate, Vernal Sa leete, 2,49,99,994 10/-
(Resident Shareholder) Goa - 403722:

Karkala GurlJprasad Shrl Ravalnath krlpa,
Prabhu Plot 26A, Betrlnd Durga

2 (Nominee shareholder of Petrol Pump, Fatorda,
1 10/-Smartllnk Holdings Margao Goa 403602

LImited)
(Resident Shareholder)
Vlshnudas Purushottam H, No. 828/V, Rainbow
Naikparsekar Valley, Mugalll, Sao-

3 (Nominee shareholder of Jose-de-Areal, South 1 10/-Smartlink Holdings Goa, 403709 Goa India
Limited)
(Resident Shareholder)
Shridhar Narayan A-702, Golden Square,
Kadam CHSL,Off CSTRoad, Sunder

4 (Nominee shareholder of Nagar, Kalina, Mumbal, 1 10/-Smartllnk Holdings Vidyanagari, Mumbai, \

LImited) Maharashtra, 400098
(Resident Shareholder)

,

Vljay Gopalkrlshna Rane Flat No. 406, Vasant
(Nominee shareholder of Arcade, Near Popular High

5 Smartllnk Holdings School, Margao, South 1 10/-
limited) Goa, Goa 403601
(Resident Shareholder) .

Rajesh Yeshwant Prabhu Rosadel Enclave, F. No. F-6,
(Nominee shareholder of Bldg. A, 1st Floor, Near

6 Smartllnk Holdings . District Court, Margao, Goa 1 la/-
Limited) 403601 India
(Resrdent Shareholder)
Basilio D'eosta H. No, 78, Rassalm
(Nominee shareholder of Loutulim, Salcete Goa,

7 Smartlink Holdings Loutulim, South Goa, Goa, 1 10/-
Limited) 403718
(Resldent Shareholder)

Total . 2,50,00,000

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED
Registered Office: Plot No. L-5A, Verna Industrial Estate, Verna. Salcette, South Goa, GA, 403722, IN
Land Phone; +91 8322885433 IFax: +91 8322783395. Ihelpdusk@synegra.com I www.synegra.com

CIN: Ul1.909GA2016PLC012969 A Subsidiary ofSmartlink Holdings Ltd.
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• AFFIDA VIT OF SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED CONSENTING TO

THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN SYNEGRA EMS

LIMITED ("TRANSFEROR COMPANY") AND SMARTLINK HOLDINGS

LIMITED ("TRANSFEREE COMP ANY") AND THEIR RESPECTIVE

, SHAREHOLDERS

I
I, Karkala Guruprasad Prabhu, S/o. Narsimha Karkala Prabhu, age 52 years,

I Chief Financial Officer of Smartlink Holdings Limited, Indian Inhabitant, having

p my office at L-7, Vema Industrial Estate, Vema, Salcete, Goa, 403722 do solemnly

affirm and state as under:



(.1That Smartlink Holdings Limited is the Equity Sbarebolder of Synegra EMS Limited,

4))} : holding 2,49,99,994 (Two Crore Forty-Nine Lakh Ninety-Nine Thousand Nine Hundred/...J and Ninety-Four) Equity shares singly andjoinlly as on 29,h February, 2024.

P'ii. That we have read and understood the Scheme of Amalgamation between Synegra EMS

Limited and Smartlink Holdings Limited and their respective shareholders under Sections

230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Scheme") as

approved by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies.

111. That we, understand that this Scheme is subject to, inter alia, the approval of the National

Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai (the "NCLT') and/or any other such competent

authority, as may be applicable.

IV. That in the capacity as the Equity Shareholder of Synegra EMS Limited, we hereby

confirm that we fully and unconditionally support the Scheme and every step, which may

be taken by the Company, its directors or authorised representatives for implementation of

the Scheme.

v. That we also convey my "No objection" to the Company from seeking dispensation of

holding of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders for approval of the Scheme from the

NCLT.

VI. That we hereby waive our right to receive notices of any meeting of the Equity

Shareholders and proceedings before the NCL T for obtaining sanction to the Scheme since,

we are fully supportive to the Scheme and its implementation.

Solemnly affirmed and signed

on this 18th day of March, 2024

at Vema Goa

NOTARIAL NOTARIAL NOTARIAL

For Smartlink Holdings Limited

)

)

) \~
Karkala Guruprasad Prabhu

Designation: Chief Financial Officer

,
\.

- 1,.

\, I)",

.-:--,...0
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- AFFIDAVIT OF KARKALA GURUPRASAD PRABHU CONSENTING TO THE

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

("TRANSFEROR COMPANY") AND SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

("TRANSFEREE COMPANY") AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

1, Karkala Guruprasad Prabhu, S/o. Narsimha Karkala Prabhu, age 52 years, residing

Iat Plot No: 26-A, Behind Durga Petrol Pump, Fatorda, Margao 403602, do solemnly

U affirm and state as under:

I

I

I

a



That I am Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink Holdings Limited)

ofSynegra EMS Limited, holding 1 (One) Equity share as on 29th February, 2024.

11. That I have read and understood the Scheme of Amalgamation between Synegra EMS

Limited and Smartlink Holdings Limited and their respective shareholders under Sections

230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Scheme") as

approved by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies.

UI. That I, understand that this Scheme is subject to, inter alia, the approval of the National

Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai (the "NCLT") and/or any other such competent

authority, as may be applicable.

IV. That in the capacity as the Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink

Holdings Limited) of Synegra EMS Limited, I hereby confirm that I fully and

unconditionally support the Scheme and every step, which may be taken by the Company,

its directors or authorised representatives for implementation of the Scheme.

v. That I also convey my "No objection" to the Company from seeking dispensation of

holding of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders for approval of the Scheme from the

NCLT.

VI. That Ihereby waive my right to receive notices of any meeting of the Equity Shareholders

and proceedings before the NCL T for obtaining sanction to the Scheme since, we are fully

supportive to the Scheme and its implementation.

Solemnly affirmed and signed

on this 18th day of March, 2024

)

)

) \~at Vema Goa

Karkala Guruprasad Prabhu

UYANT S. P'RA8HU SHA"'."4e
NOTARY. M ...... GAO
SAL' ..El E TALUK.A

le1'.- q: OF GOA ( IND ....
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~ AFFIDAVIT OF VISHNUDAS PURSHOTT AM . NAIl( PARSEKAR

CONSENTING TO THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN

SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED ("TRANSFEROR COMP ANY") AND

SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED ("TRANSFEREE COMPANY") AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

I I, Vishnudas Purshottam Naik Parsekar, S/o. Purshottarn Parsekar, age 50 years,

I residing at House No 828N, Mugalli, Goa, 403709, do solemnly affirm and state as

under:



That I am Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink Holdings Limited)

ofSynegra EMS Limited, holding 1 (One) Equity share as on 29th February, 2024.

u. That I have read and understood the Scheme of Amalgamation between Synegra EMS

Limited and Smartlink Holdings Limited and their respective shareholders under Sections

230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Scheme") as

approved by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies.

111. That I, understand that this Scheme is subject to, inter alia, the approval of the National

Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai (the "NCL T") and/or any other such competent

authority, as may be applicable.

iv. That in the capacity as the Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink

Holdings Limited) of Synegra EMS Limited, I hereby confirm that I fully and

unconditionally support the Scheme and every step, which may be taken by the Company,

its directors or authorised representatives for implementation of the Scheme.

v. That I also convey my "No objection" to the Company from seeking dispensation of

holding of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders for approval of the Scheme from the

NCLT.

Vl. That I hereby waive my right to receive notices of any meeting of the Equity Shareholders

and proceedings before the NCL T for obtaining sanction to the Scheme since, we are fully

supportive to the Scheme and its implementation.

Solemnly affirmed and signed )

)

)

on this 18th day of March, 2024

at Vema Goa

Vishnudas Purshottam Naik Parsekar

.~---........

NOTARIAL NOTARIAL
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AFFIDAVIT OF SHRIDHAR NARAVAN KADAM CONSENTING TO THE

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

("TRANSFEROR COMPANY") AND SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

e'TRANSFEREE COMP ANY") AND THEIR RESPECTIVE

SHAREHOLDERS

1. Shridhar Narayan Kadam, S/o. Narayan Kadam, age 54 years, residing at A-702.

Golden square CHSL, Off CST Road, Sunder Nagar, Kalina, Mumbai, Vidyanagari,

Murnbai, Maharahtra, 400098, do solemnly affirm and state as under:



i. That I am Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink Holdings

Limited) of Synegra EMS Limited, holding 1 (One) Equity share as on 02ud March,

2024.

ll. That Ihave read and understood the Scheme of Amalgamation between Synegra EMS

Limited and Smartlink Holdings Limited and their respective shareholders under

Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the

"Scheme") as approved by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies.

111. That 1, understand that this Scheme is subject to, inter alia, the approval of the National

Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai (the "NCLT") and/or any other such competent

authority, as may be applicable.

That in the capacity as the Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink

Holdings Limited) of Synegra EMS Limited, I hereby confirm that I fully and

unconditionally support the Scheme and every step, which may be taken by the

Company, its directors or authorised representatives for implementation of the Scheme.

v. That 1 also convey my "No objection" to the Company from seeking dispensation of

holding of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders for approval of the Scheme from the

NCLT.

VI. That 1 bereby waive my right to receive notices of any meeting of the Equity

Shareholders and proceedings before the NCLT for obtaining sanction to the Scheme

since, we are fully supportive to the Scheme and its implementation.

Solemnly affirmed and signed

on this 15th day of March, 2024

)

)

)at Murnbai

Shridbar Narayan Kadam
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AFFIDAVIT OF VIJAY GOPALKRISHNA RANE CONSENTING TO THE

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

g ("TRANSFEROR COMPANY") AND SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

, ("TRANSFEREE

SHAREHOLDERS

COMPANY") AND THEIR RESPECTIVE

R I, Vijay Gopalkrishna Rane, S/o. Gopalkrishna Rane, age 55 years, residing at Flat

No 406, Vasant Arcade, Comba, Margao Goa, 403601, do solemnly affirm and state as

, under:

•,
•



i»: That I am Equity Shareholder (holding as • nominee of Smartlink Holdings Limited)
:.q~ \\

-\ 4.f>'(j)~ \ of Synegra EMS Limited, holding 1 (One) Equity share as on 29th February, 2024.

E.""u~P>
That I have read and understood the Scheme of Amalgamation between Synegra EMS

Limited and Smartlink Holdings Limited and their respective shareholders under Sections

230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Scheme") as

approved by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies.

lit. That I, understand that this Scheme is subject to, inter alia, the approval of the National

Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai (the "NCL T') and/or any other such competent

authority, as may be applicable.

lV. That in the capacity as the Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink

Holdings Limited) of Synegra EMS Limited, I hereby confirm that I fully and

unconditionally support the Scheme and every step, which may be taken by the Company,

its directors or authorised representatives for implementation of the Scheme.

v. That I also convey my "No objection" to the Company from seeking dispensation of

holding of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders for approval of the Scheme from the

NCLT.

vi. That Ihereby waive my right to receive notices of any meeting of the Equity Shareholders

and proceedings before the NCL T for obtaining sanction to the Scheme since, we are fully

supportive to the Scheme and its implementation.

Solemnly affirmed and signed )

)

)

on this 18th day of March, 2024

at Vema Goa

Vijay Gopalkrishna Rane

NOTARIAL
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AFFIDAVIT OF RAJESH YESHW ANT PRABHU CONSENTING TO THE

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

("TRANSFEROR COMPANY") AND SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

("TRANSFEREE COMP ANY") AND THEIR RESPECTIVE

SHAREHOLDERS•
f.

I, Rajesh Yeshwant Prabhu, S/o. Yeshwant Prabhu, age 52 years, residing at F.

No. F-6, Building A, l " Floor, Margao, Goa 403601, do solemnly affirm and state as

under:a..

!

•
.'.::.. "



That I have read and understood the Scheme of Amalgamation between Synegra EMS

Limited and Smartlink Holdings Limited and their respective shareholders under Sections

230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Scheme") as

approved by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies .

..
ill. That I, understand that this Scheme is subject to, inter alia, the approval of the National

Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai (the "NCL T") and/or any other such competent

authority, as may be applicable.

IV. That in the capacity as the Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink

Holdings Limited) of Synegra EMS Limited, I hereby confirm that I fully and

unconditionally support the Scheme and every step, which may be taken by the Company,

its directors or authorised representatives for implementation of the Scheme.

v. That I also convey my "No objection" to the Company from seeking dispensation of

holding of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders for approval of the Scheme from the

NCLT.

Vl. That I hereby waive my right to receive notices of any meeting of the Equity Shareholders

and proceedings before the NCL T for obtaining sanction to the Scheme since, we are fully

supportive to the Scheme and its implementation.

Solemnly affirmed and signed )

)

)

on this 18th day of March, 2024

at Verna Goa ~.
Rajesh Yeshwant Prabhu

NOTARIAL
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AFFIDAVIT OF BASILIO BERNARD D'COSTA CONSENTING TO THE

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN SYNEGRA EMS LIMITED

("TRANSFEROR COMPANY") AND SMARTLINK HOLDINGS LIMITED

("TRANSFEREE COMPANY") AND THEIR RESPECTIVE

SHAREHOLDERS

I, Basilio Bernard D'Costa, S/o. Bernard D'Costa, age 55 years, residing at H. No.

78, Rassairn, Loutulim, Salcete Goa, Loutulim, South Goa, Goa, 403718, do

solemnly affirm and state as under:

!



.'

That I am Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink Holdings Limited)

fSynegra EMS Limited, holding 1 (One) Equity share as on 29th February, 2024.

That I have read and understood the Scheme of Amalgamation between Synegra EMS

Limited and Smartlink Holdings Limited and their respective shareholders under Sections

230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Scheme") as

approved by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies.

111. That I, understand that this Scheme is subject to, inter alia, the approval of the National

Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai (the "NCLT") andlor any other such competent

authority, as may be applicable.

iv. That in the capacity as the Equity Shareholder (holding as a nominee of Smartlink

Holdings Limited) of Synegra EMS Limited, I hereby confirm that I fully and

unconditionally support the Scheme and every step, which may be taken by the Company,

its directors or authorised representatives for implementation of the Scheme.

v. That I also convey my "No objection" to the Company from seeking dispensation of

holding of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders for approval of the Scheme from the

NCLT.

VI. That I hereby waive my right to receive notices of any meeting of the Equity Shareholders

and proceedings before the NCL T for obtaining sanction to the Scheme since, we are fully

supportive to the Scheme and its implementation.

Solemnly affirmed and signed )

)

)

on this 18th day of March, 2024

at Verna Goa

Basilio Bernard D'Costa

-

NOTARIAL
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